SELECT BOARD MEETING
Monday, November 10, 2025
6:00 pm
Nowak Room, Town Offices
10 Front Street, Exeter, NH 03833

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING BEGINS AT 7:00 PM

Meetings can be watched on Ch 22 or Ch 6 or YouTube. Attendees can join in person or virtually via Zoom.

To access the meeting, click this link: https://us02web.zoom.us/|/83306099909

To access the meeting via telephone, call: +1 646 558 8656 and enter the Webinar ID: 833 0609 9909

Please join the meeting with your full name if you want to speak.

Use the "Raise Hand" button to alert the chair you wish to speak. On the phone, press *9.

More instructions to access the meeting here: https://www.exeternh.gov/townmanager/virtual-town-meetings
Contact us at extvg@exeternh.gov or 603-418-6425 with any technical issues.

o e

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.

AGENDA

Call Meeting to Order
Non-Public Session
Bid Opening — 2026 Downtown Mobile Vending
Public Comment
Approval of Minutes
a. Regular Meeting: October 27, 2025
Appointments/Resignations
a. Library Trustees Mid-Cycle Appointment — Laura Wyskiel — Interim Library Trustee
b. Planning Board Representative to Rockingham Planning Commission — Marty
Kennedy
Discussion/Action Items
a. Interim Town Manager Authorization — Melissa Roy, Interim Town Manager
b. 2" Public Hearing - RSA 41:14-a Groundwater Easement — Stephen Cronin, Public
Works Director
c. Police Department Recruitment Incentives — Police Chief Stephan Poulin
Police Station/Fire Substation Construction Management Contract — Corey Stevens,
Finance Director
e. Police Station/Fire Substation Project Notification — Melissa Roy, Interim Town
Manager
f. State/Federal Grants Update — Corey Stevens, Finance Director
Tax Abatements, Veterans Credits & Exemptions
Permits & Approvals
Town Manager’s Report
Select Board Committee Report
Correspondence
Review Board Calendar
Non-Public Session
Adjournment



Niko Papakonstantis, Chair
Select Board

Posted 11/7/25 Town Office, Town Website

Persons with a disabling condition may request accommodations in order to attend this
meeting. Requests should be made with 72 hours notice.

AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE



Non-Public Session



2026 Downtown Mobile Vending Bid Opening



PubliqéComment



Approval of Minutes



-
O WO NGO D WN-=

A DA BABAMBABOWOWWWWWWWWWNDNNDNDNDDNMNDNDNDMNDN2D DDA I A
B OWONCQOCOONOODOOBEWN=_20000NOOOTODEWN_220OCONOOEWN-

Select Board Meeting
Monday October 27, 2025
6:30 PM
Nowak Room, Town Offices
Draft Minutes

1. Call Meeting to Order
Members present: Chair Niko Papakonstantis, Clerk Nancy Belanger, Dan Chartrand, and
Finance Director Corey Stevens were present at this meeting. Julie Gilman and Molly Cowan
were not present. The meeting was called to order by Mr. Papakonstantis at 6:30 PM.

2. Non-Public Session
MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to enter into non-public session under RSA 91-A3:li(a). Mr.
Chartrand seconded. In a roll call vote, the motion passed 3-0. The Board entered into non-
public session at 6:30 PM.

MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to exit non-public session. Mr. Chartrand seconded. The
motion passed 3-0 by roll call vote and the Board exited non-public session at 6:40 PM.

3. Board Interviews
a. Kenneth Berry for the Train Committee
b. Robert Hall for the Train Committee

4. Public Comment
a. Shawn Rickard, a student at Phillips Exeter, and four other members of the
Cross Country Team were present to give public comment. Mr. Rickard said they
are concerned about the spring on Oak Street being inactive. It's no longer
flowing, and it appears a PVC pipe has been inserted. The land belongs to the
Exeter Rose Farm LLC, so we assume they turned it off or there was some
issue, but it would be in the best interest of the town to preserve access to the
water. The town should rebuy or reclaim ownership of the spring.
Mr. Papakonstantis said he will be responding to Mr. Rickard via email on
this issue.

5. Proclamations/Recognitions
a. There were no proclamations/recognitions at this time.

6. Approval of Minutes
a. Regular Meeting: October 14, 2025
i.  Corrections: Mr. Chartrand line on 250, page 6, it should read “Ms. Roy
said we're not asking for both days."
MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to approve the Select Board regular meeting minutes of October
14, 2025 as amended. Mr. Chartrand seconded. The motion passed 3-0.



45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53

55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88

b. August 18, 2025 Final Minutes Rescission
i.  Mr. Papakonstantis said minutes needed to say “Interim Town Manager,”
not “Acting Town Manager.”
MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to rescind the August 18, 2025 Select Board regular meeting
minutes. Mr. Chartrand seconded. The motion passed 3-0.

MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to amend the minutes to say the Board named Melissa Roy the
Interim Town Manager, not the Acting Town Manager. Mr. Chartrand seconded. The motion
passed 3-0.

7. Appointments
a. Alternate to Voting Member — Sustainability Advisory Committee
MOTION: Mr. Chartrand moved to appoint Julie Gaunt as a regular voting member of the
Sustainability Advisory Committee, term to expire April 30, 2028. Ms. Belanger seconded. The
motion passed 3-0.

b. Resignation - Historic District Commission
MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to accept the resignation of Verity Boyer from the Historic
District Commission. Mr. Chartrand seconded. The motion passed 3-0.

¢. Resignation — Exeter Housing Authority
MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to accept the resignation of Renee O’'Barton from the Exeter
Housing Authority. Mr. Chartrand seconded. The motion passed 3-0.

d. Train Committee
MOTION: Mr. Chartrand moved to appoint Kenneth Berry to the Train Committee, with a term to
expire April 2027. Ms. Belanger seconded. The motion passed 3-0.

MOTION: Mr. Chartrand moved to appoint Robert Hall to the Train Committee as a regional
resident non-voting member, with no term. Ms. Belanger seconded. The motion passed 3-0.

Ms. Belanger nominated Mr. Chartrand as the Select Board
representative to the Train Committee. He said he's already been attending and
would be happy to accept the position.

8. Discussion/Action Items
a. RSA 41:14-a Groundwater Easement 1st Public Hearing — Stephen Cronin,
Public Works Director
MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to open the public hearing under RSA 41:14a, Groundwater
Easement first public hearing. Mr. Chartrand seconded. The motion passed 3-0.

Mr. Cronin said the Town has been working on a new groundwater
source since 2020. Between 2020 and 2022, groundwater exploration program
with 22 borings in 3 target zones, and the most promising site was on Phillips



89

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132

Exeter property off of Drinkwater Road. In 2022, a test well was installed at the
site, with a positive result. The preliminary well siting application was submitted
to NH Department of Environmental Services [DES]. In 2023, they issued
preliminary approval if we obtained an easement for the new well and all the
associated infrastructure, and in 2024, we negotiated the purchase of the
easement. A 12" production well installed and we did a 7-day pumping test. In
May 2025, we submitted the final application and report to NH DES. They
completed their review and are prepared to issue the permit once the Town
provides documentation of the easement. Per RSA 41:14-a, the Board has the
authority to accept easements. This has been referred to the Conservation
Commission, Planning Board, and Heritage Commission, and all voted in favor.

Ms. Belanger said both the Conservation Commission and Heritage
Commission asked for language changes in the deed. Mr. Cronin said one of the
Conservation Commission members works for DES and discussed the case of
another town where the deed didn't explicitly include the right to draw water.
Counsel will be making a small modification to bring back to PEA for approval.
The Heritage Commission wanted to make sure we protect Jude's Pond during
and after construction, which is specified in the bid documents.

Mr. Papakonstantis said the second public hearing will be November 10.

MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to close the public hearing. Mr. Chartrand seconded. The
motion passed 3-0.

b. Request for Winter Construction — Westside Drive — Stephen Cronin, Public
Works Director
Mr. Cronin said this is a request to perform winter work for the Westside
Drive project. This project has had a number of delays. We opened bids in June;
the project went through review and went to DES, but it took quite a while for
them to issue an authorization to award, which was done in October. Typically
we don’t do winter construction, but this is an exception because we're fully
reconstructing the road, including utilities. The contractor has provided
references for winter work and the consultant is comfortable with doing it. Our
road opening permit specifies no construction after November 15, we’re looking
for the approval of the Board.
Mr. Papakonstantis asked for public comment.
Nicholas Metz of 1 Tilton Ave said Westside residents think this approach
is prudent given the delays.
Mr. Cronin said there will be a neighborhood information meeting
Thursday at 6 PM at the Library to answer resident questions.
MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to authorize N. Granese & Sons, Inc. to perform winter
construction for the Westside Drive Drainage, Water, and Roadway Improvements Project, and
to further authorize the Interim Town Manager or their designee to sign and issue the Notice to
Proceed. Mr. Chartrand seconded. The motion passed 3-0.

c. Tax, Exemption & Credit Advisory Committee Recommendation



133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176

Mr. Papakonstantis said the committee is here to give a presentation, but
the Board won't deliberate until November 24 when we have a full Board.

Committee Chair Chris Soutter was present to discuss their work, as well
as Vice-Chair Jeanee Wright and Committee members Mark Furlong and Gerry
Hamel. Ms. Soutter said the committee has been meeting for a year to go over a
variety of credits available to residents. We focused on what we'd like to see
presented on the 2026 ballot. It's been a number of years since any changes
have been made to the tax credits.

Ms. Soutter said regarding Elderly Exemptions, the committee
recommends increasing the valuations on the homes and a small increase on
income limits. When we had the revaluation done, everyone saw an increase in
their home values and a decrease in the tax rate, but there was a
disproportionately higher amount of increase for the lowest-value properties in
Exeter. We recommend a 30% adjustment to the property value levels. The NH
Social Security benefit is $23,712 annually for one person and $47,424 for a
married couple. We recommended modest increases to the income threshold.
We'd like to get on the 2026 ballot to help those who need it most.

Mr. Hamel said when we’re looking at the elderly, the revaluation hurt
people. If someone is in an $80,000 manufactured home, that value could have
risen to $250,000. Stick-built homes mostly weren't under that $200,000. We
would have had to go up 50% to equal what we had before.

Ms. Soutter said she’s also on the Budget Recommendations committee,
and this will be a difficult year for us. She's always wearing the hat of “let's be
careful, is this necessary,” but she does support this.

Ms. Soutter said we recommend increasing the Blind Exemption from
$15,000 to $25,000. Exeter is on the low end and the new number would be in
line with other communities. Mr. Chartrand asked if this is a credit on the value of
the home. Mr. Stevens said yes, an exemption is a reduction in the value of the
home for tax purposes.

Ms. Soutter said Veterans Credits are complicated because of changes in
laws and benefits. The committee started with the Disabled Veterans tax credit; it
is $2,000 now and we recommended it move up to $2,500.

Ms. Wright said there was a legislative bill that passed mid-year where if
a veteran qualifies for the service-disconnected [sic] disability credit, they could
not also get the optional credit for disabled vets. All along they've been able to
get both, and now they can't. We recommend an increase to $2,500 so veterans
don't have a loss for the following years. Ms. Soutter said if this credit doesn't go
up, disabled veterans would take a loss from the new law. They can’t have both.

Ms. Soutter said Exeter is one of only three municipalities of Rockingham
County that does not have an All-Veterans Tax Credit. We propose that an All-
Veterans Tax Credit of $500 be placed on the warrant. We thought it should go to
the voters to decide. This would apply to anyone who had served over 90 days.
The committee members have different opinions but everyone respects and
honors our veterans.



177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219

Mr. Furlong said he reviewed the Department of Revenue Administration
data on this issue. In Rockingham County, 34 of 37 communities have adopted
the All-Veterans Credit, with a $675 average credit. He looked at how many
credits were granted Statewide and in Rockingham County. When you compare
them to the number of standard and optional credits granted, it was 13%
Statewide, and 12% in Rockingham County. Exeter currently grants 465 optional
Veterans Credits; 13% of that means about 56-60 veterans would qualify, for a
cost of $28-30,000. Ms. Soutter said that wouldn't be a big impact to the town.
Mr. Stevens asked if the 465 number is of Disabled Veterans Credits. Mr.
Furlong said no, those are the optional credits. The standard credit is $50, and
the optional increases it to $500, but it's for combat-related veterans only. Mr.
Stevens asked if a resident could get optional plus All-Veterans, and Mr. Furlong
said no. The legislature just changed that so they no longer qualify for both.
There's no double-dipping. Ms. Wright said we have 39 disabled veterans
currently. We're asking voters to approve All-Veterans credit. Ms. Soutter said we
don’'t want to see a negative impact to disabled veterans.

Ms. Belanger asked regarding the All-Veterans credit, is the bottom line
number estimated at $500? Mr. Furlong said yes. The statute requires that if the
town adopts the All-Veterans Credit, it has to be the same amount as the optional
credit. Ms. Belanger said Rockingham County average was $675, but that would
have to be part of a warrant article. Ms. Soutter said the max is $750.

Mr. Hamel said he was one of the people who did not want the All-
Veterans credit. He's pro-military. Everyone that's a veteran goes in willing to
serve, but 40% never get deployed. About 60% are deployed, but only 20% of
those see combat, so only 10-15% see combat. He likes the $500 goes to those
who have seen conflict. He's been talking to older vets about whether everyone
deserves this, and he hasn’'t met anyone that has said yes. The town will have to
vote on this. If you're against this, it doesn’'t mean that you're anti-veteran. Mr.
Furlong said the committee was very divided on the recommendation, but agreed
to bring it forward to the ballot so the voters can decide.

Fred Bird of 84 Kingston Road said 100% of us served. For the 20% of
combat vets, the 80% makes sure they get their equipment and supplies. He will
only get a grave and a plot, but he's turning them down. He's been hearing that
veterans get other benefits, but the committee hasn't clarified what benefits there
are.

Keith Whitehouse of 61 Westside Drive said he's talked to other people
that served that aren’t seeking money. He and some others wouldn't take the
credit, but they don’t want to be denied the credit. He may take it in the future,
but it's not about the money.

Ms. Soutter said her rationale was 100% fiscal. She had suggested
putting it off for one year to get through this budget cycle. Exeter does give to its
residents and non-profit organizations, but it's not the town’s job to do everything
for everyone. We’'ll dig ourselves into a financial hole we can't get out of.



220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263

Mr. Bird said he agrees the government shouldn’t be helping everyone
with everything, and he isn'’t looking for a rebate, but there's some guys out there
who could use it. It's $28,000, which is a teardrop in the budget.

Ms. Wright said the scope they were given to work on was to make
recommendations. The homeowners, taxpayers and voters should be deciding
for the town.

Mr. Chartrand said he would like to hold his comments until the full Board
is present on November 24.

Mr. Papakonstantis said he appreciates that the committee came to a
consensus. He thinks this should go to the voters, but we should keep sight of
what we're asking them to vote on. We should decide on the credit, not what
makes a veteran.

E911 Committee Member Addition

Mr. Papakonstantis said the E911 committee is made up of town staff.
They're recommending the Board add the Town GIS Coordinator, which he
thinks makes sense.

MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to add the town of Exeter GIS Coordinator or their designee to
the E911 Committee as a voting member. Mr. Chartrand seconded. The motion passed 3-0.

e. Use of Fund Balance Discussion — Corey Stevens, Finance Director

Mr. Stevens said we're about to set the tax rate with DRA. We use Fund
Balance to smooth the tax rate. A fund balance of 5-17% is recommended.
$74,539,000 is the total of all appropriations for the town, schools, and county.
He considered the use of $600,000, $650,000 and $700,000 to bring down the
tax rate. We ended 2024 with $5.993M, which was up $750,000 from the year
before. We voted to use some to buy items in the March elections. He's
recommending using $650,000 of fund balance, which is $4.48/1,000 of property
value; with a property value of $500,000, it would be about $140 more. We may
want to apply more fund balance next year.

Mr. Chartrand said for “appropriations general,” the recommendation is to
have an undesignated fund balance that is a certain percentage of the total. Why
not just the town’s portion? Are we holding money for all of these entities? Mr.
Stevens said yes, we pay the schools and the community at the end of the year.

Ms. Belanger asked about past years. Mr. Stevens said two years ago we
used $300,000. We've done up to $1M. We use $300,000 - 500,000 every year
for warrant articles. Smoothing the tax rate each year is separate.

Mr. Chartrand said he’s comfortable with Mr. Stevens’ recommendation.

Mr. Stevens said revenue projected for 2025 is $8.7M, about $200,000
less than the prior year. This helps us mitigate how much fund balance we need
to use. The Land Use Change Tax is down $365,000 from the prior year due to
fewer projects coming up. Building permits are estimated at $600,000 in 2025, an
increase of 200,000. Investment interest is starting to decline based on lower
interest rates.



264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301
302
303
304
305
306
307

Mr. Stevens presented a summary of warrant articles and appropriations

from March 2025.

Ms. Belanger asked if the Board can get an update on outstanding grants

coming in. Mr. Stevens said it's settled down, but he can give an update at the
next meeting.
MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to use $650,000 of fund balance for tax rate setting purposes for
the 2025 tax rate. Mr. Chartrand seconded. The motion passed 3-0.

9. Regular Business
a. Tax Abatements, Veterans Credits and Exemptions
MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to approve a Timber Tax for 91/42 in the amount of $2,647.50
for tax year 2025. Mr. Chartrand seconded. The motion passed 3-0.

b. Permits & Approvals

Police Station/Fire Substation Construction Management Contract

Mr. Stevens said Eckman Construction Inc is close to 100%
design drawings and is putting together their construction management
contract. We need to get sitework going on this project. We're not ready
to go with the large contract yet, we're still talking with Legal. We're
looking for a “notice to proceed” letter to start on the sitework. It will take
four weeks between approval and putting them on the ground.

MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to allow Eckman Construction Company Inc to move forward
with sitework on the Police Station/Fire Substation project, and to authorize the Select Board
Chair to execute the enclosed letter for delivery to Eckman Company Inc on Tuesday, October
28, 2025. Mr. Chartrand seconded. The motion passed 3-0.

c. Town Manager’s Report

Mr. Papakonstantis said Ms. Roy is at the International City County

Management Association conference but put together a Town Manager's report,
which Mr. Stevens read:

vi.
vii.
viii.

We have welcomed our new HR director, Kelly Corea. Ms. Roy is working
with HR on a transition plan.

Ms. Roy attended meetings for the Police/Fire Substation project.

She's working with Parks and Rec to finalize 10 Hampton Road. There
will be a grand opening in mid-November. Mr. Bisson will be coming to
the Board with a furniture donation request from RiverWoods.

She attended the BRC subcommittee meetings and the all-day General
Government meeting.

She attended Tax Exemption and Credit meeting.

She ran the Ops meeting on Wednesday for all Departments.

She met with the Library to work on their budget.

Mr. Stevens is working with her to identify budget reductions of any kind.
Mr. Stevens is meeting with her and DRA to work through tax rate setting.
She went to the Phoenix Tailings grand opening.



308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
3
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350
351

Xi.
Xii.

She attended to various personnel matters.
There is a Westside Drive Public info meeting October 30 6 PM at Exeter
Public Library.

d. Select Board Committee Reports

Ms. Belanger didn't attend her normal meetings in person, but caught up
afterwards. At the Rec Advisory Board, they heard an update on 10
Hampton Road; the department is moving there in November. They heard
an update on ADA changing tables, as well as paving of the parking lot
and connector path. At Gilman Park, they’re having work done on the
infield and addressing drainage issues. They're doing work on the Dan
Healey Pool. The town was awarded a grant from Exeter Hospital of
$38,000. 30-50 seniors are attending senior luncheons, which will stay at
the Town Hall. They're planning a meeting about the budget in January.
They discussed changing their meetings from monthly to quarterly. The
Planning Board heard an application for 25/3 from Kaileigh Associates.
The applicants agreed to another extension, to November 6. The
Planning Board voted to give consideration for the PEA groundwater
easement. They discussed proposed zoning changes. There is a new law
in NH for ADA, but we're already doing what the law says. At the next
Housing Advisory Committee meeting, Housing Authority member Tony
Texeira will speak about Section 8.

Mr. Chartrand said the Sustainability Advisory Committee held a
styrofoam collection event which was very successful.

Mr. Papakonstantis attended the Swasey Park Trustee meeting, where
they went through their usual placeholders. They will meet in November
to go over bids on maintenance. He attended part of the all-day BRC
meeting. He attended the Coastal Resiliency committee, and we're ready
to hold our first public meeting on steps forward. They're lobbying for
Town Hall to be the venue, but it's booked on our preferred dates. The
Pairpoint Park Committee meeting had a lack of quorum. He attended the
Phoenix Tailings event along with the Interim Town Manager. He also met
with the Library Director and Chair of the Library Trustees on the budget.

e. Correspondence

An abutter notice from the town of Stratham for a Planning Board meeting
November 5 for Stonybrook.

A memo from Rockingham Planning Commission regarding Hampton
Beach Casino.

An email from a resident expressing their opposition to the budget, and
his response.

Correspondence from a resident about leaf blowers. Mr. Papakonstantis
said noise restrictions are very difficult for the Police to enforce. He will
discuss this further with Ms. Roy.



352
3583
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367
368
369
370
371
372
373

10. Review Board Calendar
a. The next Board meetings are November 10, November 24, December 8, and
December 22.
b. Ms. Belanger said Ms. Gilman's mother Mary Ellen Dupre passed away this
morning. Mr. Papakonstantis called for a moment of silence to honor her.

11. Non-Public Session
a. There was no non-public session at this time.

12. Adjournment
MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to adjourn. Mr. Chartrand seconded. The motion passed 3-0,
and the meeting was adjourned at 8:28 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,
Joanna Bartell
Recording Secretary



Appointments/Resignations



To: Exeter Select Board

From: Jenny Medlock, Chair, Board of Trustees, Exeter Public Library
Date: October 28, 2025

Subject: Recommendation for Interim Library Trustee Appointment

Dear Members of the Select Board,

On behalf of the Board of Trustees of the Exeter Public Library, I am writing to formally
recommend the appointment of Laura Wyskiel as Interim Library Trustee to fill the vacancy
created by the recent resignation of Trustee Davis Moore.

Laura Wyskiel is a dedicated community member with a strong appreciation for public service
and a deep respect for the mission of the Exeter Public Library. Her background in civic
engagement, collaborative leadership, and support for inclusive programming as a staff member
at Appleseed’s Day care aligns well with the values and responsibilities of the Board. Laura has
served as a Library Board Member in 2019, 2021 and in 2023.

The Board believes Laura will bring a balanced and informed perspective to our work, and we
are confident in her ability to contribute meaningfully during this interim period. Her
appointment will ensure continuity in our oversight and support the library’s ongoing initiatives
in strategic planning, community outreach, and policy development.

We respectfully request that the Select Board consider and approve Laura Wyskiel’s
appointment as Interim Library Trustee, effective immediately, to serve until the next municipal
election or until a permanent appointment is made in accordance with RSA 202-A:10.

Thank you for your consideration and continued support of the Exeter Public Library.

Sincerely,

2

Z
(

Jenny Medjock
Chair, Board of Trustees
Exeter Public Library



JUSTIA

‘ Go to Previous Versions of this Section Vv ’

2024 New Hampshire Revised Statutes
Title XVI - Libraries

Chapter 202-A - Public Libraries
Section 202-A:10 - Library Trustees;
Vacancies; Alternates.

Universal Citation: .
NH Rev Stat § 202-A:10 (2024) O

< Previous Next >

202-A:10 Library Trustees; Vacancies; Alternates. — Vacancies occurring on any
board of library trustees in a town shall be filled as provided in RSA 669:75. A vacancy
occurring among the publicly elected members of the board of library trustees of a city
library shall be filled by the city council or other appropriate appointing authority within 2
months of the notice by the remaining members of the board of trustees. The board of
library trustees may recommend to the appointing authority names of persons for
appointment to vacancies on expired terms. The board of library trustees may recommend
to the appointing authority the names of no more than 3 persons who may serve as
alternate members on the board when elected members of the board are unable to attend a
board meeting. The alternate members shall be appointed to one-year terms.

Source. 1917, 59:1. PL 10:55. RL 15:58. RSA 202:9. 1963, 46:1. 1979, 410:19. 2000, 9:3,
eff. April 16, 2000.

< Previous Next »



Disclaimer: These codes may not be the most recent version. New Hampshire may have more current
or accurate information. We make no warranties or guarantees about the accuracy, completeness, or

adequacy of the information contained on this site or the information linked to on the state site. Please
check official sources.

This site is protected by reCAPTCHA and the Google Privacy Policy and Terms of Service apply.



JUSTIA

’ Go to Previous Versions of this Section v )

2024 New Hampshire Revised Statutes
Title LXIII - Elections
Chapter 669 - Town Elections

Section 669:75 - Vacancies in Other
Offices.

Universal Citation:
NH Rev Stat § 669:75 (2024) Q

< Previous

669:75 Vacancies in Other Offices. — Vacancies in the offices of constable, sewer
commissioner, town assessor, overseers of public welfare, library trustee, and any other
optional offices where no other method of filling a vacancy shall be provided by vote of the
town shall be filled by appointment made by the board of selectmen.

Source. 1979, 410:1, eff. July 1, 1979.

< Previous

Disclaimer: These codes may not be the most recent version. New Hampshire may have more current
or accurate information. We make no warranties or guarantees about the accuracy, completeness, or
adequacy of the information contained on this site or the information linked to on the state site. Please
check official sources.



This site is protected by reCAPTCHA and the Google Privacy Policy and Terms of Service apply.



TOWN OF EXETER

10 FRONT STREET » EXETER, NH = 03833-3792  (603) 778-0591 *FAX 772-4709
www.exeternh.qov

DATE: October 24, 2025

MEMO TO:  Melissa Roy, Interim Town Manager

CcC: Select Board
FROM: Langdon Plumer, Planning Board Chairman
RE: Board Appointments

Please accept this memo as a recommendation of the Planning Board requesting that the Select
Board appoint Marty Kennedy as a Planning Board Representative to the Rockingham Planning
Commission (RPC Commissioner).

Thank You.



.Discussion/Action Items



Interim Town Manager Authorization



TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE

10 FRONT STREET « EXETER, NH = 03833-3792 - (603) 778-0591 » FAX 772-4709
wiww.exeternh.gov

TO: EXETER SELECTBOARD

FROM: MELISSA ROY, INTERIM TOWN MANAGER

SUBJECT: INTERIM TOWN MANAGER — SIGNATURE AUTHORITY
DATE: NOVEMBER 10, 2025

| am requesting that the Selectboard authorize the Interim Town Manager to have signature
authority on all contracts and documents when the Town Manager is absent. In June of 2023,
similar authorization was granted to the Assistant Town Manager and/or the Town of Exeter
Select Board Chair.

Motion to authorize the Interim Town Manager and/or the Assistant Town Manager and/or
the Town of Exeter Select Board Chair to have signature authority on all contracts and
documents in the Town Manager’s is absence.



2" Public Hearing - RSA 41:14-a Groundwater Easement



EXETER PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

13 NEWFIELDS ROAD « EXETER, NH « 03833-3792 » (603) 773-6157 *FAX 772-1355
www.exeternh.gov/publicworks - publicworks@exeternh.gov

TO: Exeter Select Board

FROM: Stephen Cronin, Public Works Director

DATE: November 7, 2025

RE: Public Hearing #2 - Acquisition of Easement for the Drinkwater Road

Groundwater Supply Well

At the first Public Hearing for the Drinkwater Road Groundwater Supply Well Easement,
questions were raised regarding the Conservation Commission’s comments on the easement deed
language, specifically, the Commission’s recommendation that the easement explicitly reference
the Town’s right to withdraw groundwater for municipal water supply purposes.

This clarification was requested in consideration of a recent NHDES groundwater withdrawal
permit issued in another municipality, where the absence of explicit withdrawal language led to
regulatory complications. As noted at the Public Hearing, the Public Works Department had
already engaged with Town Counsel in response to the Conservation Commission’s comments.

Since that time, Counsel finalized revisions to the easement deed to include explicit withdrawal
rights. The updated deed was submitted to Phillips Exeter Academy (PEA) for concurrence, and
upon receiving PEA’s agreement, it was forwarded to NHDES for review and subsequently
approved.

A copy of the revised easement deed is attached for the Board’s review and acceptance.
Revisions pertaining to the withdrawal rights are highlighted in yellow for reference.

Upon Board approval, the next step in the process would be to finalize the necessary
documentation to complete the acquisition of the easement, at the negotiated price of $350,000.
This purchase price is consistent with the project’s overall construction cost estimates and the
existing funding appropriations. Following that, Town staff will proceed with executing the
easement and recording the deed.



THE SPACE ABOVE IS FOR RECORDING
INFORMATION

EASEMENT DEED

BE IT KNOWN, that Phillips Exeter Academy, a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation with a mailing address of 20 Main Street, Exeter, NH 03833 , for
consideration paid, hereby grants and conveys to the Town of Exeter, a municipal
corporation within Rockingham County with a principal place of business at 10 Front
Street, Exeter, NH 03833, with WARRANTY COVENANTS, the following perpetual
easement for water supply well purposes over, across, under and through land of the
grantor located on the east side of the Exeter River and west side of Drinkwater Road,
Exeter, Rockingham County, New Hampshire, more particularly described as:

Permanent Easements

An easement for the purpose of constructing of a water supply well and control
building, pipelines, appurtenances, monitoring wells, parking areas and other
site improvements, and to use, withdraw water from, maintain, operate, repair
and/or replace the well, building, pipelines, appurtenances, monitoring wells,
parking areas and other site improvements approximately 800 feet west of
Drinkwater Road, as shown on a plan entitled “Overall Site Plan, Exeter
Groundwater Improvements, Town of Exeter, Exeter, New Hampshire,”
prepared by Underwood Engineers, dated January, 2025, on file with the Town
of Exeter Department of Public Works (“Preliminary Plan”). Upon completion of
construction of the well and transmission lines, an easement plan showing the
final location of the easement area and improvements will be recorded.

A 400-foot well radius easement surrounding the water supply well, also as
shown on the Preliminary Plan. For so long as the wells are used for a source
of public water supply, the area of the easement shall be subject to such land
use restrictions as are necessary, in accordance with NHDES guidelines and
regulations, to prevent contamination of the wells. No use of the area shall be
permitted which could directly or indirectly degrade the quality of the underlying



P

groundwater withdrawn from the onsite Production Well.

An approximately 615-foot long, 30-foot wide easement from Drinkwater Road
to the well radius easement for the purpose of constructing a driveway and
installing electrical service and other utilities to the water supply well and control
building, together with the right to maintain, operate, repair, and/or replace such
driveway and utilities. The location of this access easement is shown on the
Preliminary Plan and will also be shown on the final plan.

A 20-foot wide, approximately 2,320-foot long easement for a directionally
drilled raw water transmission pipeline, witness posts, appurtenances, and
other site improvements running in a generally westerly direction from the well
radius easement to the Exeter River. The approximate location of this
transmission pipeline easement is shown on the Preliminary Plan; however,
given that it is to be directionally drilled, and the location may therefore be
altered due to soil conditions or obstructions, the final location of this
easement shall be memorialized on the final easement plan, to be prepared
and recorded after construction.

The Town shall have the exclusive right and title to use and withdraw
groundwater and bedrock water produced by the wells, pipes, mains, pumps,
pump houses, and related machinery and equipment that the Town has
installed within the Protective Well Radii located on Phillips Exeter Academy’s
property to provide water supply for the Town of Exeter. However, the rights
granted in this Easement shall not preclude Phillips Exeter Academy from
withdrawing groundwater and bedrock water from other locations with Phillips
Exeter Academy's property.

The Easements shall remain in effect unless and until the Town elects to
cease use of the Easement, upon which time the Easement rights shall
terminate. In the event of abandonment of the Easement, the Town will
remove the water infrastructure and return the Easement Area as closely as
reasonably possible to its original condition at the Town’s sole cost and
expense. Abandonment shall be defined as either the Town affirmatively
renouncing its rights under the Easement, or the failure to use or materially
rely on the Easement to supply municipal water for a period of three (3)
consecutive years.

Temporary Easements

Temporary easements as necessary for construction and staging. Temporary
access shall be provided to the directional drill transition pit area shown on the
Preliminary Plan via existing trails and logging roads. Temporary use as a
staging area shall be provided at the existing clearing/laydown area northeast
of the proposed well. The temporary easements will last for the duration of the
construction contract from the Notice to Proceed to Final Completion, or for 2



-3-

years from the date of the execution of this agreement, with extensions as
mutually agreed to if needed.

At all times when the Easement is in effect, the Town shall repair any damage
or disturbance resulting from its exercise of the easements on the Easement Area at
its sole cost and expense and shall indemnify and hold the grantor and its successors
and assigns harmless therefor. The Town shall be responsible at its sole cost and
expense for any utilities serving its facilities located in the easement area.

The Town shall also maintain, and cause any of its contractors or
subcontractors that will enter the property, to maintain public entity general liability
insurance under RSA 5-B or commercial general liability insurance in an amount of at
least $2,000,000 per occurrence, workers’ compensation insurance, and automobile
liability insurance. The minimum insurance requirements as to type and amounts shall
be subject to reasonable increases at ten (10) year intervals in the reasonable
discretion of the grantor.

The burden of this easement shall run with the land of the grantors and shall
be binding on the grantors’ heirs, successors and assigns until the Town elects to
cease use of or abandons the Easement, as defined above. The benefits of this
easement shall not be appurtenant to any particular parcel of land but shall be in
gross.

Meaning and intending to describe and convey an easement which burdens a
portion of the property conveyed to the grantors by deed of Gardiner Gilman dated
February 20, 1911 and recorded in the Rockingham County Registry of Deeds at Book
0659, Page 0123.

This conveyance is exempt from transfer taxes pursuant to RSA 78-B:2, I.



EXECUTED this day of , 2025.

PHILLIPS EXETER ACADEMY

Marijka Beauchesne, Chief Financial Officer

Duly Authorized
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
COUNTY OF ROCKINGHAM
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of

, 2025 by Marijka Beauchesne, Chief Financial Officer,
Phillips Exeter Academy.

Notary Public/Justice of the Peace
My Commission expires:




EXETER PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

13 NEWFIELDS ROAD « EXETER, NH = 03833-3792 - (603) 773-6157 *FAX 772-1355
www.exeternh.gov/ipublicworks «  publicworks@exeternh.gov

TO: Select Board

FROM: Kristen Murphy, Conservation & Sustainability Planner
DATE: November 7, 2025

RE: Recommendation Regarding Groundwater Supply Easement

In accordance with RSA 41:14a, Steve Cronin presented information and materials to the Conservation
Commission at their October 14" monthly meeting. Following the presentation and discussion, the
Commission voted in support of the easement for groundwater supply, well and associated infrastructure.
The vote passed with six in favor, no votes against and one abstention (6-0-1).



Police Department Recruitment Incentives



Memorandum November 7, 2025

To: Interim Town Manager Melissa Roy
From: Chief Stephan Poulin

Ref: Hiring Certified Police Officers

What has been a steady decline in the last decade across the United States regarding
public interest in careers as a Police Officer has settled into what we are now faced
with in New Hampshire as a hiring/retention crisis. Not only has the number of
overall applicants significantly reduced, but the number of applicants with police
certifications from within the state and other states who may be looking to relocate
has also declined.

The ability to hire someone with a current police certification has many benefits to
the Town of Exeter. At the forefront is the large reduction in the amount of time
and money to be spent on the onboarding of the officer. The field training time is
cut in half from 12 weeks to 6 weeks and eliminates the need to be out of service at
the academy for 4 months. This hugely affects money spent on the training salary
and the money spent filling the open shifts with overtime. So, what we are able to
get is a certified officer on solo status serving the town and covering shifts at 6 weeks
of hire instead of the 7-8 months of a wait for an uncertified hire to do the same.
The Town gets the benefit of having officers with prior experience and knowledge of
the job and what it entails to be a police officer. Also, being able to quickly fill open
shifts not only improves our current officer’s morale, but increases the safety for all
in Town with appropriate policing levels.

When we do find that there is a certified applicant that is interested in relocating to
Exeter, they often mention that they are in the process with several other towns and
that they are being offered hiring bonuses, so they ask if Exeter has a bonus.

The answer, as you know at the moment is: no, we do not. So naturally, we put forth
our best efforts to outline the great community that we enjoy, our fantastic
employees, and the supporting citizens around us. However, that can quickly be
overshadowed by hiring bonuses across the state, most upwards of $10,000 and



some even at $21,000- just to sign on. We have two smaller police departments that
border us and they offer a $10,000 and a $15,000 sign on bonus for certified officers.

I am requesting consideration for the Town of Exeter to offer a $15,000 sign on
bonus to NH certified full time Police Officers, or Out of State certified full time
police officers from a recognized Peace Officer Standards and training (POST)
Academy outlined as follows:

The Exeter Police Department offers a $15,000 sign-on bonus to any applicant hired
by the Town who is already NH certified as a full-time Police Officer. This bonus
will be paid by the Town as a stipend, not included in base wages or in the
calculation of any pension benefit. The stipend will be paid as follows:

$5,000 at the first pay period of employment.

$5,000 after successful completion of the Department’s Field Training
Program and first six months of employment.

$5,000 to be paid at the last pay period prior to successfully completing the
probationary period (typically 1 year).

The Exeter Police Department offers a $15,000 sign-on bonus to any applicant hired
by the Town who is already Out of State certified as a full-time Police Officer from a
recognized Peace Officer Standards and Training (POST) Academy. This bonus will
be paid by the Town as a stipend, not included in base wages or in the calculation of
any pension benefit. The stipend will be paid as follows:

$5,000 at the first pay period of employment.

$5,000 after successful completion of the Department’s Field Training
Program and NH Police Academy Law Package requirement

$5,000 to be paid at the last pay period prior to successfully completing the
probationary period (typically 1 year).



Police Station/Fire Substation Construction Management Contract



TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE

10 FRONT STREET « EXETER, NH « 03833-3792 » (603) 778-0591 » FAX 772-4709
wwu'.exetemh.gov

TO: EXETER SELECTBOARD
FROM: COREY STEVENS, FINANCE DIRECTOR

SUBJECT: CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT CONTRACT FOR NEW POLICE STATION/
FIRE SUBSTATION
DATE: NOVEMBER 10, 2025

As was discussed at the Board’s October 27t" meeting, over the past two weeks we have finalized
the construction management contract with Eckman Construction Company, Inc., for the new
Police Station/ Fire Substation on Continental Drive. Included in your packet this evening are the
main documents that will comprise the management contract. Shortly, the town will receive
completed construction documents from the project’s architect. At that time, the management
contract documents will be updated and finalized to incorporate the construction specifications
and guaranteed maximum price for the project.

Tonight, we request Board approval for Interim Town Manager Melissa Roy to execute any and

all documents related to the construction management contract with Eckman Construction
Company for the Police Station/ Fire Substation project.

fFonss



W AIA Document A201" - 2017

General Conditions of the Contract for Construction

Init.

for the following PROJECT:

(Name and location or address)

Town of Exeter

Police Station and Fire Substation
6 Continental Drive

Exeter, NH 03833

THE OWNER:

(Name, legal status and address)

Town of Exeter
10 Front Street
Exeter, NH 03833

THE ARCHITECT:

(Name, legal status and address)

Theodore (Ted) Galante, AIA LEED AP
TGAS The Galante Architecture Studio, Inc
146 Mt. Auburn Street, Cambridge, MA 02138

TABLE OF ARTICLES

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS:

The author of this document has
added information needed for its
completion. The author may also
have revised the text of the original
AlA standard form. An Additions and
Deletions Report that notes added
information as well as revisions to the
standard form text is available from
the author and should be reviewed. A
vertical line in the left margin of this
document indicales where the author
has added necessary information
and where the author has added to or
deleted from the original AlA text.

This document has important legal
consequences. Consultation with an
altorney is encouraged with respect
to its completion or modification.

For guidance in modifying this
document to include supplementary

1 GENERAL PROVISIONS conditions, see AIA Document
A503™, Guide for Supplementary

2 OWNER Conditions.

3 CONTRACTOR

4 ARCHITECT

5 SUBCONTRACTORS

6 CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS

7 CHANGES IN THE WORK

8 TIME

9 PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION

10 PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY

11 INSURANCE AND BONDS

12 UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK

13 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

AlA Document A201 — 2017. Copyright ©@ 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights

reserved, "The American Inslitule of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”

“AlA," the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The

American Inslitute of Architects. This document was produced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Order No.2114498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AlA Conlract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations,

e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes:

(2051888975)



14 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE CONTRACT
15 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

(nit AlA Document A201 — 2017. Copyright ® 1911, 1815, 1918, 1825, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1861, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1387, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights
* reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architacts,” "AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The
/ American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Order No.2114498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for

resale, Is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations,
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (2051888975)



Init.

INDEX
{Topics and numbers in bold are Section headings.)

Acceptance of Nonconforming Work
9.6.6,9.9.3,12.3

Acceptance of Work
9.6.6,9.8.2,9.9.3,9.10.1,9.10.3, 12.3

Access to Work

3.16,6.2.1, 12.1

Accident Prevention

10

Acts and Omissions
3.2,3.3.2,3.12.8,3.18,4.2.3,8.3.1,9.5.1, 10.2.5,
10.2.8,13.3.2,14.1, 15.1.2,15.2

Addenda

1.1.1

Additional Costs, Claims for

3.74,3.17.5,103.2, 15.1.5

Additional Inspections and Testing
94.2,983,12.2.1,134

Additional Time, Claims for
3.24,3.74,3.7.5,3.10.2,8.3.2, 15.1.6
Administration of the Contract
3.13,42,94,9.5

Advertisement or Invitation to Bid

1.1.1

Aesthelic Effect

4.2.13

Allowances

38

Applications for Payment
425,73.9,9.2,93,94,9.5.1,9.54,9.6.3,9.7,9.10
Approvals

2.1.1,23.1,25,3.1.3,3.10.2, 3.12.8, 3.12.9,
3.12.10.1,4.2.7,9.3.2, 13.4.1

Arbitration

8.3.1,15.3.2,154

ARCHITECT

4

Architect, Definition of

4.1.1

Architect, Extent of Authority
2.5,3.12.7,4.1.2,42,5.2,6.3,7.1.2,7.34,74,9.2,
9.3.1,94,95,9.6.3,9.8,9.10.1,9.10.3, 12.1, 12.2.1,
134.1,134.2,142.2,142.4,15.1.4,15.2.1
Architect, Limitations of Authority and Responsibility
2.1.1,3.12.4,3.12.8,3.12.10,4.1.2,4.2.1,4.2.2,4.2.3,
426,42.7,4.2.10,42.12,4.2.13,5.2.1,74,94.2,
9.54,9.6.4,15.1.4,152

Architect’s Additional Services and Expenses
25,122.1,13.4.2,1343,1424

Architect’s Administration of the Contract
3.13,3.74,15.2,94.1,9.5

Architect’s Approvals

2.5,3.1.3,3.5,3.10.2,4.2.7

Architect’s Authority to Reject Work
3.5,4.26,12.1.2,12.2.1

Architect’s Copyright

1.1.7,1.5

Architect’s Decisions
3.74,426,42.7,4.2.11,42.12,42.13,4.2.14, 6.3,
7.34,7.3.9,81.3,8.3.1,9.2,9.4.1,95,9.8.4,9.9.1,
13.4.2,15.2

Architect’s Inspections
3.74,42.2,42.9,942,9.8.3,9.9.2,9.10.1, 13.4
Architect’s Instructions
3.24,33.1,42.6,4.2.7,13.4.2

Architect’s Interpretations

42.11,4.2.12

Architect’s Project Representative

4.2.10

Architect’s Relationship with Contractor
1.1.2,1.5,2.33,3.1.3,3.2.2,3.2.3,3.24,3.3.1,34.2,
3.5,3.74,3.75,3.9.2,3.93,3.10,3.11, 3.12, 3.16,
3.18,4.1.2,42,52,6.2.2,7,83.1,9.2,9.3,94, 9.5,
9.7,9.8,9.9,10.2.6, 10.3,11.3, 12, 13.3.2, 13.4, 15.2
Architect’s Relationship with Subcontractors
1.1.2,4.2.3,42.4,4.2.6,9.6.3,9.64,11.3
Architect’s Representations

94.2,9.5.1,9.10.1

Architect’s Site Visits
3.74,422,42.9,9.42,95.1,9.9.2,9.10.1, 13.4
Asbestos

10.3.1

Attorneys’ Fees

3.18.1,9.6.8,9.10.2, 10.3.3

Award of Separate Contracts

6.1.1,6.1.2

Award of Subcontracts and Other Contracts for
Portions of the Work

5.2

Basic Definitions

1.1

Bidding Requirements

111

Binding Dispute Resolution
83.1,9.7,115,13.1,15.1.2, 15.1.3, 15.2.1, 15.2.5,
15.2.6.1,15.3.1,15.3.2, 153.3,15.4.1

Bonds, Lien

7.3.4.4,9.6.8,9.10.2,9.10.3

Bonds, Performance, and Payment
7.3.4.4,9.6.7,9.10.3, 11.1.2, [1.1.3, 11.5

Building Information Models Use and Reliance
1.8

Building Permit

3.7.1

Capitalization

1.3 .

Certificate of Substantial Completion
9.8.3,9.84,98.5

AlA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright @ 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1858, 1861, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights
reserved. *“The American Institute of Architects,” "American Institute of Architects,” "AlA," the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are lrademarks of The
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Order No.2114438152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for
resale, Is licensed for gne-tims use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations,

e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notas:

: (2051888975)
Hiia



Init.

Certificates for Payment
421,4.2.5,42.9,933,94,9.5,9.6.1,9.6.6,9.7,
9.10.1,9.10.3,14.1.1.3, 14.24, 15.1.4

Certificates of Inspection, Testing or Approval
13.44

Certificates of Insurance

9.10.2

Change Orders
1.1.1,34.2,3.74,3.82.3,3.11,3.12.8,4.2.8, 5.2.3,
7.12,7.13,72,73.2,7.3.7,7.3.9,7.3.10, 8.3.1,
9.3.1.1,9.10.3,10.3.2,11.2, 11.5, 12.1.2

Change Orders, Definition of

721

CHANGES IN THE WORK
222,3.11,428,7,72.1,7.3.1,74,8.3.1,9.3.1.1,
11.5

Claims, Definition of

15.1.1

Claims, Notice of

1.6.2,15.1.3

CLAIMS AND DISPUTES
3.24,6.1.1,63,7.3.9,9.33,9.104,10.3.3,15, 154
Claims and Timely Assertion of Claims

154.1

Claims for Additional Cost
3.24,33.1,3.74,7.39,95.2,10.2,5,10.3.2, 15.1.5
Claims for Additional Time
3.24,33.1,3.74,6.1.1,83.2,9.5.2,10.3.2, 15.1.6
Concealed or Unknown Conditions, Claims for
3.74

Claims for Damages
3.24,3.18,8.3.3,9.5.1,9.6.7,10.2.5, 10.3.3, 1 1.3,
11.3.2,14.2.4,15.1.7

Claims Subject to Arbitration

154.1

Cleaning Up

3.15,6.3

Commencement of the Work, Conditions Relating to
22.1,322,34.1,3.7.1,3.10.1,3.12.6,5.2.1,5.23,
6.2.2,8.1.2,8.2.2,8.3.1,11.1,11.2,15.1.5
Commencement of the Work, Definition of

8.1.2

Communications

3.9.1,4.24

Completion, Conditions Relating to
34.1,3.11,3.15,4.2.2,4.29,8.2,94.2,9.8,9.9.1,
9.10, 12,2, 14.1.2, 15.1.2

COMPLETION, PAYMENTS AND

9

Completion, Substantial
3.10.1,4.2.9,8.1.1,8.1.3,8.2.3,94.2,9.8,99.1,
9.10.3,12.2, 15.1.2

Compliance with Laws
2.3.2,3.2.3,3.6,3.7,3.12.10, 3.13,9.6.4,10.2.2, 13.1,
13.3,13.4.1,13.4.2, 13,5, 14.1.1, 14.2.1.3, 15.2.8,
154.2,154.3

Concealed or Unknown Conditions
3.74,4.2.8,83.1,10.3

Conditions of the Contract

1.1.1,6.1.1,6.1.4

Consent, Written
34.2,3.14.2,4.1.2,9.8.5,9.9.1,9.10.2,9.10.3, 13.2,
15442

Consolidation or Joinder

15.4.4

CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY
SEPARATE CONTRACTORS

1.14,6

Construction Change Directive, Definition of
7.3.1

Construction Change Directives
1.1.1,34.2,3.11,3.12.8,4.2.8, 7.1.1,7.1.2, 7.1.3, 7.3,
9.3.1.1

Construction Schedules, Contractor’s
3.10,3.11,3.12.1,3.12.2, 6.1.3, 15.1.6.2
Contingent Assignment of Subcontracts
$4,14222

Continuing Contract Performance

15.14

Contract, Definition of

1.1.2

CONTRACT, TERMINATION OR
SUSPENSION OF THE

54.1.1,54.2,11.5, 14

Contract Administration

3.13,4,94,95

Contract Award and Execution, Conditions Relating
to

3.7.1,3.10,5.2, 6.1

Contract Documents, Copies Furnished and Use of
1.5.2,2.3.6,53

Contract Decuments, Definition of

1.1.1

Contract Sum
222,224,374,3.75,38,3.102,523,73,74,
9.1,9.2,94.2,95.14,9.6.7,9.7,10.3.2, 11.5, 12.1.2,
12.3,14.24, 14.3.2, 15.1.4.2, 15.1.5, 15.2.5
Contract Sum, Definition of

9.1

Contract Time
1.1.4,22.1,22.2,3.74,3.75,3.10.2,5.2.3,6.1.5,
7.2.1.3,7.3.1,7.35,7.3.6,7,7,7.3.10,7.4,8.1.1,
8.2.1,8.2.3,83.1,9.5.1,9.7,10.3.2, 12.1.1, 12.1.2,
14.3.2, 15.1.4.2, 15.1.6.1,15.2.5

Contract Time, Definition of

8.1.1

CONTRACTOR

3

Contractor, Definition of

3.1,6.1.2

Contractor’s Construction and Submittal
Schedules

3.10,3.12.1,3.12.2,4.2.3,6.1.3, 15.1.6.2

AlA Document A201 — 2017, Capyright ® 1811, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1866, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights
reserved. “The Amarican Institute of Architacts,” *“American Institute of Architacts,” “"AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents® gre trademarks of The
American InsUtute of Architects. This document was produced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Order No.2114488152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is nol for
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contracdt Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright viclations,

e-mail decinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes:

{2051888975)



Init.

Contractor’s Employees
2.24,33.2,34.3,3.8.1,3.9,3.18.2,4.2.3,4.2.6, 10.2,
103,113, 14.1, 14.2.1.1

Contractor’s Liability Insurance

11.1

Contractor’s Relationship with Separate Contractors
and Owner’s Forces
3.12.5,3.142,424,6,11.3,12.24

Contractor’s Relationship with Subcontractors
1.2.2,2.2.4,3.3.2,3.18.1,3.18.2,4.2 4, 5,9.6.2,9.6.7,
9.102,11.2,11.3,11.4

Contractor’s Relationship with the Architect
1.1.2,1.5,2.3.3,3.1.3,3.2.2,3.2.3,3.24,3.3.1, 34.2,
3.5.1,3.7.4,3.10,3.11,3.12,3.16,3.18,4.2,5.2,6.2.2,
7,83.1,9.2,9.3,94,9.5,9.7,98,99, 10.2.6, 10.3,
113, 12,134, 15.1.3,15.2.1

Contractor’s Representations
3.2.1,3.2.2,35,3.12.6,6.2.2,8.2.1,9.3.3,982
Contractor’s Responsibility for Those Performing the
Work

3.3.2,3.18,5.3,6.1.3,6.2,9.5.1,10.2.8

Contractor’s Review of Contract Documents

32

Contractor’s Right to Stop the Work

222,97

Contractor’s Right to Terminate the Contract

14.1

Contractor’s Submittals
3.10,3.11,3.12,4.2.7,5.2.1,5.2.3,9.2,9.3,9.8.2,
9.8.3,99.1,9.10.2,9.10.3

Contractor’s Superintendent

3.9,10.2.6

Contractor’s Supervision and Construction
Procedures
1.2.2,3.3,34,3.12.10,4.2.2,42.7,6.1.3,6.2.4,7.1.3,
7.3.4,73.6,82,10,12,14,15.1.4

Coordination and Correlation
1.2,3.2.1,3.3.1,3.10,3.12.6, 6.1.3, 6.2.1

Copies Fumished of Drawings and Specifications
1.5,2.3.6,3.11

Copyrights

1.5,3.17

Correction of Work
25,3.73,94.2,9.8.2,9.8.3,99.1,12.1.2,12.2, 12.3,
15.1.3.1,15.1.3.2, 15.2.1

Correlation and Intent of the Contract Documents
1.2

Cost, Definition of

734

Costs
2.5,3.24,3.7.3,3.8.2,3.15.2,5.4.2,6.1.1,6.2.3,
7.3.3.3,7.34,7.3.8,7.3.9,9.10.2,103.2,10.3.6, 11.2,
12.12,12.2.1,12.24,13.4, 14

Cutting and Patching

3.14,6.2.5

Damage to Construction of Owner or Separate
Contractors

3.142,6.24,10.2.1.2,10.2.5,10.4, 12.2.4
Damage to the Work

3.14.2,9.9.1,10.2.1.2,10.2.5, 10.4, 12.2.4
Damages, Claims for
3.24,3.18,61.1,8.3.3,9.5.1,9.6.7,10.3.3, 11.3.2,
11.3,14.24,15.1.7

Damages for Delay

6.2.3,8.3.3,95.16,9.7, 10.3.2,14.3.2

Date of Commencement of the Werk, Definition of
8.1.2

Date of Substantial Completion, Definition of
8.13

Day, Definition of

8.14

Decisions of the Architect
3.74,42.6,42.7,4.2.11,4.2.12,4.2.13,6.3,7.34,
7.3.9,8.1.3,83.1,9.2,9.4,9.5.1,9.84,9.9.1, 134.2,
14.2.2,14.24,15.1, 15.2

Decisions to Withhold Certification
9.4.1,9.5,9.7,14.1.1.3

Defective or Nonconforming Work, Acceptance,
Rejection and Correction of
2.5,3.5,426,6.23,95.1,9.5.3,9.6.6,9.8.2,9.9.3,
9.10.4, 12.2.1

Definitions

1.1,2.1.1,3.1.1, 35,3.12.1, 3.12.2,3.12.3,4.1.1, 5.1,
6.1.2,7.2.1,73.1,8.1,9.1,9.8.1, 15.1.1

Delays and Extensions of Time
3.2,3.74,5.23,72.1,7.3.1, 74, 8.3, 9.5.1, 9.7,
10.3.2, 104, 14.3.2, 15.1.6, 15.2.5

Digital Data Use and Transmission

1.7

Disputes

6.3,7.3.9, 15.1, 15.2

Documents and Samples at the Site

3.1

Drawings, Definition of

L.1.5

Drawings and Specifications, Use and Ownership of
3.1t

Effective Date of Insurance

822

Emergencies

104, 14.1.1.2,15.1.5

Employees, Contractor's
3.3.2,343,38.1,3.9,3.18.2,4.2.3,4.2.6,10.2,
10.3.3,11.3,14.1,14.2.1.1

Equipment, Labor, or Materials

1.1.3, 1.1.6,34, 3.5,3.8.2,3.8.3,3.12,3.13, 3.15.1,
4.26,4.2.7,52.1,6.2.1,7.3.4,9.3.2,9.3.3,9.5.1.3,
9.10.2,10.2.1,10.2.4,14.2.1.1, 14.2.1.2

Execution and Progress of the Work
1.1.3,1.2.1,12,2,2.34,23.6,3.1,3.3.1,34.1,3.7.1,
3.10.1,3.12,3.14,4.2,6.2.2, 7.1.3, 7.3.6, 8.2, 9.5.1,
99.1,10.2,103,12.1,12.2, 14.2, 14.3.1, 15.1.4

AlA Documeni A201 — 2017. Copyright ® 1911, 1815, 1918, 1925, 1837, 1951, 1958, 1861, 1963, 1866, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017, All rights
reserved. "The American Institute of Archilects,” “American Institute of Architects,” "AlA,” the AIA Logo, and "AlA Conlract Documents® are trademarks of The
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Order No.2114498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for
resale, Is licansed for one-time uge only, and may cnly be used In accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations,

e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes:

(2051888975)



Extensions of Time
3.24,3.74,523,7.2.1,7.3,74,9.5.1,9.7, 10.3.2,
104, 14.3, 15.1.6, 15.2.5

Failure of Payment

9.5.1.3,9.7,9.10.2, 13.5, 14.1.1.3, 14.2.1.2
Faulty Work

(See Defective or Nonconforming Work)

Final Completion and Final Payment
42.1,429,982,9.10,12.3,1424,1443
Financial Arrangements, Owner’s
22.1,1322,14.1.14

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1

Governing Law

13.1

Guarantees (See Warranty)

Hazardous Materials and Substances
10.2.4,10.3

Identification of Subcontractors and Suppliers
5.2.1

Indemnification

3.17,3.18,9.6.8,9.10.2, 10.3.3, 11.3
Information and Services Required of the Owner
2.1.2,2.2,2.3,3.2.2,3.12.10.1, 6.1.3,6.1.4, 6.2.5,
9.6.1,9.9.2,9.10.3,10.3.3,11.2, 134.1, 13.4.2,
14.1.14,14.1.4,15.1.4

Initial Decision

15.2

Initial Decision Maker, Definition of

1.1.8

Initial Decision Maker, Decisions
14.24,15.142,152.1,152.2,152.3,15.24, 15.2.5
Initial Decision Maker, Extent of Authority
142.4,15.142,15.2.1,152.2,15.2.3,15.24,15.2.5
Injury or Damage to Person or Property
10.2.8,10.4

Inspections
3.13,3.3.3,3.7.1,42.2,4.2.6,4.2.9,9.4.2,9.8.3,
9.9.2,9.10.1, 12.2.1, 134

Instructions to Bidders

1.1.1

Instructions to the Contractor
3.24,33.1,3.81,52.1,7,82.2,12,134.2
Instruments of Service, Definition of

1.1.7

Insurance
6.1.1,7.34,82.2,9.3.2,9.84,9.9.1,9.102,10.2.5,11
Insurance, Notice of Cancellation or Expiration
11.14,11.2.3

Insurance, Contractor’s Liability

11.1

Insurance, Effective Date of

82.2,1442

Insurance, Owner’s Liabllity

11.2

Insurance, Property

10.2,5,11.2,114, 115

Insurance, Stored Materials

932

INSURANCE AND BONDS

11

Insurance Companies, Consent to Partial Occupancy
9.9.1

Insured loss, Adjustment and Settlement of

11.5

Intent of the Contract Documents
1.2.1,4.2.7,42.12,4.2.13

Interest

13.5

Interpretation

1.1.8,1.2.3,14,4.1.1,5.1,6.1.2, 15.1.1
Interpretations, Written

42.11,4.2.12

Judgment on Final Award

154.2

Labor and Materials, Equipment
1.1.3,1.1.6,34,3.5,3.8.2,3.83,3.12,3.13,3.15.1,
5.2.1,6.2.1,73.4,9.3.2,9.3.3,9.5.1.3,9.10.2, 10.2.1,
10.2.4,14.2.1.1, 14.2.1.2

Labor Disputes

8.3.1

Laws and Regulations
1.5,2.3.2,3.23,324,3.6,3.7,3.12.10,3.13,9.6 4,
9.9.1,10.2.2,13.1,13.3.1, 13.4.2, 13.5, 14, 15.2.8,
154

Liens

2.1.2,9.3.1,93.3,9.6.8,9.10.2,9.104, 15.2.8
Limitations, Statutes of

12.2.5,15.1.2,15.4.1.1

Limitations of Liability
3.2.2,3.5,3.12.10,3.12.10.1, 3.17, 3.18.1,4.2.6,
42.7,62.2,94.2,9.64,9.6.7,9.6.8,10.2.5, 10.3.3,
11.3,12.2.5,13.3.1

Limitations of Time
2.1.2,22,25,3.22,3.10,3.11, 3.12.5,3.15.1,4.2.7,
5.2,53,54.1,6.24,7.3,74,82,9.2,9.3.1,9.33,
9.4.1,9.5,9.6,9.7,9.8,9.9,9.10, 12.2, 134, 14, 15,
15.1.2,15.1.3,15.1.5

Materials, Hazardous

10.2.4,10.3

Materials, Labor, Equipment and
1.1.3,1.1.6,34.1,3.5,3.8.2,38.3,3.12,3.13, 3.15.1,
5.2.1,6.2.1,73.4,9.32,93.3,9.5.1.3,9.10.2,
10.2.1.2, 10.24, 14.2.1.1, 14.2.1.2

Means, Methods, Techniques, Sequences and
Procedures of Construction
3.3.1,3.12.10,4.2.2,4.2.7,94.2

Mechanic’s Lien
2.1.2,9.3.1,9.3.3,9.6.8,9.10.2,9.104, 15.2.8
Mediation
8.3.1,15.1.3.2,152.1,15.2.5,15.2.6,15.3, 15.4.1,
15.4.1.1

Minor Changes in the Work
1.1.1,3.4.2,312.8,428,7.1,7.4

tnit AlA Document A201 — 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1837, 1951, 1958, 1861, 1963, 1866, 1970, 1976, 1887, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights
nit. reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AlA," the AIA Logo, and “AtA Contract Documents™ are trademarks of The
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Order No.2114488152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not (or

I resale, Is licensed for gne-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AJA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations,
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (2051888975)



Init.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

13
Modifications, Definition of
1.1.1

Modifications to the Contract
1.1.1,1.1.2,2.5,3.11,4.1.2,4.2.1,5.2.3,7,8.3.1,9.7,
10.3.2

Mutual Responsibility

6.2

Nonconforming Work, Acceptance of
9.6.6,9.9.3,12.3

Nonconforming Work, Rejection and Correction of
24,2.5,3.5,4.2.6,6.2.4,9.5.1,9.8.2,99.3,9.10.4,
12.2

Notice
16,1.6.1,1.6.2,2.1.2,2.2.2,2.2.3,224,2.5,3.24,
33.1,3.74,3.75,3.9.2,3.12.9,3.12.10, 5.2.1, 7.4,
8.229.6.8,9.7,9.10.1,10.2.8,10.3.2, 11.5,122.2.1,
13.4.1,13.4.2,14.1, 14.2.2, 1442, 15.1.3, 15.1.5,
15.1.6, 15.4.1

Notice of Cancellation or Expiration of Insurance
11.14,11.23

Notice of Claims

1.6.2,2.1.2,3.7.4,9.6.8, 10.2.8, 15.1.3, 15.1.5, 15.1.6,
15.2.8, 15.3.2, 15.4.1

Notice of Testing and Inspections

13.4.1,13.42

Observations, Contractor’s

32,374

Occupancy

23.1,9.6.6,9.8

Orders, Written
1.1.1,2.4,3.9.2,7,82.2,11.5,12.1,12.2.2.1, 13.4.2,
14.3.1

OWNER

2

Ovwner, Definition of

2.1.1

Owner, Evidence of Financial Arrangements
2.2,13.22,14.1.14

Owner, Information and Services Required of the
2.12,2.2,2.3,3.2.2,3.12.10,6.1.3,6.1.4,6.2.5, 9.3.2,
9.6.1,9.6.4,9.9.2,9.10.3,10.3.3,11.2, 13.4.1, 13.4.2,
14.1.1.4,14.1.4,15.1.4

Owner’s Authority
1.5,2.1.1,2.3.32.4,2.5,34.2,3.8.1,3.12.10, 3.14.2,
4.12,424,429,52.1,5.24,54.1,6.1,6.3,7.2.1,
7.3.1,8.2.2,8.3.1,9.3.2,9.5.1,9.6.4,9.9.1,9.10.2,
10.3.2,11.4,11.5,12.2.2,12.3,13.22, 14.3, 14 4,
15.2.7

Owner’s Insurance

11.2

Owner’s Relationship with Subcontractors
1.1.2,5.2,5.3,54,9.6.4,9.10.2, 14.2.2

Owner’s Right to Carry Out the Work

25,1422

Owner’s Right to Clean Up

6.3

Owner’s Right to Perform Construction and to
Award Separate Contracts

6.1

Owner’s Right to Stop the Work

24

Owner’s Right to Suspend the Work

14.3

Owner’s Right to Terminate the Contract
14.2,14.4

Ownership and Use of Drawings, Specifications
and Other Instruments of Service

1.L.1, 1.1.6, 1.1.7, 1.5, 2.3.6, 3.2.2,3.11, 3.17, 4.2.12,
53

Partial Occupancy or Use

9.6.6,9.9

Patching, Cutting and

3.14,6.2.5

Patents

.17

Payment, Applicatiens for
425,739,92,93,94,9.5,9.6.3,9.7,9.8.5,9.10.1,
142.3,14.2.4,144.3

Payment, Certificates for
4.2,5,4.2.9,93.3,9.4,9.5,9.6.1, 9.6.6,9.7, 9.10.1,
9.10.3, 14.1.13, 14.2.4

Payment, Failure of

9.5.1.3,9.7,9.10.2, 13.5, 14.1.1.3, 14.2.1.2
Payment, Final

42.1,42.9,910,12.3,14.2.4, 1443

Payment Bond, Performance Bond and
7.3.44,9.6.7,9.103,11.1.2

Payments, Progress
9.3,9.6,9.8.5,9.10.3,14.2.3,15.14
PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION

9

Payments to Subcontractors
54.2,9.5.1.3,9.6.2,9.6.3,9.6.4,9.6.7,14.2.1.2
PCB

10.3.1

Performance Bond and Payment Bond
7.3.4.4,9.6.7,9.103, 11.1.2

Permits, Fees, Notices and Compliance with Laws
23.1,3.7,3.13,7.3.4.4,10.2.2

PERSONS AND PROPERTY, PROTECTION OF
10

Polychlorinated Biphenyl

10.3.1

Product Data, Definition of

3.12.2

Product Data and Samples, Shop Drawings
3.11,3.12,4.27

Progress and Completion
422,82,9.8,9.9.1,14.14,15.1.4

Progress Payments

9.3,9.6,9.8.5,9.10.3,14.2.3, 15.14

AlA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright ® 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1961, 1958, 1861, 1963, 1866, 1870, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights
reserved. “The American institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” "AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The
Amsrican Institute of Architects, This document was produced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Order No.2114488152 which expires on 12/31/2025. is not for
resals, Is licensed for ore-ime use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Servico. To report copyright violations,

o-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes:

(2051888975)



Project, Definition of

1.14

Project Representatives

42.10

Property Insurance

10.2.5,11.2

Proposal Requirements

1.1.1

PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY
10

Regulations and Laws

1.5,2.3.2,3.2.3, 3.6, 3.7, 3.12.10, 3.13, 9.6 4, 9.9.1,
10.2.2,13.1,13.3,13.4.1,13.4.2, 13.5, 14,15.2.8, 154
Rejection of Work

42.6,12.2.1

Releases and Waivers of Liens

9.3.1,9.10.2

Representations
3.2.1,35,3.12.6,82.1,9.3.3,9.4.2,9.5.1,9.10.1
Representatives
2.1.1,3.1.1,39,4.1.1,4.2.10,13.2.1
Responsibility for Those Performing the Work
33.2,3.18,4.2.2,42.3,53,6.1.3,6.2,6.3,9.5.1, 10
Retainage

9.3.1,9.6.2,9.8.5,9.9.1,9.102,9.10.3

Review of Contract Documents and Field
Conditions by Contractor

3.2,3.12.7,6.1.3

Review of Contractor’s Submittals by Owner and
Architect

3.10.1,3.10.2,3.11, 3.12,4.2,5.2,6.1.3,9.2, 9.8.2
Review of Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples
by Contractor

312

Rights and Remedies
1.1.2,2.4,2.5,3.5,3.7.4,3.15.2,4.2.6,5.3,5.4,6.1,
6.3,7.3.1,83,9.5.1,9.7,10.2.5,10.3, 12.2.1, 12.2.2,
12.2.4,13.3, 14, 154

Royalties, Patents and Copyrights

17

Rules and Notices for Arbitration

15.4.1

Safety of Persons and Property

10.2,104

Safety Precautions and Programs
33.1,422,42.7,53,10.1, 10.2, 104

Samples, Definition of

3.12.3

Samples, Shop Drawings, Product Data and
3.11,3.12,4.2.7

Samples at the Site, Documents and

3.11

Schedule of Values

9.2,9.3.1

Schedules, Construction

3.10,3.12.1,3.12.2,6.1.3, 15.1.6.2

Separate Contracts and Contractors
1.1.4,3.12.5,3.14.2,4.2.4,42.7,6,8.3.1, 12.1.2
Separate Contractors, Definition of

6.1.1

Shop Drawings, Definition of

3.12.1

Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples
3.11,3.12,427

Site, Use of

3.13,6.1.1,6.2.1

Site Inspections
322,33.3,37.1,3.74,42,992,94.2,9.10.1, 134
Site Visits, Architect’s
3.74,422,42.9,94.2,95.1,9.9.2,9.10.1,13.4
Special Inspections and Testing
4.2.6,12.2.1,13.4

Specifications, Definition of

1.1.6

Specifications

1.L1, 1.1.6, 1.2.2,1.5,3.12.10,3.17,4.2.14
Statute of Limitations

15.1.2,15.4.1.1

Stopping the Work

2.22,24,9.7,103, 14.1

Stored Materials

6.2.1,9.3.2,10.2.1.2,10.24

Subcontractor, Definition of

5.1.1

SUBCONTRACTORS

S

Subcontractors, Work by
1.2.2,3.3.2,3.12.1,3.18,4.2.3,5.2.3,53,54,9.3.1.2,
9.6.7

Subcontractual Relations
5.3,54,9.3.1.2,9.6,9.10,10.2.1, 14,1, 14.2.]
Submittals
3.10,3.11,3.12,4.2.7,5.2.1,5.2.3,7.34,9.2,9.3,9.8,
9.9.1,9.10.2,9.10.3

Submittal Schedule

3.10.2,3.12.5,4.2.7

Subrogation, Waivers of

6.1.1,11.3

Substances, Hazardous

10.3

Substantial Completion
429,81.1,8.1.3,8.23,94.2,9.8,9.9.1,9.10.3, 12.2,
15.1.2

Substantial Completion, Definition of

9.8.1

Substitution of Subcontractors

5.23,5.24

Substitution of Architect

233

Substitutions of Materials

342,3.5,738

Sub-subcontractor, Definition of

512

AlA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1858, 1861, 1863, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights

Init. reserved. "The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institule of Architects,” “AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents® are trademarks of The
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 08:37:02 ET cn 11/05/2025 under Order No.2114488152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for
I resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations,
e-mail docinfo@alacontracts.com.
User Notes: (2051888975)



Init.

Subsurface Conditions

3.74

Successors and Assigns

13.2

Superintendent

3.9,10.2.6

Supervision and Construction Procedures
1.2.2,3.3,34,3.12.10,4.2.2,4.2.7,6.1.3,6.2.4,7.1.3,
73.4,8.2,83.1,94.2,10,12, 14, 15.1.4
Suppliers
1.5,3.12.1,4.2.4,4.2.6,5.2.1,9.3,94.2,9.54,9.6,
9.10.5, 14.2.1

Surety

54.1.2,9.6.8,9.8.5,9.10.2,9.10.3, 11.1.2, 14.2.2,
15.2.7

Surety, Consent of

9.8.5,9.10.2,9.10.3

Surveys

1.1.7,2.34

Suspension by the Owner for Convenience
143

Suspension of the Work

3.7.5,54.2,143

Suspension or Termination of the Contract
54.1.1, 14

Taxes

3.6,3.82.1,7.3.44

Termination by the Contractor

14.1, 15.1.7 _
Termination by the Owner for Cause
54.1.1,14.2,15.1.7

Termination by the Owner for Convenience
144

Termination of the Architect

233

Termination of the Contractor Employment
1422

TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE
CONTRACT

14

Tests and Inspections
3.1.3,33.3,3.7.1,4.2.2,42.6,42.9,94.2,9.8.3,
9.9.2,9.10.1,10.3.2, 12.2.1, 134

TIME

8

Time, Delays and Extensions of
3.24,3.74,523,7.2.1,73.1,74,83,9.5.1,9.7,
10.3.2, 104, 14.3.2,15.1.6, 15.2.5

Time Limits

2.1.2,22,25,3.2.2,3.10,3.11, 3.12.5,3.15.1,4.2,
5.2,53,54,62.4,7.3,74,82,9.2,9.3.1,9.3.3,94.1,
9.5,9.6,9.7,98,9.9,9.10,12.2, 134, 14, 15.1.2,
15.1.3, 154

Time Limits cn Claims

3.74,10.28,15.1.2, 15.1.3

Title to Work

9.3.2,93.3

UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK
12

Uncovering of Work

12.1

Unforeseen Conditions, Concealed or Unknown
3.74,83.1,103

Unit Prices

7.33.2,9.1.2

Use of Documents

1.1.1, 1.5, 2.3.6, 3.12.6, 5.3

Use of Site

3.13,6.1.1,621

Values, Schedule of

9.2,%.3.1

Waiver of Claims by the Architect

13.3.2

Waiver of Claims by the Contractor

9.10.5, 13.3.2,15.1.7

Waiver of Claims by the Owner
9.93,9.10.3,9.104, 12.2.2.1, 13.3.2, 14.24, 15.1.7
Waiver of Consequential Damages

14.2.4,15.1.7

Waiver of Liens

9.3,9.10.2,9.10.4

Waivers of Subrogation

6.1.1,11.3

Warranty
3.5,42.9,9.33,9.8.4,9.9.1,9.10.2,9.104, 12.2.2,
1512

Weather Delays

8.3,15.1.6.2

Work, Definition of

1.13

Written Consent
1.5.2,34.2,3.7.4,3.12.8,3.14.2,4.1.2,9.3.2,9.10.3,
13.2,13.3.2,15.44.2

Written Interpretations

42.11,42.12

Written Orders
1.1.1,24,3.9,7,82.2,12.1,12.2,13.4.2, 14.3.1

AlA Document A201 — 2017. Copyright @ 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1897, 2007 and 2017. All rights
reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” "American Institute of Architects,” "AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Order No.2114498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for
tesale, Is licensed for one-time use only, and may only ba used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations,

e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes:

(2051888975)



ARTICLE 1 GENERAL PROVISIONS

§ 1.1 Basic Definitions

§ 1.1.1 The Contract Documents

The Contract Documents are enumerated in the Agreement between the Owner and Contractor (hereinafter the
Agreement) and consist of the Agreement, Conditions of the Contract (General, Supplementary and other Conditions),
Drawings, Specifications, Addenda issued prior to exccution of the Contract, other documents listed in the Agreement,
and Modifications issued after execution of the Contract. A Modification is (1} a written amendment to the Contract
signed by both parties, (2) a Change Order, (3) a Construction Change Direclive, or (4) a written order for a minor
change in the Work issued by the Architect. Unless specifically enumerated in the Agreement, the Contract
Documents do not include the advertisement or invitation to bid, Instructions to Bidders, sample forms, other
information furnished by the Owner in anticipation of receiving bids or proposals, the Contractor’s bid or proposal, or
portions of Addenda relating to bidding or proposal requirements.

§ 1.1.2 The Contract

The Contract Documents form the Contract for Construction. The Contract represents the entire and integrated
agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written
or oral. The Contract may be amended or modified only by a Modification. The Contract Documents shall not be
construed to create a contractual relationship of any kind (1) between the Contractor and the Architect or the
Architect’s consultants, (2) between the Owner and a Subcontractor or a Sub-subcontractor, (3) between the Owner
and the Architect or the Architect’s consultants, or (4) between any persons or entities other than the Owner and the
Contractor. The Architect shall, however, be entitled to performance and enforcement of obligations under the
Contract intended lo facilitate performance of the Architect’s duties.

§ 1.1.3 The Work

The term "Work" means the construction and services required by the Contract Documents, whether completed or
partially completed, and includes ali other labor, materials, equipment, and services provided or to be provided by the
Contractor to fulfill the Contractor’s obligations. The Work may constitute the whole or a part of the Project.

§ 1.1.4 The Project
The Project is the total construction of which the Work performed under the Contract Documents may be the whole or
a part and which may include construction by the Owner and by Separate Contractors.

§ 1.1.5 The Drawings
The Drawings are the graphic and pictorial portions of the Contract Documents showing the design, location and
dimensions of the Work, generally including plans, elevations, sections, details, schedules, and diagrams.

§ 1.1.6 The Specifications
The Specifications are that portion of the Contract Documents consisting of the written requirements for materials,
equipment, systems, standards and workmanship for the Work, and performance of related services.

§ 1.1.7 Instruments of Service

Instruments of Service are representations, in any medium of expression now known or later developed, of the tangible
and intangible creative work performed by the Architect and the Architect’s consultants under their respective
professional services agreements. Instruments of Service may include, without limitation, studies, surveys, models,
sketches, drawings, specifications, and other similar materials.

§ 1.1.8 Initial Decision Maker

The Initial Decision Maker is the person identified in the Agreement to render initial decisions on Claims in
accordance with Section 15.2. The Initial Decision Maker shall not show partiality to the Owner or Contractor and
shall not be liable for results of interpretations or decisions rendered in good faith.

§ 1.2 Correlation and Intent of the Contract Documents

§ 1.2.1 The intent of the Contract Documents is to include all items necessary for the proper exccution and completion
of the Work by the Contractor. The Contract Documents are complementary, and what is required by one shall be as
binding as if required by all; performance by the Contractor shall be required only to the extent consistent with the
Contract Documents and reasonably inferable from them as being necessary to produce the indicated results.

AlA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1861, 1963, 1866, 1870, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights

reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” "American Institute of Architects,” “AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents® are trademarks of The 10
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Order N0.2114498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for

! resale, is licensed for ona-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations,
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (2051888975)

Init.



§ 1.2.1.1 The invalidity of any provision of the Contract Documents shall not invalidate the Contract or its remaining
provisions, If'it is determined that any provision of the Contract Documents violates any law, or is otherwise invalid or
unenforceable, then that provision shall be revised to the extent necessary to make that provision legal and
enforceable. In such casc the Contract Documents shall be construed, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to give
cffect to the parties’ intentions and purposes in executing the Contract.

§ 1.2.2 Organization of the Specifications into divisions, sections and articles, and arrangement of Drawings shall not
control the Contractor in dividing the Work among Subcontractors or in establishing the extent of Work to be
performed by any trade.

§ 1.2.3 Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, words that have well-known technical or construction
industry meanings are used in the Contract Documents in accordance with such recognized meanings.

§ 1.3 Capitafization
Terms capitalized in these General Conditions include those that are (1) specifically defined, (2) the titles of numbered
articles, or (3) the titles of other documents published by the American Institute of Architects.

§ 1.4 Interpretation

In the interest of brevity the Contract Documents frequently omit modifying words such as “all” and "any"” and articles
such as “the” and "an,” but the fact that a modifier or an article is absent from one statement and appears in another is
not intended to affect the interpretation of either statement.

§ 1.5 Ownershlp and Use of Drawings, Specifications, and Other Instruments of Service

§ 1.5.1 The Architect and the Architect’s consultants shall be deemed the authors and owners of their respective
Instruments of Service, including the Drawings and Specifications, and retain all commeon law, statutory, and other
reserved rights in their Instruments of Service, including copyrights. The Contractor, Subcontractors,
Sub-subcontractors, and suppliers shall not own or claim a copyright in the Instruments of Service. Submittal or
distribution to meet official regulatory requirements or for other purposes in connection with the Project is not to be
construed as publication in derogation of the Architect’s or Architect’s consultants’ reserved rights.

§ 1.5.2 The Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and suppliers are authorized to use and reproduce the
Instruments of Service provided to them, subject to any protocols established pursuant to Sections 1.7 and 1.8, solely
and exclusively for execution of the Work. All copies made under this authorization shall bear the copyright notice, if
any, shown on the Instruments of Service. The Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and suppliers may not
use the Instruments of Service on other projects or for additions to the Project outside the scope of the Work without
the specific written consent of the Owner, Architect, and the Architect’s consultants.

§ 1.6 Notice

§ 1.6.1 Except as otherwise provided in Section 1.6.2, where the Contract Documents require one party to notify or
give notice to the other party, such notice shall be provided in writing to the designated representative of the party to
whom the notice is addressed and shall be deemed to have been duly served if delivered in person, by mail, by courier,
or by electronic transmission if a method for electronic transmission is set forth in the Agreement.

§ 1.6.2 Notice of Claims as provided in Section 15.1.3 shall be provide"d in writing and shall be deemed to have been
duly served only if delivered to the designated representative of the party to whom the notice is addressed by certified
or registered mail, or by courier providing proof of delivery.

§ 1.7 Digital Data Use and Transmission
The parties shall agree upon written protocols governing the transmission and use of, and reliance on, Instruments of
Service or any other information or documentation in digital form.

§ 1.8 Building Information Models Use and Reliance

Any use of, or reliance on, all or a portion of a building information model without agreement to written protocols
governing the use of, and reliance on, the information contained in the model shall be at the using or relying party’s
sole risk and without liability to the other party and its contractors or consultants, the authors of, or contributors to, the
building information model, and each of their agents and employees.

tnit AIA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright ® 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1861, 1983, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1887, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights
nit. reserved. “The American Inslitute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AlA," the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The 11
American [nstilute of Architects. This document was produced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Order No.2114488152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for

/ resale, is ficensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations,
@e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: . (2051888975)



Init.

ARTICLE 2 OWNER

§ 2.1 General

§ 2.1.1 The Owner is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to throughout the Contract
Documents as if singular in number. The Owner shall designate in writing a representative who shall have express
authority to bind the Owner with respect to all matters requiring the Owner’s approval or authorization. Except as
otherwise provided in Section 4.2.1, the Architect does not have such authority. The term "Owner" means the Owner
or the Owner’s authorized representative.

§ 2.1.2 The Owner shall fumnish to the Contractor, within fifteen days after receipt of a written request, information
necessary and relevant for the Contractor to evaluate, give notice of, or enforce mechanic’s lien rights. Such
information shall include a correct statement of the record legal title to the property on which the Project is located,
usually referred to as the site, and the Owner’s interest therein.

§ 2.2 Evidence of the Owner's Financial Arrangements

§ 2.2.1 Prior to commencement of the Work and upon written request by the Contractor, the Owner shall fumish to the
Contractor reasonable evidence that the Owner has made financial arrangements to fulfill the Owner's obligations
under the Contract. The Contractor shall have no obligation to commence the Work until the Owner provides such
evidence. If commencement of the Work is delayed under this Section 2.2.1, the Contract Time shail be extended
appropriately.

§ 2.2.2 Following commencement of the Work and upon written request by the Contractor, the Owner shall furnish to
the Contractor reasonable evidence that the Owner has made financial arrangements to fulfill the Owner’s obligations
under the Contract only if (1) the Owner fails to make payments to the Contractor as the Contract Documents require;
(2) the Contractor identifies in writing a reasonable concern regarding the Owner’s ability to make payment when due;
or (3) a change in the Work materially changes the Contract Sum, If the Owner fails to provide such evidence, as
required, within fourteen days of the Contractor’s request, the Contractor may immediately stop the Work and, in that
event, shall notify the Owner that the Work has stopped. However, if the request is made because a change in the Work
materially changes the Contract Sum under (3) above, the Contractor may immediately stop only that portion of the
Work affected by the change until reasonable evidence is provided. If the Work is stopped under this Section 2.2.2, the
Contract Time shall be extended appropriately and the Contract Sum shall be increased by the amount of the
Contractor’s reasonable costs of shutdown, delay and start-up, plus interest as provided in the Contract Documents.

§ 2.2.3 After the Owner furnishes evidence of financial arrangements under this Section 2.2, the Owner shall not
materially vary such financial arrangements without prior notice to the Contractor.

§ 2.2.4 Where the Owner has designated information furnished under this Section 2.2 as "confidential," the Contractor
shall keep the information confidential and shall not disclose it to any other person. However, the Contractor may
disclose "confidential" information, after seven (7) days’ notice to the Owner, where disclosure is required by law,
including a subpoena or other form of compulsory legal process issued by a court or governmental entity, or by court
or arbitrator(s) order. The Contractor may also disclose "confidential” information to its employees, consultants,
sureties, Subcontractors and their employees, Sub-subcontractors, and others who need to know the content of such
information solely and exclusively for the Project and who agree to maintain the confidentiality of such information.

§ 2.3 Information and Services Required of the Owner

§ 2.3.1 Except for permits and fees that are the responsibility of the Contractor under the Contract Documents,
including those required under Section 3.7.1, the Owner shall secure and pay for necessary approvals, easements,
assessments and charges required for construction, use or occupancy of permanent structures or for permanent
changes in existing facilities.

§ 2.3.2 The Owner shall retain an architect lawfully licensed to practice architecture, or an entity lawfully practicing
architecture, in the jurisdiction where the Project is located. That person or entity is identified as the Architect in the
Agreement and is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number.

§ 2.3.3 If the employment of the Architect terminates, the Owner shall employ a successor to whom the Contractor has
no reasonable objection and whose status under the Contract Documents shall be that of the Architect.

AlA Document A201 — 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1837, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1866, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights

reserved. "The American Institute of Architects,” "American Institute of Architects,” "AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AtA Contract Documents® are trademarks of The 12
American [nstitute of Architects. This document was produced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Ordar No.2114498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for
resale, is ficensed for ane-lime use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations,
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracls.com.

User Notes: (2051888975)



§ 2.3.4 The Owner shall funish surveys describing physical characteristics, legal limitations and utility locations for
the site of the Project, and a legal description of the site. The Contractor shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy of
information furnished by the Owner but shall exercise proper precautions relating to the safe performance of the
Work.

§ 2.3.5 The Owner shall furnish information or services required of the Owner by the Contract Documents with
reasonable promptuess. The Owner shall also furnish any other information or services under the Owner’s control and
relevant to the Contractor’s performance of the Work with reasonable prompmess after receiving the Contractor’s
written request for such information or services.

§ 2.3.6 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Owner shall fumish to the Contractor one copy of
the Contract Documents for purposes of making reproductions pursuant to Section 1.5.2.

§ 2.4 Owner's Right to Stop the Work

If the Contractor fails to correct Work that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents as
required by Section 12.2 or repeatedly fails to carry out Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Owner
may issue a written order to the Contractor to stop the Work, or any portion thereof, until the cause for such order has
been eliminated; however, the right of the Owner to stop the Work shall not give rise to a duty on the part of the Owner
to exercise this right for the benefit of the Contractor or any other person or entity, except to the extent required by
Section 6.1.3.

§ 2.5 Owner's Right to Carry Out the Work

If the Contractor defaults or neglects to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents and fails
within a ten-day period after receipt of notice from the Owner to commence and continue correction of such default or
neglect with diligence and promptness, the Owner may, without prejudice to other remedies the Owner may have,
correct such default or neglect. Such action by the Owner and amounts charged to the Contractor are both subject to
prior approval of the Architect and the Architect may, pursuant to Section 9.5.1, withhold or nullify a Certificate for
Payment in whole or in part, to the extent reasonably necessary to reimburse the Owner for the reasonable cost of
correcting such deficiencies, including Owner’s expenses and compensation for the Architect’s additional services
made necessary by such default, neglect, or failure. If current and future payments are not sufficient to cover such
amounts, the Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner. If the Contractor disagrees with the actions of the

Owner or the Architect, or the amounts claimed as costs to the Owner, the Contractor may file a Claim pursuant to
Article 15.

ARTICLE 3 CONTRACTOR

§ 3.1 General

§ 3.1.1 The Contractor is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to throughout the
Contract Documents as if singular in number. The Contractor shall be lawfully licensed, if required in the jurisdiction
where the Project is located. The Contractor shall designate in writing a representative who shall have express
authority to bind the Contractor with respect to all matters under this Contract. The term "Contractor” means the
Contractor or the Contractor's authorized representative.

§ 3.1.2 The Contractor shall perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

§ 3.1.3 The Contractor shall not be relieved of its obligations to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract
Documents either by activities or duties of the Architect in the Architect’s administration of the Contract, or by tests,
inspections or approvals required or performed by persons or entities other than the Contractor.

§ 3.2 Review of Contract Documents and Field Conditions by Contractor

§ 3.2.1 Execution of the Contract by the Contractor is a representation that the Contractor has visited the site, become
generally familiar with local conditions under which the Work is to be performed, and correlated personal
observations with requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 3.2.2 Because the Contract Documents are complementary, the Contractor shall, before starting each portion of the
Work, carefully study and compare the various Contract Documents relative to that portion of the Work, as well as the
information furnished by the Owner pursuant to Section 2.3.4, shall take field measurements of any existing
conditions related to that portion of the Work, and shall observe any conditions at the site affecting it. These

Init AlA Document A201 - 2017, Copyright ® 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1851, 1958, 1861, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights
nit. raserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” "AlA,” the AIA Logo, and “AlA Cantracl Documents” are trademarks of The 13
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Order No.2114498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for
I resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations,
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: {2051888975)



Init.

obligations are for the purpose of facilitating coordination and construction by the Contractor and are not for the
purpose of discovering errors, omissions, or inconsistencies in the Contract Documents; however, the Contractor shall
promptly report to the Architect any errors, inconsistencies or omissions discovered by or made known to the
Contractor as a request for information in such form as the Architect may require. It is recognized that the Contractor’s
review is made in the Contractor’s capacity as a contractor and not as a licensed design professional, unless otherwise
specifically provided in the Contract Documents,

§ 3.2.3 The Contractor is not required to ascertain that the Contract Documents are in accordance with applicable laws,
statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, but the Contractor shall
promptly report to the Architect any nonconformity discovered by or made known to the Contractor as a request for
information in such form as the Architect may require.

§ 3.24 If the Contractor believes that additional cost or time is involved because of clarifications or instructions the
Architect issues in response to the Contractor’s notices or requests for information pursuant to Sections 3.2.2 or 3.2.3,
the Contractor shall submit Claims as provided in Article 15. If the Contractor fails to perform the obligations of
Sections 3.2.2 or 3.2.3, the Contractor shall pay such costs and damages to the Owner, subject to Section 15.1.7, as
would have been avoided if the Contractor had performed such obligations. If the Contractor performs those
obligations, the Contractor shall not be liable to the Owner or Architect for damages resulting from errors,
inconsistencies or omissions in the Contract Documents, for differences between field measurements or conditions
and the Contract Documents, or for nonconformities of the Contract Documents to applicable laws, statutes,
ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities.

§ 3.3 Supervision and Construction Procedures

§ 3.3.1 The Contractor shall supervise and direct the Work, using the Contractor’s best skill and attention. The
Contractor shall be solely responsible for, and have control over, construction means, methods, techniques, sequences,
and procedures, and for coordinating all portions of the Work under the Contract. If the Contract Documents give
specific instructions concerning construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures, the Contractor
shall evaluate the jobsite safety thereof and shall be solely responsible for the jobsite safety of such means, methods,
techniques, sequences, or procedures. If the Contractor determines that such means, methods, techniques, sequences
or procedures may not be safe, the Contractor shall give timely notice to the Owner and Architect, and shall propose
alternative means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures. The Architect shall evaluate the proposed
alternative solely for conformance with the design intent for the completed construction. Unless the Architect objects
to the Contractor’s proposed alternative, the Contractor shall perform the Work using its alternative means, methods,
techniques, sequences, or procedures.

§ 3.3.2 The Contractor shall be responsible and liable to the Owner for acts and omissions of the Contractor’s
employees, Subcontractors and their agents and employees, and other persons or entities performing portions of the
Work for, or on behalf of, the Contractor or any of its Subcontractors.

§ 3.3.3 The Contractor shall be responsible for inspection of portions of Work already performed to determine that
such portions are in proper condition to receive subsequent Work.

§ 3.4 Labor and Materlals

§ 3.4.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall provide and pay for labor,
materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery, water, heat, utilities, transportation, and other
facilities and services necessary for proper execution and completion of the Work, whether temporary or permanent
and whether or not incorporated or to be incorporated in the Work.

§ 3.4.2 Except in the case of minor changes in the Work approved by the Architect in accordance with Section 3.12.8
or ordered by the Architect in accordance with Section 7.4, the Contractor may make substitutions only with the
consent of the Owner, after evaluation by the Architect and in accordancc with a Change Order or Construction
Change Directive,

§ 3.4.3 The Contractor shall enforce strict discipline and good order among the Contractor’s employees and other
persons carrying out the Work, The Contractor shall not permit employment of unfit persons or persons not property
skilled in tasks assigned to them.

AfA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1858, 1861, 1883, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights
reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architocts,” “AlA,” the AIA Logo, and "AlA Contract Documents® are trademarks of The
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Order No.2114498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations,
e-mall docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (2051888975)

14



§ 3.5 Warranty

§ 3.5.1 The Contractor warrants to the Owner and Architect that materials and equipment furnished under the Contract
will be of good quality and new unless the Contract Documents require or permit otherwise. The Contractor further
warrants that the Work will conform to the requirements of the Contract Docuinents and will be free from defects,
except for those inherent in the quality of the Work the Contract Documents require or permit. Work, materials, or
equipment not conforming to these requirements may be considered defective. The Contractor’s warranty excludes
remedy for damage or defect caused by abuse, alterations to the Work not executed by the Contractor, itnproper or
insufficient maintenance, improper operation, or normal wear and tear and normal usage. If required by the Architect,
the Contractor shall furnish satisfactory evidence as to the kind and quality of materials and equipment.

§ 3.5.2 All material, equipment, or other special warranties required by the Contract Documents shall be issued in the
name of the Owner, or shall be transferable to the Owner, and shall commence in accordance with Section 9.8.4.

§ 3.6 Taxes

The Contractor shall pay sales, consumer, use and similar taxes for the Work provided by the Contractor that are
legally enacted when bids are received or negotiations concluded, whether or not yet effective or merely scheduled to
go into effect. Costs for tariff related increases affective after the bid date are not included in this Contract. In the
event of tariff increases on necessary materials after the time that negotiations are concluded, the Owner shall pay the
difference. The Contractor shall make every effort to substitute lower tariff or tariff-free goods wherever possible,
provided such substitutions do not result in a material loss in quality. In the event of tariff decreases on necessary
materials after the time that negotiations are concluded, the Owner shall be entitled to any refund obtained by the
contractor on advanced costs equal to the difference.

§ 3.7 Permits, Fees, Notices and Compliance with Laws

§ 3.7.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall secure and pay for the building
permit as well as for other permits, fees, licenses, and inspections by government agencies necessary for proper
execution and completion of the Work that are customarily secured after execution of the Contract and legally required
at the time bids are received or negotiations concluded.

§ 3.7.2 The Contractor shall comply with and give notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes,
rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities applicable to performance of the Work.

§ 3.7.3 If the Contractor performs Work knowing it to be contrary to applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules
and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, the Contractor shall assume appropriate responsibility for such
Work and shall bear the costs attributable to correction.

§ 3.7.4 Concealed or Unknown Conditions

If the Contractor encounters conditions at the site that are (1) subsurface or otherwise concealed physical conditions
that differ materially from those indicated in the Contract Documents or (2) unknown physical conditions of an
unusual nature that differ materially from those ordinarily found to exist and generally recognized as inherent in
construction activities of the character provided for in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall promptly provide
notice to the Owner and the Architect before conditions are disturbed and in no event later than 14 days after first
observance of the conditions. The Architect will promptly investigate such conditions and, if the Architect determines
that they differ materially and cause an increase or decrease in the Contractor’s cost of, or time required for,
perforinance of any part of the Work, will recommend that an equitable adjustment be made in the Contract Sum or
Contract Time, or both. If the Architect determines that the conditions at the site are not materially different from those
indicated in the Contract Documents and that no change in the terms of the Contract is justified, the Architect shall
promptly notify the Owner and Contractor, stating the reasons. If either party disputes the Architect’s determination or
recommendation, that party may submit a Claim as provided in Article 15.

§ 3.7.5If, in the course of the Work, the Contractor encounters human remains or recognizes the existence of burial
markers, archaeological sites or wetlands not indicated in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall immediately
suspend any operations that would affect them and shall notify the Owner and Architect. Upon receipt of such notice,
the Owner shall promptly take any action necessary to obtain governmental authorization required to resume the
operations. The Contractor shall continue to suspend such operations until otherwise instructed by the Owner but shall

Init AJA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1815, 1918, 1925, 1837, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. Al rights
. reserved. "The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documaents” are trademarks of The 15
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Order No.2114498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for
[} resale, is ficensed for cne-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AlA Conlract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations,
e-mall docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (2051888975)

A



continue with all other operations that do not affect those remains or features. Requests for adjustments in the Contract
Sum and Contract Time arising from the existence of such remains or features may be made as provided in Article 15.

§ 3.8 Allowances

§ 3.8.1 The Contractor shall include in the Contract Sum all allowances stated in the Contract Documents. Items
covered by allowances shall be supplied for such amounts and by such persons or entities as the Owner may direct, but
the Contractor shall not be required to employ persons or entities to whom the Contractor has reasonable objection.

§ 3.8.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents,

1 allowances shall cover the cost to the Contractor of materials and equipment delivered at the site and all
required taxes, less applicable trade discounts;

.2 Contractor’s costs for unloading and handling at the site, labor, installation costs, overhead, profit, and
other expenses contemplated for stated allowance amounts shall be included in the Contract Sum but
not in the allowances; and

.3 whenever costs are more than or less than allowances, the Contract Sum shall be adjusted accordingly
by Change Order. The amount of the Change Order shall reflect (1) the difference between actual costs
and the allowances under Section 3.8.2.1 and (2) changes in Contractor’s costs under Section 3.8.2.2.

§ 3.8.3 Materials and equipment under an allowance shall be selected by the Owner with reasonable promptness.

§ 3.9 Superintendent

§ 3.9.1 The Contractor shall employ a competent superintendent and necessary assistants who shall be in attendance at
the Project site during performance of the Work. The superintendent shall represent the Contractor, and
communications altering work which is different from the Contract Documents should be given in writing to the ECCI
Project Manager or (John Deloia) and shall be as binding as if given to the Contractor.

§ 3.9.2 The Contractor, as soon as practicable after award of the Contract, shall notify the Owner and Architect of the
name and qualifications of a proposed superintendent. Within 14 days of receipt of the information, the Architect may
notify the Contractor, stating whether the Owner or the Architect (1) has reasonable objection to the proposed
superintendent or (2) requires additional time for review. Failure of the Architect to provide notice within the 14-day
period shall constitute notice of no reascnable objection.

§ 3.9.3 The Contractor shall not employ a proposed superintendent to whom the Owner or Architect has made
reasonable and timely objection. The Contractor shall not change the superintendent without the Owner’s consent,
which shall not unreasonably be withheld or delayed.

§ 3.10 Contractor's Construction and Submittal Schedules

§ 3.10.1 The Contractor, promptly after being awarded the Contract, shall submit for the Owner’s and Architect’s
information a Contractor’s construction schedule for the Work. The schedule shall contain detail appropriate for the
Project, including (1) the date of commencement of the Work, interim schedule milestone dates, and the date of
Substantial Completion; (2) an apportionment of the Work by construction activity; and (3) the time required for
completion of each portion of the Work. The schedule shall provide for the orderly progression of the Work to
completion and shall not exceed time limits current under the Contract Documents. The schedule shall be revised at
appropriate intervals as required by the conditions of the Work and Project.

§ 3.10.2 The Contractor will work with the Architect to coordinate the submittal delivery to allow Architect reasonable
amount of time to review without impact to the Contractor’s construction schedule.

§ 3.10.3 The Contractor shall perform the Work in general accordance with the most recent schedules submitted to the
Owner and Architect.

§ 3.11 Documents and Samples at the Site

The Contractor shall make available, at the Project site, the Contract Documents, including Change Orders,
Construction Change Directives, and other Medifications, in good order and marked currently to indicate field
changes and selections made during construction, and the approved Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and
similar required submittals. These shall be in electronic form or paper copy, available to the Architect and Owner, and

AlA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1818, 1925, 1837, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1897, 2007 and 2017. All rights

reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AlA,” the AlA Lago, and "AlA Contract Documents™ are trademarks of The 16
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Order No.2114488152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for

! rosale, Is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AlA Contract Documenis® Terms of Service. To repart copyright viclations,
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (2051888975)

Init.



Init.

delivered to the Architect for submittal to the Owner upon completion of the Work as a record of the Work as
constructed.

§ 3.12 Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples

§ 3.12.1 Shop Drawings are drawings, diagrams, schedules, and other data specially prepared for the Work by the
Contractor or a Subcontractor, Sub-subcontractor, manufacturer, supplier, or distributor to illustrate some portion of
the Work.

§ 3.12.2 Product Data are illustrations, standard schedules, performance charts, instructions, brochures, diagrams, and
other information furnished by the Contractor to illustrate materials or equipment for some portion of the Work.

§ 3.12.3 Samples are physical examples that illustrate materials, equipment, or workmanship, and establish standards
by which the Work will be judged.

§ 3.12.4 Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and similar submittals are not Contract Documents. Their purpose is
to demonstrate how the Contractor proposes to conform to the information given and the design concept expressed in
the Contract Documents for those portions of the Work for which the Contract Documents require submittals. Review
by the Architect is subject to the limitations of Section 4.2.7. Informational submittals upon which the Architect is not
expected to take responsive action may be so identified in the Contract Documents. Submittals that are not required by
the Contract Documents may be retumed by the Architect without action,

§ 3.12.5 The Contractor shall review for compliance with the Contract Documents, approve, and submit to the
Architect, Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and similar submittals required by the Contract Documents, with
reasonable promptness and in such sequence as to cause no delay in the Work or in the activities of the Owner or of
Separate Contractors.

§ 3.12.8 By submitting Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and similar submittals, the Contractor represents to
the Owner and Architect that the Contractor has (1) reviewed and approved them, (2) determined and verified
materials, field measurements and field construction criteria related thereto, or will do so, and (3) checked and
coordinated the information contained within such submittals with the requirements of the Work and of the Contract
Documents.

§ 3.12.7 The Contractor shall perform no portion of the Work for which the Contract Documents require submittal and
review of Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, or similar submittals, until the respective submittal has been
approved by the Architect.

§ 3.12.8 The Work shall be in accordance with approved submittals except that the Contractor shall not be relieved of
responsibility for deviations from the requirements of the Contract Documents by the Architect’s approval of Shop
Drawings, Product Data, Samples, or similar submittals, unless the Contractor has specifically notified the Architect
of such deviation at the time of submittal and (1) the Architect has given wriften approval o the specific deviation as a
minor change in the Work, or (2) a Change Order or Construction Change Directive has been issued authorizing the
deviation. The Contractor shall not be relicved of responsibility for errors or omissions in Shop Drawings, Product
Data, Samples, or similar submittals, by the Architect’s approval thereof.

§ 3.12.9 The Contractor shall direct specific attention, in writing or on resubmitted Shop Drawings, Product Data,
Samples, or similar submittals, to revisions other than those requested by the Architect on previous submittals. In the
absence of such notice, the Architect’s approval of a resubmission shall not apply to such revisions.

§ 3.12.10 The Contractor shall not be required to provide professional services that constitute the practice of
architecture or engineering unless such services are specifically required by the Contract Docuinents for a portion of
the Work or unless the Contractor needs to provide such services in order to carry out the Contractor's responsibilities
for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures. The Contractor shall not be required to
provide professional services in violation of applicable law.

K

§ 3.12.10.1 If professional design services or certifications by a design professional related to systems, materials, or
equipment are specifically required of the Contractor by the Contract Documents, the Owner and the Architect will
specify all performance and design criteria that such services must sa(is_fy. The Contractor shall be entitled to rely upon

AlA Document A201 — 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1861, 1883, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights
reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” *“American Institute of Architects,” "AlA,” the AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents® are trademarks of The
American Institute of Architects. This d nl was produced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Order No.2114498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright viofations,
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notos: - (2051888975)

IR
o s

e |

17



the adequacy and accuracy of the performance and design criteria provided in the Contract Decuments. The
Contractor shall cause such services or certifications to be provided by an appropriately licensed design professional,
whose signature and seal shall appear on all drawings, calculations, specifications, certifications, Shop Drawings, and
other submittals prepared by such professional. Shop Drawings, and other submittals related to the Work, designed or
certified by such professional, if prepared by others, shall bear such professional’s written approval when submitted to
the Architect. The Owner and the Architect shall be entitled to rely upon the adequacy and accuracy of the services,
certifications, and approvals performed or provided by such design professionals, provided the Owner and Architect
have specified to the Contractor the performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy. Pursuant to this
Section 3.12.10, the Architect will review and approve or take other appropriate action on submittals only for the
limited purpose of checking for conformance with information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract
Documents.

§ 3.12.10.2 If the Contract Documents require the Contractor’s design professional to certify that the Work has been
performed in accordance with the design criteria, the Contractor shall furnish such certifications to the Architect at the
time and in the form specified by the Architect.

§ 3.13 Use of Site

The Contractor shall confine operations at the site to areas permitted by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes,
rules and regulations, lawful orders of public authorities, and the Contract Documents and shall not unreasonably
encumber the site with materials or equipment.

§ 3.14 Cutting and Patching

§ 3.14.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for cutting, fitting, or patching required to complete the Work or to make
its parts fit together properly. All areas requiring cutting, fitting, or patching shall be restored to the condition existing
prior to the cutting, fitting, or patching, unless otherwise required by the Contract Documents.

§ 3.14.2 The Contractor shall not damage or endanger a portion of the Work or fully or partially completed
construction of the Owner or Separate Contractors by cutting, patching, or otherwise altering such construction, or by
excavation. The Contractor shall not cut or otherwise alter construction by the Owner or a Separate Contractor except
with wrilten consent of the Owner and of the Separate Contractor. Consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. The
Contractor shall not unreasonably withhold, from the Owner or a Separate Contractor, its consent to cutting or
otherwise altering the Work.

§ 3.15 Cleaning Up

§ 3.15.1 The Contractor shall keep the premises and surrounding area free from accumulation of waste materials and
rubbish caused by operations under the Contract. At completion of the Work, the Contractor shall remove waste
materials, rubbish, the Contractor’s tools, construction equipment, machinery, and surplus materials from and about
the Project.

§ 3.15.2 If the Contractor fails to clean up as provided in the Contract Documents, the Owner may do so and the Owner
shall be entitled to reimbursement from the Contractor.

§ 3.16 Access to Work
The Contractor shall provide the Owner and Architect with access to the Work in preparation and progress wherever
located.

§ 3.17 Royalties, Patents and Copyrights

The Contractor shall pay all royalties and license fees. The Contractor shall defend suits or claims for infringement of
copyrights and patent rights and shall hold the Owner and Architect harmless from loss on account thereof, but shall
not be responsible for defense or loss when a particular design, process, ot product of a particular manufacturer or
manufacturers is required by the Contract Documents, or where the copyright violations are contained in Drawings,
Specifications, or other documents prepared by the Owner or Architect. However, if an infringement of a copyright or
patent is discovered by, or made known to, the Contractor, the Contractor shall be responsible for the loss unless the
information is promptly furnished to the Architect.

AlA Documsnt A201 - 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1861, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights

reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American [nstitute of Architects,” “AlA,” the AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The 18
American institute of Architects. This document was produced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Order No.2114488152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for

! rosale, is licensed for one-tims use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations,
e-mall docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: {2051888975)

Init.



§ 3.18 Indemnification

§ 3.18.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harinless the Owner, its
officials, agents, employees and volunteers Architect, Architect's consultants, and agents and employees of any of
them from and against claims, damages, losses, and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, arising out
of or resulting from performance of the Work, provided that such claim, damage, loss, or expense is attributable to
bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the Work itself),
but only to the extent caused by the negligent acts or omissions of the Contractor, a Subcontractor, anyone directly or
indirectly employed by them, or anyone for whose acts they may be liable, regardless of whether or not such claim,
damage, loss, or expense is caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder. Such obligation shall not be construed to
negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or obligations of indemnity that would otherwise exist as to a party or person
described in this Section 3.18. The Contractor’s indemnification obligations shall survive the term animation or
expiration of this agreement,

§ 3.18.2 In claims against any person or entity indemnified under this Section 3.18 by an employee of the Contractor,
a Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them, or anyone for whose acts they may be liable, the
indemnification obligation under Section 3.18.1 shall not be limited by a limilation on amount or type of damages,
compensation, or benefits payable by or for the Contractor or a Subcontractor under workers’ compensation acts,
disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts.

ARTICLE 4 ARCHITECT

§ 4.1 General

§ 4.1.1 The Architect is the person or entity retained by the Owner pursuant to Section 2.3.2 and identified as such in
the Agreement.

§ 4.1.2 Duties, responsibilities, and limitations of authority of the Architect as set forth in the Contract Documents
shall not be restricted, modified, or extended without written consent of the Owner, Contractor, and Architect. Consent
shall not be unreasonably withheld.

§ 4.2 Administration of the Contract

§ 4.2.1 The Architect will provide administration of the Contract as descrlbed in the Contract Documents and will be
an Owner’s representative during construction until the date the Architect issues the final Certificate for Payment. The
Architect will have authority to act on behalf of the Owner only to the extent provided in the Contract Documents.

§ 4.2.2 The Architect will visit the site at intervals appropriate to the stage of construction, or as otherwise agreed with
the Owner, to become generally familiar with the progress and quality of the portion of the Work completed, and to
determine in general if the Work observed is being performed in a manner indicating that the Work, when fully
completed, will be in accordance with the Contract Documents. However, the Architect will not be required to make
exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work. The Architect will not have
control over, charge of, or responsibility for the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or
for the safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work, since these are solely the Contractor's rights and
responsibilities under the Contract Documents.

§ 4.2.3 On the basis of the site visits, the Architect will keep the Owner reasonably inforied about the progress and
quality of the portion of the Work completed, and promptly report to the Owner (1) known deviations from the
Contract Documents, (2) known deviations from the most recent construction schedule submitted by the Contractor,
and (3) defects and deficiencies observed in the Work. The Architect will not be responsible for the Contractor’s
failure to perform the Work in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. The Architect will not
have control over or charge of, and will not be responsible for acts or omissions of, the Contractor, Subcontractors, or
their agents or employees, or any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work.

§ 4.2.4 Communications

The Owner and Contractor shall include the Architect in all communications that relate to or affect the Architect's
services or professional responsibilities. Communications by and with the Architect’s consultants shall be through the
Architect. Communications by and with Subcontractors and suppliers shall be through the Contractor.
Communications by and with Separate Contractors shall be through the Owner. The Contract Documents may specify
other communication protocols.

Init AlA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright ® 1911, 1915, 1818, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1861, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights
y reserved. ‘The American Institute of Architects,” "American Institute of Architects,” “AlA,” the AIA Logo, and "AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The 19
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Order No.2114488152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for

{ resale, is icensed for one-time use only, and may only ba used in accordance with the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations,
e-mail docinfo@alacontracts.com.
User Notes: R (2051888975)



init.

§ 4.2.5 Based on the Architect’s evaluations of the Contractor’s Applications for Payment, the Architect will review
and certify the amounts due the Contractor and will issue Certificates for Payment in such amounts.

§ 4.2.6 The Architect has authority to reject Work that does not conform to the Contract Documents. Whenever the
Architect considers it necessary or advisable, the Architect will have authorily to require inspection or testing of the
Work in accordance with Sections 13.4.2 and 13.4.3, whether or not the Work is fabricated, installed or completed.
However, neither this authority of the Architect nor a decision made in good faith either to exercise or not to exercise
such authority shall give rise to a duty or responsibility of the Architect to the Contractor, Subcontractors, suppliers,
their agents or employees, or other persons or entities performing portions of the Work.

§ 4.2.7 The Architect will review and approve, or take other appropriate action upon, the Contractor’s submittals such
as Shop Drawings, Product Data, and Samples, but only for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with
information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents. The Architect’s action will be taken,
with reasonable promptness while allowing sufficient time in the Architect’s professional judgment to permit adequate
review, provided said review does not exceed 10 days from the date of submission. Review of such submittals is not
conducted for the purpose of determining the accuracy and completeness of other details such as dimensions and
quantities, or for substantiating instructions for installation or performance of equipment or systems, all of which
remain the responsibility of the Contractor as required by the Contract Documents. The Architect’s review of the
Contractor’s submittals shall not relieve the Contractor of the obligations under Sections 3.3, 3.5, and 3.12. The
Architect’s review shall not constitute approval of safety precautions or of any construction means, methods,
techniques, sequences, or procedures. The Architect’s approval of a specific item shall not indicate approval of an
assembly of which the item is a component.

§ 4.2.8 The Architect will prepare Change Orders and Construction Change Directives, and may order minor changes
in the Work as provided in Section 7.4. The Architect will investigate and make determinations and recommendations
regarding concealed and unknown conditions as provided in Section 3.7.4.

§ 4.2.9 The Architect will conduct inspections to determine the date or dates of Substantial Completion and the date of
final completion; issue Certificates of Substantial Completion pursuant to Section 9.8; receive and forward to the
Owner, for the Owner’s review and records, written warranties and related doecuments required by the Contract and
assembled by the Contractor pursuant to Section 9.10; and issue a final Certificate for Payment pursuant to

Section 9.10.

§ 4.2.10 If the Owner and Architect agree, the Architect will provide one or more Project representatives to assist in
carrying out the Architect's responsibilities at the site. The Owner shall notify the Contractor of any change in the
duties, responsibilities and limitations of authority of the Project representatives.

§ 4.2.11 The Architect will interpret and decide matters concerning performance under, and requirements of|, the
Contract Documents on written request of either the Owner or Contractor. The Architect’s response to such requests
will be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon or otherwise with reasonable promptness.

§ 4.2.12 Interpretations and decisions of the Architect will be consistent with the intent of, and reasonably inferable
from, the Contract Documents and will be in writing or in the form of drawings. When making such interpretations
and decisions, the Architect will endeavor to secure faithful performance by both Owner and Contractor, will not show
partiality to either, and will not be liable for results of interpretations or decisions rendered in good faith.

§ 4.2.13 The Architect’s decisions on matters relating to aesthetic effect will be final if consistent with the intent
expressed in the Contract Documents.

§ 4.2.14 The Architect will review and respond to requests for information about the Contract Documents. The
Architect’s response to such requests will be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon or otherwise with
reasonable promptness. If appropriate, the Architect will prepare and issue supplemental Drawings and Specifications
in response to the requests for information.

AlA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1870, 1976, 1987, 1897, 2007 and 2017. All sights

reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents® are trademarks of The 20
Amaerican Institute of Architacts. This documant was produced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Order No.2114488152 which expires on 12/31/2025, Is not for
rasale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only ba used in accordance with the AlA Contract Documsnts® Terms of Sesvice. To reperl copyright violations.
e-mail docinfo@alacontracts.com.

User Notes: (2051888975)



ARTICLE 5 SUBCONTRACTORS

§ 5.1 Definitions

§ 5.1.1 A Subcontractor is a person or entity who has a direct contract with the Contractor to perform a portion of the
Work at the site. The term "Subcontractor” is refetrred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number
and means a Subcontractor or an authorized representative of the Subcontractor. The term "Subcontractor” does not
include a Separate Contractor or the subcontractors of a Separate Contractor.

§ 5.1.2 A Sub-subcontractor is a person or entity who has a direct or indirect contract with a Subcontractor to perform
a portion of the Work at the site. The term “Sub-subcontractor” is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if
singular in number and means a Sub-subcontractor or an authorized representative of the Sub-subcontractor.

| § 5.2 Award of Subcontracts and Other Contracts for Portions of the Work
§ 5.21

§ 5.2.2 The Contractor shall not contract with a proposed person or entity to whom the Owner or Architect has made
reasonable and timely objection. The Contractor shall not be required to contract with anyone to whom the Contractor
has made reasonable objection.

(Paragraph deleted)
§ 5.2.

§ 5.2.4 The Contractor shall not substitute a Subcontractor, person, or entity for one previously selected if the Owner
or Architect makes reasonable objection to such substitution.

§ 5.3 Subcontractual Relations

By appropriate written agreement, the Contractor shall require each Subcontractor, to the extent of the Work to be
performed by the Subcontractor, to be bound to the Contractor by terms of the Contract Documents, and to assume
toward the Contractor all the obligations and responsibilities, including the responsibility for safety of the
Subcontractor’s Work that the Contractor, by these Contract Documents, assumes toward the Owner and Architect.
Each subcontract agreement shall preserve and protect the rights of the Owner and Architect under the Contract
Documents with respect to the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor so that subcontracting thereof will not
prejudice such rights, and shall allow to the Subcontractor, unless specifically provided otherwise in the subcontract
agreement, the benefit of all rights, remedies, and redress against the Contractor that the Contractor, by the Contract
Documents, has against the Owner. Where appropriate, the Contractor shall require each Subcontractor to enter into
similar agreements with Sub-subcontractors. The Contractor shall make available to each proposed Subcentractor,
prior to the execution of the subcontract agreement, copies of the Contract Documents to which the Subcontractor will
be bound, and, upon written request of the Subcontractor, identify to the Subcontractor terms and conditions of the
proposed subcontract agreement that may be at variance with the Contract Documents. Subcontractors will similarly
make copies of applicable portions of such documents available to their respective proposed Sub-subcontractors.

§ 5.4 Contingent Assignment of Subcontracts
§ 5.4.1 Each subcontract agreement for a portion of the Work is assigned by the Contractor to the Owner, provided that
.4 assignment is effective only after termination of the Contract by the Owner for cause pursuant to
Section 14.2 and only for those subcontract agreements that the Owner accepts by notifying the
Subcontractor and Contractor; and
.2 assignment is subject to the prior rights of the surety, if any, obligated under bond relating to the
Contract.

When the Owner accepts the assignment of a subcontract agreement, the Owner assumes the Contractor’s rights and
obligations under the subcontract.

§ 5.4.2 Upon such assignment, if the Work has been suspended for more than 30 days, the Subcontractor’s
compensation shall be equitably adjusted for increases in cost resulting from the suspension.

§ 5.4.3 Upon assignment to the Owner under this Section 5.4, the Owner may further assign the subcontract to a
successor contractor or other entity. If the Owner assigns the subcontract to asuccessor contractor or other entity, the

Init AlA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright ® 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1863, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights
nit. reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documentis™ are trademarks of The 21
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Order No.2114498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for
{ resale, is licensed for ono-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations.
e-mail docinfe@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (2051888975)



Owner shall nevertheless remain legally responsible for all of the successor contractor’s obligations under the
subcontract.

ARTICLE 6 CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS

§ 6.1 Owner's Right to Perform Construction and to Award Separate Contracts

§ 6.1.f The term "Separate Contractor(s)" shall mean other contractors retained by the Owner under separate
agreements. The Owner reserves the right to perform construction or operations related to the Project with the
Owner’s own forces, and with Separate Contractors retained under Conditions of the Contract substantially similar to
those of this Contract, including those provisions of the Conditions of the Contract related to insurance and waiver of
subrogation.

§ 6.1.2 When separate contracts are awarded for different portions of the Project or other construction or operations on
the site, the term "Contractor” in the Contract Documents in each case shall mean the Contractor who executes each
separate Owner-Contractor Agreement.

§ 6.1.3 The Owner shall provide for coordination of the activities of the Owner’s own forces and of each Separate
Contractor with the Work of the Contractor, who shall cooperate with them, The Contractor shall participate with any
Separate Contractors and the Owner in reviewing their construction schedules. The Contractor shall make any
revisions to its construction schedule deemed necessary after a joint review and mutual agreement. The construction
schedules shall then constitute the schedules to be used by the Contractor, Separate Contractors, and the Owner until
subsequently revised.

§ 6.1.4 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, when the Owner performs construction or operations
related to the Project with the Owner's own forces or with Separate Contractors, the Owner or its Separate Contractors
shall have the same obligations and rights that the Contractor has under the Conditions of the Contract, including,
without excluding others, those stated in Article 3, this Article 6, and Articles 10, 11, and 12.

§ 6.2 Mutual Responsibility

§ 6.2.1 The Contractor shall afford the Owner and Separate Contractors reasonable opportunity for introduction and
storage of their materials and equipment and performance of their activities, and shall connect and coordinate the
Contractor’s construction and operations with theirs as required by the Contract Documents.

§ 6.2.2 If part of the Contractor’'s Work depends for proper execution or resulls upon construction or operations by the
Owner or a Separate Contraclor, the Contractor shall, prior to proceeding with that portion of the Work, promptly
notify the Architect of apparent discrepancies or defects in the construction or operations by the Owner or Separate
Contractor that would render it unsuitable for proper execution and results of the Contractor’s Work. Failure of the
Contractor to notify the Architect of apparent discrepancies or defects prior to proceeding with the Work shall
constitute an acknowledgment that the Owner’s or Separate Contractor’s completed or partially completed
construction is fit and proper to receive the Contractor’s Work. The Contractor shall not be responsible for
discrepancies or defects in the construction or operations by the Owner or Separate Contractor that are not apparent.

§ 6.2.3 The Contractor shall reimburse the Owner for costs the Owner incurs that are payable to a Separate Contractor
because of the Contractor’s delays, improperly timed activities or defective construction. The Owner shall be
responsible to the Contractor for costs the Contractor incurs because of a Separate Contractor’s delays, improperly
timed activities, damage to the Work or defective construction.

§ 6.2.4 The Contractor shall promptly remedy damage that the Contractor wrongfully causes to completed or partially
completed construction or to property of the Owner or Separate Contractor as provided in Section 10.2.5.

§ 6.2.5 The Owner and each Separate Contractor shall have the same responsibilities for cutting and patching as are
described for the Contractor in Section 3.14.

§ 6.3 Owner's Right to Clean Up

If a dispute arises among the Contractor, Separate Contractors, and the Owner as to the responsibility under their
respective contracts for maintaining the premises and surrounding area free from waste materials and rubbish, the
Owner may clean up and the Architect will allocate the cost among those responsible. Contractor requires a
notification prior to any action being taken by the Owner.

AlA Document A201 — 2017. Copyright ® 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1968, 1961, 1863, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1887, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All righls

reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” "AlA,” the AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The 22
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Order No.2114488152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for

i resale, is licensed for one-tlme use oniy, and may only be used in accordance with the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright viclations,
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (2051888975)

Init.



ARTICLE 7 CHANGES IN THE WORK

§ 7.1 General

§ 7.1.1 Changes in the Work may be accomplished after execution of the Contract, and without invalidating the
Contract, by Change Order, Construction Change Directive or order for a miror change in the Work, subject to the
limitations stated in this Article 7 and elsewhere in the Contract Documents.

§ 7.1.2 A Change Order shall be based upon agreement among the Owner, Contractor, and Architect. A Construction
Change Directive requires agreement by the Owner and Architect and may or may not be agreed to by the Contractor.
An order for a minor change in the Work may be issued by the Architect alone.

§ 7.1.3 Changes in the Work shal! be performed under applicable provisions of the Contract Documents. The
Contractor shall proceed promptly with changes in the Work, unless otherwise provided in the Change Order,
Construction Change Directive, or order for a minor change in the Work.

§ 7.2 Change Orders
§ 7.21 A Change Order is a written instrument prepared by the Architect and signed by the Owner, Contractor, and
Architect stating their agrecment upon all of the following:

A The change in the Work;

2  The amount of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Sum, and

3 The extent of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Time.

§ 7.3 Construction Change Directives

§ 7.3.1 A Construction Change Directive is a written order prepared by the Architect and signed by the Owner and
Architect, directing a change in the Work prior to agreement on adjustment, if any, in the Contract Sum or Contract
Time, or both. The Owner may by Construction Change Directive, without invalidating the Contract, order changes in
the Work within the general scope of the Contract consisting of additions, deletions, or other revisions, the Contract
Sum and Contract Time being adjusted accordingly.

§ 7.3.2 A Construction Change Directive shall be used in the absence of total agreement on the terms of a Change
Order.

§ 7.3.3 If the Construction Change Directive provides for an adjustment to the Contract Sum, the adjustment shall be
based on one of the following methods:
4 Mutual acceptance of a lump sum properly itemized and supported by sufficient substantiating data to

permit evaluation;
2 Unit prices stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed upon;
3 Cost to be determined in a manner agreed upon by the parties and a mutually acceptable fixed or

percentage fee; or
4  Asprovided in Section 7.3.4.

§ 7.3.4 If the Contractor does not respond promptly or disagrees with the method for adjustment in the Contract Sum,
the Architect shall determine the adjustment on the basis of reasonable expenditures and savings of those performing
the Work attributable to the change, including, in case of an increase in the Contract Sum, an amount for overhead and
profit as set forth in the Agreement, or if no such amount is set forth in the Agreement, a reasonable amount. In such
case, and also under Section 7.3.3.3, the Contractor shall keep and present, in such form as the Architect may
prescribe, an itemized accounting together with appropriate supporting data. Unless otherwise provided in the
Contract Documents, costs for the purposes of this Section 7.3.4 shall be limited to the following:
.1 Costs of labor, including applicable payroll taxes, fringe benefits required by agreement or custom,
workers' compensation insurance, and other employee costs approved by the Architect;
2 Costs of materials, supplies, and equipment, including cost of transportation, whether incorporated or
consumed;
.3 Rental costs of machinery and equipment, exclusive of hand tools, whether rented from the Contractor
or others; .
4 Costs of premiums for all bonds and insurance, permit fees, and sales, use, or similar taxes, dircctly
related to the change; and )
.5  Costs of supervision and field office personnel directly attributable to the change.

Init AlA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright ® 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1858, 1861, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights
. reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” *American Institute of Architects,” “A1A," the AlA Logo, and "AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The
American Institute of Architects. This document was praduced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Order No.2114498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for

i resale, is ficensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AlA Cantract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright viotations,
a-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com,
Usor Notes: . (2051888975)

i



§ 7.3.5 If the Contractor disagrees with the adjustment in the Contract Time, the Contractor may make a Claim in
accordance with applicable provisions of Article 15.

§ 7.3.6 Upon receipt of a Construction Change Directive, the Contractor shall promptly proceed with the change in the
Work involved and advise the Architect of the Contractor’s agreement or disagreement with the method, if any,
provided in the Construction Change Directive for determining the proposed adjustment in the Contract Sum or
Contract Time.

§ 7.3.7 A Construction Change Directive signed by the Contractor indicates the Contractor’s agreement therewith,
including adjustment in Contract Sum and Contract Time or the method for determining them. Such agreement shall
be effective immediately and shall be recorded as a Change Order.

§ 7.3.8 The amount of credit to be allowed by the Contractor to the Owner for a deletion or change that results in a net
decrease in the Contract Sum shall be actual net cost as confirmed by the Architect. When both additions and credits
covering related Work or substitutions are involved in a change, the allowance for overhead and profit shall be figured
on the basis of net increase, if any, with respect to that change.

§ 7.3.9 Pending final determination of the total cost of a Construction Change Directive to the Owner, the Contractor
may request payment for Work completed under the Construction Change Directive in Applications for Payment. The
Architect will make an interim determination for purposes of monthly certification for payment for those costs and
certify for payment the amount that the Architect determines, in the Architect’s professional judgment, to be
reasonably justified. The Architect’s interim determination of cost shall adjust the Contract Sum on the same basis as
a Change Order, subject to the right of either party to disagree and assert a Claim in accordance with Article 15.

§ 7.3.10 When the Owner and Contractor agree with a detennination made by the Architect concerning the
adjustments in the Contract Sum and Contract Time, or otherwise reach agreement upon the adjustments, such
agreement shall be effective immediately and the Architect will prepare a Change Order. Change Orders may be
issued for all or any part of a Construction Change Directive.

§ 7.4 Minor Changes in the Work

The Architect may order minor changes in the Work that are consistent with the intent of the Contract Documents and
do not involve an adjustment in the Contract Sum or an extension of the Contract Time. The Architect’s order for
minor changes shall be in writing, If the Contractor believes that the proposed minor change in the Work will affect the
Contract Sum or Contract Time, the Contractor shall notify the Architect and shall not proceed to implement the
change in the Work. If the Contractor performs the Work set forth in the Architect’s order for a minor change without
prior notice to the Architect that such change will affect the Contract Sum or Contract Time, the Contractor waives any
adjustment to the Contract Sum or extension of the Contract Time.

ARTICLE 8 TIME

§ 8.1 Definitions

§ 8.1.1 Unless otherwise provided, Contract Time is the period of time, including authorized adjustments, allotted in
the Contract Documents for Substantial Completion of the Work.

§ 8.1.2 The date of commencement of the Work is the date established in the Agreement.
§ 8.1.3 The date of Substantial Completion is the date certified by the Architect in accordance with Section 9.8.

§ 8.1.4 The term "day" as used in the Contract Documents shall mean calendar day uniess otherwise specifically
defined.

§ 8.2 Progress and Completion
§ 8.2.1 Time limits stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract. By executing the Agreement,
the Contractor confirms that the Contract Time is a reasonable period for performing the Work.

§ 8.2.2 The Contractor shall not knowingly, except by agreement or instruction of the Owner in writing, commence
the Work prior to the effective date of insurance required to be furnished by the Contractor and Owner.

AlA Document A201 — 2017. Cepyright ® 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1851, 1958, 1861, 1963, 1866, 1970, 1976, 1887, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights
reserved. "The American instilute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” "AlA,” the AlA Logo, and "AlA Contract Documents® are trademarks of The 24
American Institute of Architecls. This document was produced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Order No.2114498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for
! resale, Is llcensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations,
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (2051888975)

Init.



§ 8.2.3 The Contractor shall proceed expeditiously with adequate forces and shall achieve Substantial Completion
within the Contract Time.

§ 8.3 Delays and Extensions of Time

§ 8.3.1 If the Contractor is delayed at any time in the commencement or progress of the Work by (1) an act or neglect
of the Owner or Architect, of an employee of either, or of a Separate Contractor; (2) by changes ordered in the Work;
(3) by labor disputes, fire, unusual delay in deliveries, unavoidable casualties, adverse weather conditions documented
in accordance with Section 15.1.6.2, or other causes beyond the Contractor’s control; (4) by delay authorized by the
Owner pending mediation and binding dispute resolution; or (5) by other causes that the Contractor asserts, and the
Architect determines, justify delay, then the Contract Time shall be extended for such reasonable time as the Architect
may determine.

§ 8.3.2 Claims relating to time shall be made in accordance with applicable provisions of Article 15.

§ 8.3.3 This Section 8.3 does not preclude recovery of damages for delay by either party under other provisions of the
Contract Documents.

§ 8.3.4 The Contract Price is based upon a mutual expectation that reasonable positions will be taken by federal, state,
or local inspectors and officials ("Authorities"), and that such Authorities shall act with reasonable promptness and
diligence regarding issuance of permits, approvals, certificates of occupancy, and in interpreting applicable codes and
standards. Contractor shall be entitled to a change order adjusting the Contract Price and Schedule for any impact
resulting from a deviation.

§ 8.3.5 Contractor should be entitled to an extension of the Contract Schedule for any delays caused by any utility in
connection with the installation, maintenance, service, and repair of all live (permanent) utility installations following
Contractor’s request.

ARTICLE 9 PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION

§ 9.1 Contract Sum

§ 9.1.1 The Contract Sum is stated in the Agreement and, including authorized adjustments, is the total amount
payable by the Owner to the Contractor for performance of the Work under the Contract Documents.

§ 9.1.2 If unit prices are stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed upon, and if quantities originally
contemplated are materially changed so that application of such unit prices to the actual quantities causes substantial
inequity to the Owner or Contractor, the applicable unit prices shall be equitably adjusted.

§ 9.2 Schedule of Values

Where the Contract is based on a stipulated sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Contractor shall submit a
schedule of values to the Architect before the first Application for Payment, allocating the entire Contract Sum to the
various portions of the Work. The schedule of values shall be prepared in the form, and supported by the data to
substantiate its accuracy, required by the Architect. This schedule, unless objected to by the Architect, shall be used as
a basis for reviewing the Contractor’s Applications for Payment. Any changes to the schedule of values shall be
submitted to the Architect and supported by such data to substantiate its accuracy as the Architect may require, and
unless cbjected to by the Architect, shall be used as a basis for reviewing the Contractor’s subsequent Applications for
Payment.

§ 9.3 Applications for Payment

§ 9.3.1 At least ten days before the date established for each progress payment, the Contractor shall submit to the
Architect an itemized Application for Payment prepared in accordance with the schedule of values, if required under
Section 9.2, for completed portions of the Work. The application shall be notarized, if required, and supported by all
data substantiating the Contractor’s right to payment that the Owner or Archilect require, such as copies of
requisitions, and releases and waivers of liens from Subcontractors and suppliers, and shall reflect retainage if
provided for in the Contract Documents. )

Init AlA Document A201 — 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1858, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1887, 1897, 2007 and 2017. All rights
nit, reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Inslitute of Architects,” “AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The 25
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2026 under Order N0.2114488152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for

1 resale, is liconsed for one-time use only, and may conly be used in accordance with the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations,
a-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: : (2051888975)

"



§ 9.3.1.1 As provided in Section 7.3.9, such applications may include requests for payment on account of changes in
the Work that have been properly authorized by Construction Change Directives, or by interim determinations of the
Architect, but not yet included in Change Orders.

§ 9.3.1.2 Applications for Payment shall not include requests for paytnent for portions of the Work for which the
Contractor does not intend to pay a Subcontractor or supplier, unless such Work has been performed by others whom
the Contractor intends to pay.

§ 9.3.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, payments shall be made on account of materials and
equipment delivered and suitably stored at the site for subsequent incorporation in the Work. If approved in advance
by the Owner, payment may similarly be made for materials and equipment suitably stored off the site at a location
agreed upon in writing. Payment for materials and equipment stored on or off the site shall be conditioned upon
compliance by the Contractor with procedures satisfactory to the Owner to establish the Owner's title to such materials
and equipment or otherwise protect the Owner’s interest, and shail include the costs of applicable insurance, storage,
and transportation to the site, for such materials and equipment stored off the site.

§ 9.3.3 The Contractor warrants that title to all Work covered by an Application for Payment will pass to the Owner no
later than the time of payment. The Contractor further warrants that upon submittal of an Application for Payment all
Work for which Certificates for Payment have been previously issued and payments received from the Owner shall, to
the best of the Contractor’s knowledge, information, and belief, be free and clear of liens, claims, security interests, or
encumbrances, in favor of the Contractor, Subcontractors, suppliers, or other persons or entities that provided labor,
materials, and equipment relating to the Work.

§ 9.4 Certificates for Payment

§ 9.4.1 The Architect will, within seven days after receipt of the Contractor’s Application for Payment, eithet (1) issue
to the Owner a Certificate for Payment in the full amount of the Application for Payment, with a copy to the
Contractor; or (2) issue to the Owner a Certificate for Payment for such amount as the Architect determines is properly
due, and notify the Contractor and Owner of the Architect’s reasons for withholding certification in part as provided in
Section 9.5.1; or (3) withhold certification of the entire Application for Payment, and notify the Contractor and Owner
of the Architect’s reason for withholding certification in whole as provided in Section 9.5.1.

§ 9.4.2 The issuance of a Certificate for Payment will constitute a representation by the Architect to the Owner, based
on the Architect’s evaluation of the Work and the data in the Application for Payment, that, to the best of the
Architect’s knowledge, information, and belief, the Work has progressed to the point indicated, the quality of the
Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents, and that the Contractor is entitled to payment in the amount
certified. The foregoing representations are subject to an evaluation of the Work for conformance with the Contract
Documents upon Substantial Completion, to results of subsequent tests and inspections, to correction of minor
deviations from the Contract Documents prior to completion, and to specific qualifications expressed by the Architect.
However, the issuance of a Certificate for Payment will not be a representation that the Architect has (1) made
exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work; (2) reviewed construction
means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures; (3) reviewed copies of requisitions received from
Subcontractors and suppliers and other data requested by the Owner to substantiate the Contractor’s right to payment;
or (4) made examination to ascertain how or for what purpose the Contractor has used money previously paid on
account of the Contract Sum.

§ 9.5 Decisions to Withhold Certification
§ 9.5.1 The Architect may withhold a Certificate for Payment in whole or in part, to the extent reasonably necessary to
protect the Owner, if in the Architect’s opinion the representations to the Owner required by Section 9.4.2 cannot be
made. If the Architect is unable to certify payment in the amount of the Application, the Architect will notify the
Contractor and Owner as provided in Section 9.4.1. If the Contractor and Architect cannot agree on a revised amount,
the Architect will promptly issue a Certificate for Payment for the amount for which the Architect is able to make such
representations to the Owner. The Architect may also withhold a Certificate for Payment or, because of subsequently
discovered evidence, may nullify the whole or a part of a Certificate for Payment previously issued, to such extent as
may be necessary in the Architect’s opinion to protect the Owner from loss for which the Contractor is responsible,
including loss resulting from acts and omissions described in Section 3.3.2, because of

A defective Work not remedied;

AlA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright © 1814, 1915, 1918, 19825, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1861, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2607 and 2017, All rights

reserved. *The American Inslitute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AlA," the AIA Logo, and "AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The 26
American Institute of Architacts. This document was preduced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Order N0.2114498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for

! resale, is ticensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AlA Ceniract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations,
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: {2051888975)

Init.



.2 third party claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of such claims, unless security
acceptable to the Owner is provided by the Contractor;

3 failure of the Contractor to make payments properly to Subcontractors or suppliers for labor, materials
or equipment;

4  reasonable evidence that the Work cannot be completed for the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum;

5  damage to the Owner or a Separate Contractor;

6  reasonable evidence that the Work will not be completed within the Contract Time, and that the unpaid

balance would not be adequate to cover actual or liquidated damages for the anticipated delay; or

.7 repeated failure to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

§ 9.5.2 When either party disputes the Architect’s decision regarding a Certificate for Payment under Section 9.5.1, in
whole or in part, that party may submit a Claim in accordance with Article 15.

§ 9.5.3 When the reasons for withholding certification are removed, certification will be made for amounts previously
withheld.

§ 9.5.4 If the Architect withholds certification for payment under Section 9.5.1.3, the Owner may, at its sole option,
issue joint checks to the Contractor and to any Subcontractor or supplier to whom the Contractor failed to make
payment for Work properly performed or material or equipment suitably delivered. If the Owner makes payments by
joint check, the Owner shall notify the Architect and the Contractor shall reflect such payment on its next Application
for Payment,

§ 9.6 Progress Payments
§ 9.6.1 After the Architect has issued a Certificate for Payment, the Owner shall make payment in the manner and
within the time provided in the Contract Documents, and shall so notify the Architect.

§ 9.6.2 The Contractor shall pay each Subcontractor, no later than seven days after receipt of payment from the Owner,
the amount to which the Subcontractor is entitled, reflecting percentages actually retained from payments to the
Contractor on account of the Subcontractor’s portion of the Work. The Contractor shall, by appropriate agreement
with each Subcontractor, require each Subcontractor to make payments to Sub-subcontractors in a similar manner,

§ 9.6.3 The Architect will, on request, furnish to a Subcontractor, if practicable, information regarding percentages of
completion or amounts applied for by the Contractor and action taken thereon by the Architect and Owner on account
of portions of the Work done by such Subcontractor.

§ 9.6.4 The Owner has the right to request written evidence from the Contractor that the Contractor has properly paid
Subcontractors and suppliers amounts paid by the Owner to the Contractor for subcontracted Work. If the Contractor
fails to furnish such evidence within seven days, the Owner shall have the right to contact Subcontractors and suppliers
to ascertain whether they have been properly paid. Neither the Owner nor Architect shall have an obligation to pay, or
to see to the payment of money to, a Subcontractor or supplier, except as may otherwise be required by law.

§ 9.6.5 The Contractor’s payments to suppliers shall be treated in 8 manner similar to that provided in Sections 9.6.2,
9.6.3 and 9.6.4.

§ 9.6.6 A Certificate for Payment, a progress payment, or partial or entire use or occcupancy of the Project by the
Owner shall not constitute acceptance of Work not in accordance with the Contract Documents.

§ 9.6.7 Unless the Contractor provides the Owner with a payment bond in the full penal sum of the Contract Sum,
payments received by the Contractor for Work properly performed by Subcontractors or provided by suppliers shall be
held by the Contractor for those Subcontractors or suppliers who performed Work or furnished materials, or both,
under contract with the Contractor for which payment was made by the Owner. Nothing contained herein shall require
money to be placed in a separate account and not commingled with money of the Contractor, create any fiduciary
liability or tort liability on the part of the Contractor for breach of trust, or entitle any person or entity to an award of
punitive damages against the Contractor for breach of the requirements of this provision.

§ 9.6.8 Provided the Owner has fulfilled its payment obligations under the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall
defend and indemnify the Owner from all loss, liability, damage or expense, including reasonable attorney’s fees and

it AlA Document A201 — 2017. Copyright ©® 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1851, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1887, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights
: reserved. “The American Inslitule of Architects,” *American Institute of Architects,” *AlA,” the AlA Logo, and "AlA Contract Bocuments” are trademarks of The 27
American Institute of Architocts. This document was produced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Order No.2114498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for
l resale, is licensed for cne-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violalions,
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (2051888975)



Init.

litigation expenses, arising out of any lien claim or other claim for payment by any Subcontractor or supplier of any
tier. Upon receipt of notice of a lien claim or other claim for payment, the Owner shall notify the Contractor. If
approved by the applicable court, when required, the Contractor may substitute a surety bond for the property against
which the lien or other claim for payment has been assetted.

§ 9.7 Fallure of Payment

If the Architect does not issue a Certificate for Payment, through no fault of the Contractor, within seven days after
receipt of the Contractor’s Application for Payment, or if the Owner does not pay the Contractor within seven days
after the date established in the Contract Documents, the amount certified by the Architect or awarded by binding
dispute resolution, then the Contractor may, upon seven additional days* notice to the Owner and Architect, stop the
Work until payment of the amount owing has been received. The Contract Time shall be extended appropriately and
the Contract Sum shall be increased by the amount of the Contractor’s reasonable costs of shutdown, delay and
start-up, plus interest as provided for in the Contract Documents,

§ 9.8 Substantial Completion

§ 9.8.1 Substantial Completion is the stage in the progress of the Work when the Work or designated portion thereof is
sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract Documents so that the Owner can cccupy or utilize the Work for
its intended use.

§ 9.8.2 When the Contractor considers that the Work, or a portion thereof which the Owner agrees to accept
separately, is substantially complete, the Contractor shall prepare and submit to the Architect a comprehensive list of
items to be completed or corrected prior to final payment. Failure to include an item on such list does not alter the
responsibility of the Contractor to complete all Work in accordance with the Contract Documents,

§ 9.8.3 Upon receipt of the Contractor’s list, the Architect will make an inspection to determine whether the Work or
designated portion thereof is substantially complete. If the Architect’s inspection discloses any item, whether or not
included on the Contractor’s list, which is not sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract Documents so
that the Owner can occupy or utilize the Work or designated portion thereof for its intended use, the Contractor shall,
before issuance of the Certificate of Substantial Completion, complete or correct such item upon notification by the
Architect. In such case, the Contractor shall then submit a request for another inspection by the Architect to determine
Substantial Completion.

§ 9.8.4 When the Work or designated portion thereof is substantially complete, the Architect will prepare a Certificate
of Substantial Completion that shall establish the date of Substantial Completion; establish responsibilities of the
Owner and Contractor for security, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to the Work and insurance; and fix the time
within which the Contractor shall finish all items on the list accompanying the Certificate. Warranties required by the
Contract Documents shall commence on the date of Substantial Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof
unless otherwise provided in the Certificate of Substantial Completion.

§ 9.8.5 The Certificate of Substantial Completion shall be submitted to the Owner and Contractor for their written
acceptance of responsibilities assigned to them in the Certificate. Upon such acceptance, and consent of surety if any,
the Owner shall make payment of retainage applying to the Work or designated portion thereof. Such payment shall be
adjusted for Work that is incomplete or not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 9.9 Partial Occupancy or Use

§ 9.9.1 The Owner may occupy or use any completed or partially completed portion of the Work at any stage when
such portion is designated by separate agreement with the Contractor, provided such occupancy or use is consented to
by the insurer and authorized by public authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. Such partial occupancy or use
may commence whether or not the portion is substantially complete, provided the Owner and Contractor have
accepted in writing the responsibilities assigned to each of them for payments, retainage, if any, security, maintenance,
heat, utilities, damage to the Work and insurance, and have agreed in writing concerning the period for correction of
the Work and commencement of warranties required by the Contract Documents. When the Contractor considers a
portion substantially complete, the Contractor shall prepare and submit a list to the Architect as provided under
Section 9.8.2. Consent of the Contractor to partial occupancy or use shall not be unreasonably withheld. The stage of
the progress of the Work shall be determined by written agreement between the Owner and Contractor or, if no
agreement is reached, by decision of the Architect.

AlA Document A201 -~ 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1851, 1958, 1861, 1963, 1866, 1970, 1976, 1887, 1897, 2007 and 2017. All rights
reserved. “The American Institute of Architecls,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AlA," the AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents™ are trademarks of The
Amoerican Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Order No.2114438152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for
resale, Is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations,
e-mall docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (2051888975)

28



§ 9.9.2 Immediately prior to such partial occupancy or use, the Owner, Contractor, and Architect shall jointly inspect
the area to be occupied or portion of the Work to be used in order to determine and record the condition of the Work.

§ 9.9.3 Unless otherwise agreed upon, partial occupancy or use of a portion or portions of the Work shall not constitute
acceptance of Work not complying with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 9.10 Final Completion and Final Payment

§ 9.10.1 Upon receipt of the Contractor’s notice that the Work is ready for final inspection and acceptance and upon
receipt of a final Application for Payment, the Architect will promptly make such inspection. When the Architect finds
the Work acceptable under the Contract Documents and the Contract fully performed, the Architect will promptly
issue a final Certificate for Payment stating that to the best of the Architect’s knowledge, information and belief, and
on the basis of the Architect’s on-site visits and inspections, the Work has been completed in accordance with the
Contract Documents and that the entire balance found to be due the Contractor and noted in the final Certificate is due
and payable. The Architect’s final Certificate for Payment will constitute a further representation that conditions listed
in Section 9.10.2 as precedent to the Contractor’s being entitled to final payment have been fulfilled.

§ 9.10.2 Neither final payment nor any remaining retained percentage shall become due until the Contractor submits to
the Architect (1) an affidavit that payrolls, bills for materials and equipment, and other indebtedness connected with
the Work for which the Owner or the Owner’s property might be responsible or encumbered (less amounts withheld
by Owner) have been paid or otherwise satisfied, (2) a certificate evidencing that insurance required by the Contract
Documents to remain in force after final payment is currently in effect, (3) a written statement that the Contractor
knows of no reasen that the insurance will not be renewable to cover the period required by the Contract Documents,
(4) consent of surety, if any, to final payment, (5) documentation of any special warranties, such as manufacturers’
warranties or specific Subcontractor warranties, and (6) if required by the Owner, other data establishing payment or
satisfaction of obligations, such as receipts and releases and waivers of liens, claims, security interests, or
encumbrances arising out aof the Contract, to the extent and in such form as may be designated by the Owner. If a
Subcontractor refuses to furnish a release or waiver required by the Owner, the Contractor may furnish a bond
satisfactory to the Owner to indemnify the Owner against such lien, claim, security interest, or encumbrance. If a lien,
claim, security interest, or encumbrance remains unsatisfied after payments are made, the Contractor shall refund to
the Owner all money that the Owner may be compelled to pay in discharging the lien, claim, security interest, or
encumbrance, including all costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees.

§ 9.10.3 If, afier Substantial Completion of the Work, final completion thereof is materially delayed through no fault
of the Contractor or by issuance of Change Orders affecting final completion, and the Architect so confirms, the
Owner shall, upon application by the Contractor and certification by the Architect, and without terminating the
Contract, make payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work fully completed, corrected, and accepted. If
the remaining balance for Work not fully completed or corrected is less than retainage stipulated in the Contract
Documents, and if bonds have been fumished, the written consent of the surety to payment of the balance due for that
portion of the Work fully completed and accepted shall be submitted by the Contractor to the Architect prior to
certification of such payment. Such payment shall be inade under terms and conditions governing final payment,
except that it shall not constitute a waiver of Claims.

§ 9.10.4 The making of final payment shall constitute a waiver of Claims by the Owner except those arising from
4 liens, Claims, security interests, or encumbrances arising out of the Contract and unsettled;
.2 failure of the Work to comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents;
3 terms of special warranties required by the Contract Documents; or
4 audits performed by the Owner, if permitted by the Contract Documents, after final payment.
§ 9.10.5 Acceptance of final payment by the Contractor, a Subcontractor, or a supplier, shall constitute a waiver of
claims by that payee except those previously made in writing and identified by that payee as unsettled at the time of
final Application for Payment.

ARTICLE 10 PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY

§ 10.1 Safety Precautlons and Programs

The Contractor shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions and programs in
connection with the performance of the Contract.

Init AIA Decument A201 - 2017, Copyright © 1911, 1916, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1897, 2007 and 2017. All rights
. reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “Americen Institute of Architects,” "AlA," the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are tradamarks of The 29
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Order No.21 14498152 which explres on 12/31/2025, is not for

/ resale, is licensed for gne-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations,
e-mail docinfo@alacontracts.com.
User Notes: . (2051888975)

d



§ 10.2 Safety of Persons and Property
§ 10.2.1 The Contractor shall take reasonable precautions for safety of, and shall provide reasonable protection to
prevent damage, injury, or loss to
4 employees on the Work and other persons who may be affected thereby;
2 the Work and materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or oft the site,
under care, custody, or control of the Contractor, a Subcontractor, or a Sub-subcontractor; and
.3 other property at the site or adjacent thereto, such as trees, shrubs, fawns, walks, pavements, roadways,
structures, and utilities not designated for removal, relocation, or replacement in the course of
construction.

§ 10.2.2 The Contractor shall comply with, and give notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes,
rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities, bearing on safety of persons or property or their
protection from damage, injury, or loss.

§ 10.2.3 The Contractor shall implement, erect, and maintain, as required by existing conditions and performance of
the Contract, reasonable safeguards for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and other warnings
against hazards; promulgating safety regulations; and notifying the owners and users of adjacent sites and utilities of
the safeguards.

§ 10.2.4 When use or storage of explosives or other hazardous materials or equipment, or unusual methods are
necessary for execution of the Work, the Contractor shall exercise utmost care and carry on such activities under
supervision of properly qualified personnel.

§ 10.2.5 The Contractor shall promptly remedy damage and loss (other than damage or loss insured under property
insurance required by the Contract Documents) to property referred to in Sections 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3 caused in
whole or in part by the Contractor, a Subcontractor, a Sub-subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by
any of them, or by anyone for whose acts they may be liable and for which the Contractor is responsible under
Sections 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3. The Contractor may make a Claim for the cost to remedy the damage or loss to the
extent such damage or loss is attributable to acts or omissions of the Owner or Architect or anyone directly or
indirectly employed by either of them, or by anyone for whose acts either of them may be liable, and not attributable to
the fault or negligence of the Contractor, The foregoing obligations of the Contractor are in addition to the
Contractor’s obligations under Section 3.18.

§ 10.2.6 The Contractor shall designate a responsible member of the Contractor’s organization at the site whose duty
shall be the prevention of accidents. This person shall be the Contractor’s superintendent unless otherwise designated
by the Contractor in writing to the Owner and Architect.

§ 10.2.7 The Contractor shall not permit any part of the construction or site to be loaded so as to cause damage or
create an unsafe condition.

§ 10.2.8 Injury or Damage to Person or Property

If either party suffers injury or damage to person or property because of an act or omission of the other party, or of
others for whose acts such party is legally responsible, notice of the injury or damage, whether or not insured, shall be
given to the other party within a reasonable time not exceeding 21 days after discovery. The notice shall provide
sufficient detail to enable the other party to investigate the matter,

| § 10.3 Hazardous Materials and Substances (this is an existing undeveloped site)
§ 10.3.1 The Contractor is responsible for compliance with any requirenients included in the Contract Documents
regarding hazardous materials or substances. If the Contractor encounters a hazardous material or substance not
addressed in the Contract Documents and if reasonable precautions will be inadequate to prevent foreseeable bodily
injury or death to persons resulting from a material or substance, including but not limited to asbestos or
polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB), encountered on the site by the Contractor, the Contractor shall, upon recognizing the
condition, immediately stop Work in the affected area and notify the Owner and Architect of the condition.

§ 10.3.2 Upon receipt of the Contractor’s notice, the Owner shall obtain the services of a licensed laboratory to verify
the presence or absence of the material or substance reported by the Contractor and, in the event such material or
substance is found to be present, to cause it to be rendered harmless. Unless otherwise required by the Contract

AlA Document A201 - 2017, Copyright ® 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1861, 1883, 1966, 1970, 1876, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights

reserved. “The Amarican Institute of Architects,” “American (nstitute of Architects,” "AlA,” the AIA Logo, and "AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The 30
American Institute of Architacts. This document was produced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Order No.2114498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for

! resale, is ficensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To repert copyright violatiens,
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracls.com.

User Notes: {2051888975)

Init.



Documents, the Owner shall furnish in writing to the Contractor and Architect the names and qualifications of persons
or entities who are to perform tests verifying the presence or absence of the material or substance or who are to
perform the task of removal or safe containment of the material or substance. The Contractor and the Architect will
promptly reply to the Owner in writing stating whether or not either has rcasenable objection to the persons or entities
proposed by the Owner. If either the Contractor or Architect has an objection to a person or entity proposed by the
Owner, the Owner shall propose another to whom the Contractor and the Architect have no reasonable objection.
When the material or substance has been rendered harmless, Work in the affected area shall resume upon written
agreement of the Owner and Contractor. By Change Order, the Contract Time shall be extended appropriately and the
Contract Sum shall be increased by the amount of the Contractor’s reasonable additional costs of shutdown, delay, and
start-up.

| § 10.3.3

§ 10.3.4 The Owner shall not be responsible under this Section 10.3 for hazardous materials or substances the
Contractor brings to the site unless such materials or substances are required by the Contract Documents. The Owner
shall be responsible for hazardous materials or substances required by the Contract Documents, except to the extent of
the Contractor’s fault or negligence in the use and handling of such materials or substances.

§ 10.3.5 The Contractor shall reimburse the Owner for the cost and expense the Owner incurs (1) for remediation of
hazardous materials or substances the Contractor brings to the site and negligently handles, or (2) where the
Contractor fails to perform its obligations under Section 10.3.1, except to the extent that the cost and expense are due
to the Owner’s fault or negligence.

§ 10.3.6 If, without negligence on the part of the Contractor, the Contractor is held liable by a government agency for
the cost of remediation of a hazardous material or substance solely by reason of performing Work as required by the
Contract Documents, the Owner shall reimburse the Contractor for all cost and expense thereby incurred.

§ 10.4 Emergencies

In an emergency affecting safety of persons or property, the Contractor shall act, at the Contractor’s discretion, to
prevent threatened damage, injury, or loss. Additicnal compensation or extension of time claimed by the Contractor on
account of an emergency shall be determined as provided in Article 15 and Article 7.

ARTICLE 11  INSURANCE AND BONDS

§ 11.1 Contractor's Insurance and Bonds

§ 11.1.1 The Contractor shall purchase and maintain insurance of the types and limits of liability, containing the
endorsements, and subject to the terms and conditions, as described in the Agreement or elsewhere in the Contract
Documents. The Contractor shall purchase and maintain the required insurance from an insurance company or
insurance companies lawfully authorized to issue insurance in the jurisdiction where the Project is located. The
Owner, Architect, and Architect’s consultants shall be named as additional insureds under the Contractor’s
commercial general liability policy or as otherwise described in the Contract Docuinents.

§ 11.1.2 The Contractor shall provide performance and payment bonds at the project's completed value , and subject to
such terms and conditions as required by the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall purchase and maintain the
required bonds from a company or companies lawfully authorized to issue surety bonds in the jurisdiction where the
Project is located.

§ 11.1.3 Upon the request of any person or entity appearing to be a potehtial beneficiary of bonds covering payment of
obligations arising under the Contract, the Contractor shall promptly furnish a copy of the bonds or shall authorize a
copy to be furnished.

§ 11.1.4 Notice of Cancellation or Expiration of Contractor's Required Insurance. Within three (3) business days of the
date the Contractor becomes aware of an impending or actual cancellation or expiration of any insurance required by
the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall provide notice to the Owner of such impending or actual cancellation or
expiration. Upon receipt of notice from the Contractor, the Owner shall, unless the lapse in coverage arises from an act
or omission of the Owner, have the right to stop the Work until the lapse in coverage has been cured by the
procurement of replacement coverage by the Contractor. The furnishing of notice by the Contractor shall not relieve
the Contractor of any contractual obligation to provide any required coverage.

Init AlA Document A201 — 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1815, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1968, 1961, 1963, 1866, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1897, 2007 and 2017. All rights
. reserved. “The American Instilute of Architects,” "American Institute of Architacts.” “AlA,” the AlA Logo, and "AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The 31
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Crder No.2114488152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is aot for

! resale, Is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyrighl viclations,
e-mail docinfo@alacontracts.com. '
User Notes: {2051888975)



§ 11.2 Owner's Insurance
' § 11.2.1 The Owner shall purchase and maintain NH Public Entity Risk Pool Coverage.

| § 11.2.2

§ 11.2.3 Notice of Cancellation or Expiration of Owner's Required Property Insurance. Within three (3) business days of
the date the Owner becomes aware of an impending or actual cancellation or expiration of any property insurance
required by the Contract Documents, the Owner shall provide notice to the Contractor of such impending or actual
cancellation or expiration. Unless the lapse in coverage arises from an act or omission of the Contractor: (1) the
Contractor, upon receipt of notice from the Owner, shall have the right to stop the Work until the lapse in coverage has
been cured by the procurement of replacement coverage by either the Owner or the Contractor; (2) the Contract Time
and Contract Sum shall be equitably adjusted; and (3) the Owner waives all rights against the Contractor,
Subcontractors, and Sub-subcontractors to the extent any loss to the Owner would have been covered by the insurance
had it not expired or been cancelled. If the Contractor purchases replacement coverage, the cost of the insurance shall
be charged to the Owner by an appropriate Change Order. The furnishing of notice by the Owner shall not relieve the
Owner of any contractual obligation to provide required insurance.

§ 11.3 Waivers of Subrogation
[ § 1134

| §11.3.2

§ 11.4 Loss of Use, Business Interruption, and Delay in Completion Insurance
The Owner, at the Owner’s option, may purchase and maintain insurance that will protect the Owner against loss of
use of the Owner’s property, ot the inability to conduct normal operations, due to fire or other causes of loss.

| §11.5 Adjustment and Settlement of Insured Loss
§ 11.5.1

| § 1.5.2

ARTICLE 12 UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK

§ 12.1 Uncovering of Work

§ 12.1.1 If a portion of the Work is covered contrary to the Architect’s request or to requirements specifically
expressed in the Contract Documents, it must, if requested in writing by the Architect, be uncovered for the Architect’s
examination and be replaced at the Contractor’s expense without change in the Contract Time.

§ 12.1.2 1f a portion of the Work has been covered that the Architect has not specifically requested to examine prior to
its being covered, the Architect may request to see such Work and it shall be uncovered by the Contractor. If such
Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment to the
Contract Sum and Contract Time as may be appropriate. If such Work is not in accordance with the Contract
Documents, the costs of uncovering the Work, and the cost of correction, shall be at the Contractor’s expense.

§ 12.2 Corraction of Work

§ 12.2.1 Before Substantial Completion

The Contractor shall promptly correct Work rejected by the Architect or failing to conform to the requirements of the
Contract Documents, discovered before Substantial Completion and whether or not fabricated, installed or completed.
Costs of correcting such rejected Work, including additional testing and inspections, the cost of uncovering and
replacement, and compensation for the Architect’s services and expenses made necessary thereby, shall be at the
Contractor’s expense.

§ 12.2.2 After Substantial Completion

§ 12.2.2.1 In addition to the Contractor’s obligations under Section 3.5, if, within one year after the date of Substantial
Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof or afler the date for commencement of warranties established
under Section 9.9.1, or by terms of any applicable special warranty required by the Contract Documents, any of the
Work is found to be not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall correct it

AlA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright @ 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1858, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970. 1976, 1987, 1897, 2007 and 2017. All rights

reserved. “The Amsrican Institute of Architects,” "American Institute of Architects,” "AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents® are trademarks of The 32
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Order No.2114498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is nol for

/ resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations,
e-mall docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (2051888975)

Init.



promptly after receipt of notice from the Owner to do so, unless the Owner has previously given the Contractor a
written acceptance of such condition. The Owner shall give such notice promptly after discovery of the condition.
During the one-year period for correction of Work, if the Owner fails to notify the Contractor and give the Contractor
an opportunity to make the correction, the Owner waives the rights to require correction by the Contractor and to make
a claim for breach of warranty. If the Contractor fails to correct nonconforming Work within a reasonable time during
that period after receipt of notice from the Owner or Architect, the Owner may correct it in accordance with

Section 2.5.

§ 12.2.2.2 The one-year period for correction of Work shall be extended with respect to portions of Work first
performed after Substantial Completion by the period of time between Substantial Completion and the actual
completion of that portion of the Work.

§ 12.2.2.3 The one-year period for correction of Work shall not be extended by corrective Work performed by the
Contractor pursuant to this Section 12.2.

§ 42.2.3 The Contractor shall remove from the site portions of the Work that are not in accordance with the
requirements of the Contract Documents and are neither corrected by the Contractor nor accepted by the Owner.

§ 12.2.4 The Contractor shall bear the cost of correcting destroyed or damaged construction of the Owner or Separate
Contractors, whether completed or partially completed, caused by the Contractor’s correction or removal of Work that
is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 12.2.5 Nothing contained in this Section 12.2 shall be construed to establish a period of limitation with respect to
other obligations the Contractor has under the Contract Documents, Establishment of the one-year period for
correction of Work as described in Section 12.2.2 relates only to the specific obligation of the Contractor to correct the
Work, and has no relationship to the time within which the obligation to comply with the Contract Documents may be
sought to be enforced, nor to the time within which proceedings may be commenced to establish the Contractor’s
liability with respect to the Contractor’s obligations other than specifically to correct the Work.

§ 12.3 Acceptance of Nonconforming Work

If the Owner prefers to accept Work that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, the
Owner may do so instead of requiring its removal and correction, in which case the Contract Sum will be reduced as
appropriate and equitable. Such adjustment shall be effected whether or not final payment has been made.

ARTICLE 13 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

§ 13.1 Governing Law

The Contract shall be governed by the law of New Hampshire, excluding that jurisdiction’s choice of law rules.
Disputes arising out of this Agreement shall be heard in a court of competent jurisdiction in Rockingham County, New
Hampshire.

§ 13.2 Successors and Assigns

§ 13.2.1 The Owner and Contractor respectively bind themselves, their partners, successors, assigns, and legal
representatives to covenants, agreements, and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. Except as provided in
Section 13.2.2, neither party to the Contract shall assign the Contract as a whole without written consent of the other.
If either party attempts to make an assignment without such consent, that party shall nevertheless remain legally
responsible for all obligations under the Contract.

§ 13.2.2 The Owner may, without consent of the Contractor, assign the Contract to a lender providing construction
financing for the Project, if the lender assumes the Owner’s rights and obligations under the Contract Documents. The
Contractor shall execute all consents reasonably required to facilitate the assignment.

§ 13.3 Rights and Remedies

§ 13.3.1 Duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and rights and remedies available thereunder
shall be in addition to and not a limitation of duties, obligations, rights, and remedies otherwise imposed or available
by law.

Init AIA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright ® 1911, 1815, 1918, 1926, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1861, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1887, 1897, 2007 and 2017. All rights
g reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AlA," the AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The 33
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Order No.2114498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for
! resale, Is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations,
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (2051888975)



Init.

.

§ 13.3.2 No action or failure to act by the Owner, Architect, or Contractor shall constitute a waiver of a right or duty
afforded them under the Contract, nor shall such action or failure to act constitute approval of or acquiescence in a
breach thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed upon in writing.

§ 13.4 Tests and Inspections

§ 13.4.1 Tests, inspections, and approvals ofiportions of the Work shall be made as required by the Contract
Documents and by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules, and regulations or lawful orders of public
authorities. Unless otherwise provided, the Contractor shall make arrangements for such tests, inspections, and
approvals with an independent testing laboratory or entity acceptable to the Owner, or with the appropriate public
authority, and shall bear all related costs of tests, inspections, and approvals. The Contractor shall give the Architect
timely notice of when and where tests and inspections are to be made so that the Architect may be present for such
procedures. The Owner shall bear costs of tests, inspections, or approvals that do not become requirements until after
bids are received or negotiations concluded. The Owner shall directly arrange and pay for tests, inspections, or
approvals where building codes or applicable laws or regulations so require.

§ 13.4.2 If the Architect, Owner, or public authorities having jurisdiction determine that portions of the Work require
additional testing, inspection, or approval not included under Section 13.4.1, the Architect will, upon written
authorization from the Owner, instruct the Contractor to make arrangements for such additional testing, inspection, ot
approval, by an entity acceptable to the Owner, and the Contractor shall give timely notice to the Architect of when
and where tests and inspections are to be made so that the Architect may be present for such procedures. Such costs,
except as provided in Section 13.4.3, shall be at the Owner’s expense.

§ 13.4.3 If procedures for testing, inspection, or approval under Sections 13.4.1 and 13.4.2 reveal failure of the
portions of the Work to comply with requirements established by the Contract Documents, all costs made necessary by
such failure, including those of repeated procedures and compensation for the Architect’s services and expenses, shall
be at the Contractor’s expense.

§ 13.4.4 Required certificates of testing, inspection, or approval shall, unless otherwise required by the Contract
Documents, be secured by the Contractor and promptly delivered to the Architect.

§ 13.4.5 If the Architect is to observe tests, inspections, or approvals required by the Contract Documents, the
Architect will do so promptly and, where practicable, at the normal place of testing.

§ 13.4.8 Tests or inspections conducted pursuant to the Contract Documents shall be made promptly to avoid
unreasonable delay in the Work,

§ 13.5 Interest

Payments due and unpaid under the Contract Documents shall bear interest from the date payment is due at the rate the
parties agree upon in writing or, in the absence thereof, at the legal rate prevailing from time to time at the place where
the Project is located,

ARTICLE 14 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE CONTRACT

§ 14.1 Termination by the Contractor

§ 14.1.1 The Contractor may terminate the Contract if the Work is stopped for a period of 30 consecutive days through
no act or fault of the Contractor, a Subcontractor, a Sub-subcontractor, their agents or employees, or any other persons
or entities performing portions of the Work, for any of the following reasons:

. Issuance of an order of a court or other public authority having jurisdiction that requires ali Work to be
stopped;

2  Anact of government, such as a declaration of national emergency, that requires all. Work to be
stopped;

3 Because the Architect has not issued a Certificate for Payment and has not notified the Contractor of the
reason for withholding certification as provided in Section 9.4.1, or because the Owner has not made
payment on a Certificate for Payment within the time stated in the Contract Docunents; or

4 The Owner has failed to furnish to the Contractor reasonable evidence as required by Section 2.2.

§ 14.1.2 The Contractor may terminate the Contract if, through no act or fault of the Contractor, a Subcontractor, a
Sub-subcontractor, their agents or employees, or any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work,

AlA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1551, 1958, 1861, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. Al rights

reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architacts,” "AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents™ are trademarks of The 34
American Institute of Architacts. This document was produced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Order No.2114488152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for
resele, is licensed for one-tims use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright viclations,
e-mall docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (2051888975)



repeated suspensions, delays, or interruptions of the entire Work by the Owner as described in Section 14.3, constitute
in the aggregate more than 180 percent of the total number of days scheduled for completion, or 120 days in any
365-day period, whichever is less.

§ 14.1.3 If one of the reasons described in Section 14.1.1 or 14.1.2 exists, the Contractor may, upon seven days’ notice
to the Owner and Architect, terminate the Contract and recover from the Owner payment for Work executed, as well as
reasonable overhead and profit on Work not executed, and costs incurred by reason of such termination.

§ 14.1.4 If the Work is stopped for a period of 60 consecutive days through no act or fault of the Contractor, a
Subcontractor, a Sub-subcontractos, or their agents or employees or any other persons or entities performing portions
of the Work because the Owner has repeatedly failed to fulfill the Owner’s obligations under the Contract Documents
with respect to matters important to the progress of the Work, the Contractor may, upon seven additional days’ notice
to the Owner and the Architect, terminate the Contract and recover from the Owner as provided in Section 14.1.3,

§ 14.2 Termination by the Owner for Cause
§ 14.2.1 The Owner may terminate the Contract if the Contractor
4 repeatedly refuses or fails to supply enough properly skilled workers or proper materials;
2 fails to make payment to Subcontractors or suppliers in accordance with the respective agreements
between the Contractor and the Subcontractors or suppliers;
3 repeatedly disregards applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful
orders of a public authority; or
4 otherwise is guilty of substantial breach of a provision of the Contract Documents.

§ 14.2.2 When any of the reasons described in Section 14.2.1 exist, and upon cerlification by the Architect that
sufficient cause exists to justify such action, the Owner may, without prejudice to any other rights or remedies of the
Owner and after giving the Contractor and the Contractor’s surety, if any, seven days’ notice, terminate employment
of the Contractor and may, subject to any prior rights of the surety:
1 Exclude the Contractor from the site and take possession of all materials, equipment, tools, and
construction equipment and machinery thereon owned by the Contractor;
2 Accept assignment of subcontracts pursuant to Section 5.4; and
3 Finish the Work by whatever reasonable method the Owner may deem expedient. Upon written request
of the Contractor, the Owner shall furnish to the Contractor a detailed accounting of the costs incurred
by the Owner in finishing the Work.

.

§ 14.2.3 When the Owner terminates the Contract for one of the reasons stated in Section 14.2.1, the Contractor shall
not be entitled to receive further payment until the Work is finished.

§ 14.2.4 If the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum exceeds costs of finishing the Work, including compensation for
the Architect’s services and expenses made necessary thereby, and other damages incurred by the Owner and not
expressly waived, such excess shall be paid to the Contractor. If such costs and damages exceed the unpaid balance,
the Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner. The amount to be paid to the Contractor or Owner, as the case
may be, shall be certified by the Initial Decision Maker, upon application, and this obligation for payment shall survive
termination of the Contract.

§ 14.3 Suspension by the Owner for Convenience
§ 14.3.1 The Owner may, without cause, order the Contractor in writing to suspend, delay or interrupt the Work, in
whole or in part for such period of time as the Owner may determine.

§ 14.3.2 The Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be adjusted for increases in the cost and time caused by
suspension, delay, or interruption under Section 14.3.1. Adjustment of the Contract Sum shall include profit. No
adjustment shall be made to the extent
A that performance is, was, or would have been, so suspended, delayed, or interrupted, by another cause
for which the Contractor is responsible; or
.2 that an equitable adjustment is made or denied under another provision of the Contract.

§ 14.4 Termination by the Owner for Convenience
§ 14.4.1 The Owner may, at any time, terminate the Contract for the Owner’s convenience and without cause.

Init. AlA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright ©® 1911, 1915, 1918, 19256, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1861, 1863, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. Al rights
g reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” "AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents® are trademarks of The 35
American Institute of Aschitecis. This document was produced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Order N0.2114498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for
1 resale, is ficensed for one-time use only, and may only ba used in accordence with the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations,
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notas: {2051888975)



Init.

§ 14.4.2 Upon receipt of notice from the Ownér of such termination for the Owner’s convenience, the Contractor shall
A cease operations as directed by the Owner in the notice;
2 take actions necessary, or that the Owner may direct, for the protection and preservation of the Work;
and .
3 except for Work directed to be performed prior to the effective date of termination stated in the notice,
terminate all existing subcontracts and purchase orders and enter into no further subcontracts and
purchase orders.

§ 14.4.3 In case of such termination for the Qwner's convenience, the Owner shall pay the Contractor for Work
properly executed; costs incurred by reason of the termination, including costs attributable to termination of
Subcontracts; and the termination fee, if any, set forth in the Agreement.

ARTICLE 15 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

§ 15.1 Claims

§ 15.1.1 Definition

A Claim is a demand or assertion by one of the parties seeking, as a matter of right, payment of money, a change in the
Contract Time, or other relief with respect to the terms of the Contract. The term “"Claim" also includes other disputes
and matters in question between the Owner and Contractor arising out of or relating to the Contract. The responsibility
to substantiate Claims shall rest with the party making the Claim. This Section 15.1.1 does not require the Owner to
file a Claim in order to impose liquidated damages in accordance with the Contract Documents.

§ 15.1.2 Time Limits on Claims

The Owner and Contractor shall commence all Claims and causes of action against the other and arising out of or
related to the Contract, whether in contract, tort, breach of warranty or otherwise, in accordance with the requirements
of the binding dispute resolution method selected in the Agreement and within the period specified by applicable law,
but in any case not more than to the extent permitted by law. The Owner and Contractor waive all Claims and causes of
action not commenced in accordance with thi$ Section 15.1.2.

§ 15.1.3 Notice of Claims

§ 15.1.3.1 Claims by either the Owner or Contractor, where the condition giving rise to the Claim is first discovered
prior to expiration of the period for correction of the Work set forth in Section 12.2.2, shall be initiated by notice to the
other party and to the Initial Decision Maker with a copy sent to the Architect, if the Architect is not serving as the
Initial Decision Maker. Claims by either party under this Section 15.1.3.1 shall be initiated within 21 days after
occurrence of the event giving rise to such Claim or within 21 days after the claimant first recognizes the condition
giving rise to the Claim, whichever is later.

§ 15.1.3.2 Claims by either the Owner or Contractor, where the condition giving rise to the Claim is first discovered
after expiration of the period for correction of the Work set forth in Section 12.2.2, shall be initiated by notice to the
other party. In such event, no decision by the Initial Decision Maker is required.

§ 15.1.4 Continuing Contract Performance

§ 15.1.4.1 Pending final resolution of a Claim, except as otherwise agreed in writing or as provided in Section 9.7 and
Atticle 14, the Contractor shall proceed diligently with performance of the Contract and the Owner shall continue to
make payments in accordance with the Contract Docuinents,

§ 15.1.4.2 The Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be adjusted in accordance with the Initial Decision Maker's
decision, subject to the right of either party to proceed in accordance with this Article 15. The Architect will issue
Certificates for Payment in accordance with the decision of the Initial Decision Maker.

§ 16.1.5 Claims for Additional Cost

If the Contractor wishes to make a Claim for an increase in the Contract Sum, notice as provided in Section 15.1.3
shall be given before proceeding to execute the portion of the Work that is the subject of the Claim. Prior notice is not
required for Claims relating to an emergency endangering life or property arising under Section 10.4.

AlA Document A201 - 2017, Copyright ® 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All dghts
reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AlA," the AlA Logo, and *AlA Contract Documents® are trademarks of The
American Institute of Architects. This document was produted at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Order No.2114498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for
resale, Is licensed for cnre-time use anly, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contracl Documenis® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations,
e-mail docinfo@atacontracts.com.

User Notes: (2051888975)

36



§ 15.1.6 Claims for Additional Time

§ 15.1.6.1 If the Contractor wishes to make a Claim for an increase in the Contract Time, notice as provided in Section
15.1.3 shall be given. The Contractor’s Claim shall include an estimate of cost and of probable effect of delay on
progress of the Work. In the case of a continuing delay, only one Claim is necessary.

§ 15.1.8.2 If adverse weather conditions are the basis for a Claim for additional time, such Claim shall be documented
by data substantiating that weather conditions were abnormal for the period of time, could not have been reasonably
anticipated, and had an adverse effect on the scheduled construction.

§ 15.1.7 Waiver of Claims for Consequential Damages
The Contractor and Owner waive Claims against each other for consequentia! damages arising out of or relating to this
Contract. This mutual waiver includes
A damages incurred by the Owner for rental expenses, for losses of use, income, profit, financing,
business and reputation, and for loss of management or employee productivity or of the services of such
persons; and
2 damages incurred by the Contractor for principal office expenses including the compensation of
personnel stationed there, for losses of financing, business and reputation, and for loss of profit, except
anticipated profit arising directly from the Work.

This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all consequential damages due to either party’s termination in
accordance with Article 14. Nothing contained in this Section 15.1.7 shall be deemed to preclude assessment of
liquidated damages, when applicable, in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 15.2 Initial Decision The Owner and Contractor will mutually agree on the Initial Decision Maker at the time that a claim arises.
§ 15.2.1 Claims, excluding those where the condition giving rise to the Claim is first discovered after expiration of the

period for correction of the Work set forth in Section 12.2.2 or arising under Sections 10.3, 10.4, and 11.5, shall be

referred to the Initial Decision Maker for initial decision. Except for those Claitns excluded by this Section 15.2.1, an

initial decision shall be required as a condition precedent to mediation of any Claim. If an initial decision has not been
rendered within 30 days after the Claim has been referred to the Initial Decision Maker, the party asserting the Claim

may demand mediation and binding dispute resolution without a decision having been rendered. Unless the Initial

Decision Maker and all affected parties agree, the Initial Decision Maker will not decide disputes between the

Contractor and persons or entities other than the Owner.

§ 15.2.2 The Initial Decision Maker will review Claims and within ten days of the receipt of a Claim take one or more
of the following actions: (1) request additional supporting data from the claimant or a response with supporting data
from the other party, (2) reject the Claim in whole or in part, (3) approve the Claim, (4) suggest a compromise, or (5)
advise the parties that the Initial Decision Maker is unable to resolve the Claim if the Initial Decision Maker lacks
sufficient information to evaluate the merits of the Claim or if the Initial Decision Maker concludes that, in the Initial
Decision Maker’s sole discretion, it would be inappropriate for the Initial Decision Maker to resolve the Claim.

§ 15.2.3 In evaluating Claims, the Initial Decision Maker may, but shall not be obligated to, consult with or seek
information from either party or from persons with special knowledge or expertise who may assist the Initial Decision
Maker in rendering a decision. The Initial Decision Maker may request the Owner to authorize retention of such
persons at the Owner’s expense.

§ 15.2.4 If the Initial Decision Maker requests a party to provide a response to a Claim or to furnish additional
supporting data, such party shall respond, within ten days after receipt of the request, and shall either (1) provide a
response on the requested supporting data, (2) advise the Initial Decision Maker when the response or supporting data
will be furnished, or (3) advise the Initial Decision Maker that no supporting data will be furnished. Upon receipt of
the response or suppotting data, if any, the Initial Decision Maker will either reject or approve the Claim in whole or in
part.

§ 15.2.5 The Initial Decision Maker will render an initial decision approving or rejecting the Claim, or indicating that
the Initial Decision Maker is unable to resolve the Claim. This initial decision shall (1) be in writing; (2) state the
reasons therefor; and (3) notify the parties and the Architect, if the Architectis not serving as the [nitial Decision
Maker, of any change in the Contract Sum or Contract Time or both.

Init AIA Document A201 — 2017. Copyright @ 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1851, 1858, 1861, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. Al rights
. reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “Amarican Institute of Architects,” “AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The 37
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Order No.21 14498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, Is not for
{ resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations,
e-mail docinfo@atacontracis.com.

User Notes: (2051888975)



| § 15.26

| § 15.2.6.1
§ 15.2.7 In the event of a Claim against the Contractor, the Owner may, but is not obligated to, notify the surety, if any,
of the nature and amount of the Claim. If the Claim relates to a possibility of a Contractor’s default, the Owner may,

but is not obligated to, notify the surety and request the surety's assistance in resolving the controversy.

§ 15.2.8 If a Claim relates to or is the subject of a mechanic’s lien, the party asserting such Claim may proceed in
accordance with applicable law to comply with the lien notice or filing deadlines.

| (Paragraphs deleted)

Init AlA Document A201 - 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1851, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1366, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights
nit. reserved. "The American Institute of Architects,” “American (nstitule of Architects,” “AlA,” the AIA Logo, and "AlA Contract Documents® are trademarks of The 38
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 08:37:02 ET on 11/05/2025 under Order No.2114498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for
1 resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used In accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To teport copyright violations,
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: {2051888975)



Init.

@AIA Document A133 -2019

Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Construction Manager as
Constructor where the basis of payment is the Cost of the Work Plus a Fee with a Guaranteed

Maximum Price

AGREEMENT made as of the tenth day of November in the year Twenty Twenty-five

(In words, indicate day, month, and year.)

BETWEEN the Owner:

(Name, legal status, address, and other information)

Town of Exeter
10 Front Street
Exeter, NH 03833

and the Construction Manager:
(Name, legal status, address, and other information)

Eckman Construction Company, Inc.
84 Palomino Lane
Bedford, NH 03110

for the following Project:
(Name, location, and detailed description)

Exeter Police Headquarters and Fire Substation
Exeter, NH

The Architect:
(Name, legal status, address, and other information)

Theodore (ted) Galante AIA LEED AP
TGAS The Galante Architecture Studio, Inc.
146 Mt Auburn Street

Cambridge, MA 02138

The Owner and Construction Manager agree as follows.

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS:

The author of this document has
added information needed for its
completion. The author may also
have revised the text of the original
AlA standard form. An Additions and
Deletions Report that notes added
information as well as revisions to the
standard form text is available from
the author and should be reviewed. A
vertical line in the left margin of this
document indicates where the author
has added necessary information
and where the author has added to or
deleted from the original AlA lext.

This document has important legal
consequences. Consultation with an
attorney is encouraged with respect
to its completion or modification.

AlA Document A201™-2017,
General Conditions of the Contract
for Construction, is adopted in this
document by reference. Do not use
with other general conditions unless
this document is modified.

AlA Document A133 — 2019. Copyright © 1991, 2003, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects.” “American Institute of Architects,”
"AlA,” the AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Inslitute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:09:47 ET on
11/06/2025 under Order No.2114498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for resale, is licensed for one-tirme use anly, and may only be used in accordance with

the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright viclalions, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes:

(1733517658)



TABLE OF ARTICLES

1 INITIAL INFORMATION

2 GENERAL PROVISIONS

3 CONSTRUCTION MANAGER'S RESPONSIBILITIES

4 OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES

5 COMPENSATION AND PAYMENTS FOR PRECONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES
6 COMPENSATION FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES
7 COST OF THE WORK FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE

8 DISCOUNTS, REBATES, AND REFUNDS

9 SUBCONTRACTS AND OTHER AGREEMENTS

10 ACCOUNTING RECORDS

1 PAYMENTS FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES

12 DISPUTE RESOLUTION

13 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION

14 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

15 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT

EXHIBITA GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE AMENDMENT
EXHIBITB INSURANCE AND BONDS

ARTICLE 1 INITIAL INFORMATION

§ 1.1 This Agreement is based on the Initial Information set forth in this Section 1.1.

(For each item in this section, insert the information or a statement such as "not applicable” or "unknown at time of
execution.”)

§ 1.1.1 The Owner’s program for the Project, as described in Section 4.1.1:
(Insert the Owner's program, identify documentation that establishes the Owner's program, or state the manner in which
the program will be developed.)

§ 1.1.2 The Project’s physical characteristics:

(Identify or describe pertinent information about the Project’s physical characteristics, such as size; location;
dimensions; geotechnical reports; site boundaries; topographic surveys; traffic and utility studies; availability of public
and private utilities and services; legal description of the site, etc.)

§ 1.1.3 The Owner’s budget for the Guaranteed Maximum Price, as defined in Article 6:
(Provide total and, if known, a line item breakdown.)

I 15,000,000
Init AlA Document A133 - 2018. Copyright ® 1891, 2003, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” "American Institute of Architects,”
nit. “AlA,” the AlA Lago, and "AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:09:47 ET an 2
11/08/2025 undar Order No.2114498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accerdance with
! the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright viclations, e-mall docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notos: (1733517658)



tnit.

§ 1.1.4 The Owner’s anticipated design and construction milestone dates:

A Design phase milestone dates, if any:

.2 Construction commencement date:

.3 Substantial Completion date or dates:

4  Other milestone dates:

§ 1.1.5 The Owner’s requirements for accelerated or fast-track scheduling, or phased construction, are set forth below:
(Identify any requirements for fast-track scheduling or phased construction.)

N/A

§ 1.1.6 The Owner’s anticipated Sustainable Objective for the Project:
(Tdentify and describe the Owner’s Sustainable Objective for the Project, if any.)

N/A

§ 1.1.6.1 If the Owner identifies a Sustainable Objective, the Owner and Construction Manager shall complete and
incorporate AIA Document E234™-2019, Sustainable Projects Exhibit, Construction Manager as Constructor Edition,
into this Agreement to define the terms, conditions and services related to the Owner’s Sustainable Objective. If
E234-2019 is incorporated into this agreement, the Owner and Construction Manager shall incorporate the completed
E234-2019 into the agreements with the consultants and contractors performing services or Work in any way associated
with the Sustainable Objective.

§ 1.1.7 Other Project information:
(Identify special characteristics or needs of the Project not provided elsewhere.)

§ 1.1.8 The Owner identifies the following representative in accordance with Section 4.2:
(List name, address, and other contact information.)

Melissa Roy

Interim Town Manager
Town of Exeter

10 Front Street

Exeter, NH 03833

§ 1.1.9 The persons or entities, in addition to the Owner's representative, who are required to review the Construction
Manager’s submittals to the Owner are as follows:
(List name, address and other contact information.)

AlA Bocument A133 — 2019. Copyright © 1891, 2003, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” "American Institute of Architects,”
“AlA," the AJA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of Tha American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:09:47 ET on
11/06/2025 under Order No.2114498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for resals, is ficensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To repart copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (1733517658)



§ 1.1.10 The Owner shall retain the following consultants and contractors:
(List name, legal status, address, and other contact information.)

.1 Geotechnical Engineer:

.2  Civil Engineer:

3  Other, ifany:
(List any other consultants retained by the Owner, such as a Project or Program Manager.)

§ 1.1.11 The Architect’s representative:
(List name, address, and other contact information.)

Ted Galante

The Galante Architecture Studio, Inc.
146 Mt Aubumn Street

Cambridge, MA 02138

§ 1.1.12 The Construction Manager identifies the following representative in accordance with Article 3:
(List name, address, and other contact information.)

John Deloia

Eckman Construction Company, Inc.
84 Palomino Lane

Bedford, NH 03110

§ 1.1.13 The Owner’s requirements for the Construction Manager's staffing plan for Preconstruction Services, as required
under Section 3.1.9:
(List any Owner-specific requirements to be included in the staffing pian.)

| N/A

§ 1.1.14 The Owner’s requirements for subcontractor procurement for the performance of the Work:
(List any Owner-specific requirements for subcontractor procurement.)

| N/A

§ 1.1.15 Other Initial Information on which this Agreement is based:

§ 1.2 The Owner and Construction Manager may rely on the Initial Information. Both parties, however, recognize that
such information may materially change and, in that event, the Owner and the Construction Manager shall appropriately

Init AlA Document A133 - 2019, Copyright ® 1891, 2003, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Aschitects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
nit, *AlA." the AlA Logo, and "AlA Conlract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Archltects. This document was produced at 10:09:47 ET on
11/06/2025 under Order N0.2114488152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for resala, is licensed for ong-time use cnly, and may only be used in accordance with
1 the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright viclations, e-mall docinfe@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1733517658)



Init.

adjust the Project schedule, the Construction Manager’s services, and the Construction Manager's compensation. The
Owner shall adjust the Owner’s budget for the Guaranteed Maximum Price and the Owner’s anticipated design and
construction milestones, as necessary, to accommodate material changes in the Initial Information.

§ 1.3 Neither the Owner’s nor the Construction Manager’s representative shall be changed without ten days’ prior notice
to the other party.

ARTICLE 2 GENERAL PROVISIONS

§ 2.1 The Contract Documents

The Contract Decuments consist of this Agreement, Conditions of the Contract (General, Supplementary and other
Conditions), Drawings, Specifications, Addenda issued prior to execution of this Agreement, other documents listed in
this Agreement, and Modifications issued after exccution of this Agreement, all of which form the Contract and are as
fully a part of the Contract as if attached to this Agreement or repeated herein. Upon the Owner’s acceptance of the
Construction Manager’s Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal, the Contract Documents will also include the documents
described in Section 3.2.3 and identified in the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment and revisions prepared by the
Architect and furnished by the Owner as described in Section 3.2.8. The Contract represents the entire and integrated
agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or
oral. If anything in the other Contract Documents, other than a Modification, is inconsistent with this Agreement, this
Agreement shall govern. An enumeration of the Contract Documents, other than a Modification, appears in Article 15.

§ 2.2 Relationship of the Parties

The Construction Manager accepts the relationship of trust and confidence established by this Agreement and covenants
with the Owner to cooperate with the Architect and exercise the Construction Manager’s skill and judgment in furthering
the interests of the Owner to furnish efficient construction administration, management services, and supervision; to
furnish at all times an adequate supply of workers and materials; and to perform the Work in an expeditious and
economical manner consistent with the Owner’s interests. The Owner agrees to furnish or approve, in a timely manner,
information required by the Construction Manager and to make payments to the Construction Manager in accordance with
the requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 2.3 General Conditions

§ 2.3.1 For the Preconstruction Phase, AIA Document A201™-2017, General Conditions of the Contract for
Construction, shall apply as follows: Section 1.5, Ownership and Use of Documents; Section 1.7, Digital Data Use and
Transmission; Section 1.8, Building Information Model Use and Reliance; Section 2.2.4, Confidential Information;
Section 3.12.10, Professional Services; Section 10.3, Hazardous Materials; Section 13.1, Governing Law. The term
"Contractor" as used in A201-2017 shall mean the Construction Manager.

§ 2.3.2 For the Construction Phase, the general conditions of the contract shall be as set forth in A201-2017, which
document is incorporated herein by reference. The term "Contractor” as used in A201-201 7 shall mean the Construction
Manager.

ARTICLE 3 CONSTRUCTION MANAGER'S RESPONSIBILITIES

The Construction Manager's Preconstruction Phase responsibilities are set forth in Sections 3.1 and 3.2, and in the
applicable provisions of A201-2017 referenced in Section 2.3.1. The Construction Manager's Construction Phase
responsibilities are set forth in Section 3.3. The Owner and Construction Manager may agree, in consultation with the
Architect, for the Construction Phase to commence prior to completion of the Preconstruction Phase, in which case, both
phases will proceed concurrently. The Construction Manager shall identify a representative authorized to act on behalf of
the Construction Manager with respect to the Project.

§ 3.1 Preconstruction Phase

§ 3.1.1Extent of Responsibility

The Construction Manager shall exercise reasonable care in performing its Preconstruction Services. The Owner and
Architect shall be entitled to rely on, and shall not be responsible for, the accuracy, completeness, and timeliness of
services and information furnished by the Construction Manager. The Construction Manager, however, does not warrant
or guarantee estimates and schedules except as may be included as part of the Guaranteed Maximum Price. The
Construction Manager is not required to ascertain that the Drawings and Specifications are in accordance with applicable
laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, but the Construction

AlA Document A133 ~ 2019. Copyright © 1991, 2003, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” "American Institute of Architects,”

“AlA" the AlA Logo, and “A!A Contract Documents® are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:09:47 ET on

14/06/2025 under Order No.2114498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for resale, Is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used In accordance with

the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To raport copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@alacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1733517858)



Init.

Manager shall promptly report to the Architect and Owner any nonconformity discovered by or made known to the
Construction Manager as a request for information in such form as the Architect may require.

§ 3.1.2 The Construction Manager shall provide a preliminary evaluation of the Owner’s program, schedule and
construction budget requirements, each in terms of the other.

§ 3.1.3 Consultation
§ 3.1.3.1 The Construction Manager shall schedule and conduct meetings with the Architect and Owner to discuss such
matters as procedures, progress, coordination, and scheduling of the Work.

§ 3.1.3.2 The Construction Manager shall advise the Owner and Architect on proposed site use and improvements,
selection of materials, building systems, and equipment. The Construction Manager shall also provide recommendations
to the Owner and Architect, consistent with the Project requirements, on constructability; availability of materials and
labor; time requirements for procurement, installation and construction; prefabrication; and factors related to construction
cost including, but not limited to, costs of alternative designs or materials, preliminary budgets, life-cycle data, and
possible cost reductions. The Construction Manager shall consult with the Architect regarding professional services to be
provided by the Construction Manager during the Construction Phase.

§ 3.1.3.3 The Construction Manager shall assist the Owner and Architect in establishing written protocols for the
development, use, transmission, reliance, and exchange of digital data, including building information models for the
Project.

§ 3.1.4Project Schedute

When Project requirements in Section 4.1.1 have been sufficiently identified, the Construction Manager shall prepare and
periodically update a Project schedule for the Architect’s review and the Owner’s acceptance. The Construction Manager
shall obtain the Architect’s approval for the portion of the Project schedule relating to the performance of the Architect’s
services. The Project schedule shall coordinate and integrate the Construction Manager’s services, the Architect’s
services, other Owner consultants’ services, and the Owner’s responsibilities; and identify items that affect the Project’s
timely completion. The updated Project schedule shall include the following: submission of the Guaranteed Maximum
Price proposal; components of the Work; times of commencement and completion required of each Subcontractor;
ordering and delivery of products, including those that must be ordered in advance of construction; and the occupancy
requirements of the Owner.

§ 3.1.5 Phased Construction

The Construction Manager, in consultation with the Architect, shall provide recommendations with regard to accelerated
or fast-track scheduling, procurement, and sequencing for phased construction. The Construction Manager shall take into
consideration cost reductions, cost information, constructability, provisions for temporary facilities, and procurement and
construction scheduling issues.

§ 3.1.6 Cost Estimates

§ 3.1.6.1 Based on the preliminary design and other design criteria prepared by the Architect, the Construction Manager
shall prepare, for the Architect’s review and the Owner’s approval, preliminary estimates of the Cost of the Work or the
cost of program requirements using area, volume, or similar conceptual estimating techniques. If the Architect or
Construction Manager suggests alternative materials and systems, the Construction Manager shall provide cost
evaluations of those alternative materials and systems.

§ 3.1.6.2 As the Architect progresses with the preparation of the Schematic Design, Design Development and
Construction Documents, the Construction Manager shall prepare and update, at appropriate intervals agreed to by the
Owner, Construction Manager and Architect, an estimate of the Cost of the Work with increasing detail and refinement.
The Construction Manager shall include in the estimate those costs to allow for the further development of the design,
price escalation, and market conditions, until such time as the Owner and Construction Manager agree on a Guaranteed
Maximum Price for the Work. The estimate shali be provided for the Architect’s review and the Owner’s approval. The
Construction Manager shall inform the Owner and Architect in the event that the estimate of the Cost of the Work exceeds
the latest approved Project budget, and make recommendations for correctlive action.

AlA Document A133 - 2019. Copyright © 1991, 2003, 2009, and 2019. All rights reservad. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
"AlA;” the AlA Logo, and “"AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:09:47 ET on
11/06/2025 under Order No.2114488152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for resale, Is ficensed for one-time use only, and may only bs used in accordance with
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violaticns, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (1733517658)



Init.

§ 3.1.6.3 If the Architect is providing cost estimating services as a Supplemental Service, and a discrepancy exists
between the Construction Manager's cost estimates and the Architect’s cost estimates, the Construction Manager and the
Architect shall work together to reconcile the cost estimates.

§ 3.1.7 As the Architect progresses with the preparation of the Schematic Design, Design Development and Construction
Documents, the Construction Manager shall consult with the Owner and Architect and make recommendations regarding
constructability and schedules, for the Architect’s review and the Owner’s approval.

§ 3.1.8 The Construction Manager shall provide recommendations and information to the Owner and Architect regarding
equipment, materials, services, and temporary Project facilities.

§ 3.1.9 The Construction Manager shall provide a staffing plan for Preconstruction Phase services for the Owner’s review
and approval.

§ 3.1.101f the Owner identified a Sustainable Objective in Article 1, the Construction Manager shall fulfill its
Preconstruction Phase responsibilities as required in AIA Document E234™-2019, Sustainable Projects Exhibit,
Construction Manager as Constructor Edition, attached to this Agreement.

§ 3.1.11 Subcontractors and Suppliers
§ 3.1.11.1 1f the Owner has provided requirements for subcontractor procurement in section 1.1.14, the Construction
Manager shall provide a subcontracting plan, addressing the Owner’s requirements, for the Owner's review and approval.

§ 3.1.112 The Construction Manager shall develop bidders’ interest in the Project.
§ 3.1.11.3 The processes described in Article 9 shall apply if bid packages will be issued during the Preconstruction Phase.

§ 3.1.12Procurement

The Construction Manager shall prepare, for the Architect’s review and the Owner’s acceptance, a procurement schedule
for items that must be ordered in advance of construction. The Construction Manager shall expedite and coordinate the
ordering and delivery of materials that must be ordered in advance of construction. If the Owner agrees to procure any
items prior to the establishment of the Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Owner shall procure the items on terms and
conditions acceptable to the Construction Manager. Upon the establishment of the Guaranteed Maximum Price, the
Owner shall assign all contracts for these items to the Construction Manager and the Construction Manager shall
thereafter accept responsibility for them.

§ 3.1.13 Compliance with Laws

The Construction Manager shall comply with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, and
lawful orders of public authorities applicable to its performance under this Contract, and with equal employment
opportunity programs, and other programs as may be required by governmental and quasi-governmental authorities.

§ 3.1.14 Other Preconstruction Services

Insert a description of any other Preconstruction Phase services to be provided by the Construction Manager, or reference
an exhibit attached to this document

(Describe any other Preconstruction Phase services, such as providing cash flow projections, development of a project
information management system, early selection or procurement of subcontractors, etc.)

NA

§ 3.2 Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal

§ 3.2.1 At atime to be mutually agreed upon by the Owner and the Construction Manager, the Construction Manager shall
prepare a Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal for the Owner’s and Architect’s review, and the Owner’s acceptance. The
Guaranteed Maximum Price in the proposal shall be the sum of the Construction Manager’s estimate of the Cost of the
Work, the Construction Manager's contingency described in Section 3.2.4, and the Construction Manager's Fee described
in Section 6.1.2.

§ 3.2.2 To the extent that the Contract Documents are anticipated to require further development, the Guaranteed
Maximum Price includes the costs attributable to such further development consistent with the Contract Documents and

AlIA Document A133 — 2019. Copyright © 1991, 2003, 2008, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” "American Institute of Architects.”
“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents® are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:09:47 ET on
11/06/2025 under Order No.2114488152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for resale, is licensed for one-tima use only, and may only be used in accordance with
the AIA Contract Documanis® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: {1733517658)



Init.

reasonably inferable therefrom. Such further development does not include changes in scope, systems, kinds and quality
of materials, finishes, or equipment, all of which, if required, shall be incorporated by Change Order.

§ 3.2.3 The Construction Manager shall include with the Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal a written statement of its
basis, which shall include the following:

A Alist of the Drawings and Specifications, including all Addenda thereto, and the Conditions of the
Contract;

.2 A list of the clarifications and assumptions made by the Construction Manager in the preparation of the
Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal, including assumptions under Section 3.2.2;

.3 A statement of the proposed Guaranteed Maximum Price, inchiding a statement of the estimated Cost of
the Work organized by trade categories or systems, including allowances; the Construction Manager’s
contingency set forth in Section 3.2.4; and the Construction Manager’s Fee;

4  The anticipated date of Substantial Completion upon which the proposed Guaranteed Maximum Price is
based; and

.5 A date by which the Owner must accept the Guaranteed Maximum Price.

§ 3.2.4 In preparing the Construction Manager’s Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal, the Construction Manager shall
include a contingency for the Construction Manager’s exclusive use to cover those costs that are included in the
Guaranteed Maximum Price but not otherwise allocated to another line item or included in a Change Order.

§ 3.2,5 The Construction Manager shall meet with the Owner and Architect to review the Guaranteed Maximum Price
proposal. In the event that the Owner or Architect discover any inconsistencies or inaccuracies in the information
presented, they shall promptly notify the Construction Manager, who shall make appropriate adjustments to the
Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal, its basis, or both.

§ 3.2.6 If the Owner notifies the Construction Manager that the Owner has accepted the Guaranteed Maximum Price
proposal in writing before the date specified in the Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal, the Guaranteed Maximum Price
proposal shall be deemed effective without further acceptance from the Construction Manager. Following acceptance of a
Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Owner and Construction Manager shall execute the Guaranteed Maximum Price
Amendment amending this Agreement, a copy of which the Owner shall provide to the Architect. The Guaranteed
Maximum Price Amendment shall set forth the agreed upon Guaranteed Maximum Price with the information and
assumptions upon which it is based.

§ 3.2.7 The Construction Manager shall not incur any cost to be reimbursed as part of the Cost of the Work prior to the
execution of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment, unless the Owner provides prior written authorization for such
costs.

§ 3.2.8 The Owner shall authorize preparation of revisions to the Contract Documents that incorporate the agreed-upon
assumptions and clarifications contained in the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment. The Owner shall promptly
furmish such revised Contract Documents to the Construction Manager. The Construction Manager shall notify the Owner
and Architect of any inconsistencies between the agreed-upon assumptions and clarifications contained in the Guaranteed
Maximum Price Amendment and the revised Contract Documents.

§ 3.2.9 The Construction Manager shall include in the Guaranteed Maximum Price all sales, consumer, use and similar
taxes for the Work provided by the Construction Manager that are legally enacted, whether or not yet effective, at the time
the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment is executed.

§ 3.3 Construction Phase

§ 3.3.1 General

§ 3.3.1.1 For purposes of Section 8.1.2 of A201-2017, the date of commencement of the Work shall mean the date of
commencement of the Construction Phase.

§ 3.3.1.2 The Construction Phase shall commence upon the Owner’s execution of the Guaranteed Maximum Price
Amendment or, prior to acceptance of the Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal, by written agreement of the parties. The
written agreement shall set forth a description of the Work to be performed by the Construction Manager, and any
insurance and bond requirements for Work performed prior to execution of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment.

AlA Document A133 - 2019. Cepyright © 1991, 2003, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”

“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents™ are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was producad at 10:09:47 ET on

11/06/2025 under Order No.2114498152 which expiras on 12/31/2025, is not for resale, is licensed for ane-time use only, and may only ba used in accordance with

the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Sarvice. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@alacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1733517658)



§ 3.3.2 Administration

§ 3.3.2.1 The Construction Manager shall schedule and conduct meetings to discuss such matters as procedures, progress,
coordination, scheduling, and status of the Work. The Construction Manager shall prepare and promptly distribute
minutes of the meetings to the Owner and Architect.

§ 3.3.2.2 Upon the execution of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment, the Construction Manager shall prepare and
submit to the Owner and Architect a construction schedule for the Work and a submittal schedule in accordance with
Section 3.10 of A201-2017.

§ 3.3.2.3 Monthly Report

The Construction Manager shall record the progress of the Project. On a monthly basis, or otherwise as agreed to by the
Owner, the Construction Manager shall submit written progress reports to the Owner and Architect, showing percentages
of completion and other information required by the Owner.

§ 3.3.24 Daily Logs

The Construction Manager shall keep, and make available to the Owner and Architect, a daily log containing a record for
each day of weather, portions of the Work in progress, number of workers on site, identification of equipment on site,
problems that might affect progress of the work, accidents, injuries, and other information required by the Owner.

§ 3.3.2.5 Cost Control

The Construction Manager shall develop a system of cost control for the Work, including regular monitoring of actual
costs for activities in progress and estimates for uncompleted tasks and proposed changes. The Construction Manager
shall identify variances between actual and estimated costs and report the variances to the Owner and Architect, and shall
provide this information in its monthly reports to the Owner and Architect, in accordance with Section 3.3.2.3 above.

ARTICLE 4 OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES

§ 4.1 Information and Services Required of the Owner

§ 4.1.1 The Owner shall provide information with reasonable promptness, regarding requirements for and limitations on
the Project, including a written program which shall set forth the Owner’s objectives, constraints, and criteria, including
schedule, space requirements and relationships, flexibility and expandability, special equipment, systems, sustainability
and site requirements.

§ 4.1.2 Prior to the execution of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment, the Construction Manager may request in
writing that the Owner provide reasonable evidence that the Owner has made financial arrangements to fulfill the Owner’s
obligations under the Contract. After execution of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment, the Construction
Manager may request such information as set forth in A201-2017 Section 2.2.

§ 4.1.3 The Owner shall establish and periodically update the Owner’s budget for the Project, including (1) the budget for
the Cost of the Work as defined in Article 7, (2) the Owner’s other costs, and (3) reasonable contingencies related to all of
these costs. If the Owner significantly increases or decreases the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work, the Owner
shall notify the Construction Manager and Architect. The Owner and the Architect, in consultation with the Construction
Manager, shall thereafter agree to a corresponding change in the Project’s scope and quality.

§ 4.1.4 Structural and Environmental Tests, Surveys and Reports. During the Preconstruction Phase, the Owner shall
furnish the following information or services with reasonable promptness. The Owner shall also furnish any other
information or services under the Owner’s control and relevant to the Construction Manager’s performance of the Work
with reasonable promptness after receiving the Construction Manager’s written request for such information or services.
The Construction Manager shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy of information and services furnished by the Owner
but shall exercise proper precautions relating to the safe performance of the Work.

§ 4.1.4.1 The Owner shall furnish tests, inspections, and reports, required by law and as otherwise agreed to by the parties,
such as structural, mechanical, and chemical tests, tests for air and water pollution, and tests for hazardous materials.

§ 4.1.4.2 The Owner shall furnish surveys describing physical characteristics, legal limitations and utility locations for the
site of the Project, and a written legal description of the site. The surveys and legal information shall include, as
applicable, grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements and adjoining property and structures; designated wetlands;
adjacent drainage; rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, boundaries and

Init. AlA Document A133 — 2019. Copyright © 1891, 2003, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” "American Inslitute of Architects,”
“AlA," the AIA Logo, and "AlA Contract Documents® are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:09:47 ET on 9
11/06/2025 under Order No.2114498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with

1 the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@atacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1733517658)



contours of the site; locations, dimensions and other necessary data with respect to existing buildings, other improvements
and trees; and information concerning available utility services and lines, both public and private, above and below grade,
including inverts and depths. All the information on the survey shall be referenced to a Project benchmark.

§ 4.1.4.3 The Owner, when such services are requested, shall furnish services of geotechnical engineers, which may
include test borings, test pits, determinations of soil bearing values, percolation tests, evaluations of hazardous materials,
seismic evaluation, ground corrosion tests and resistivity tests, including necessary operations for anticipating subsoil
conditions, with written reports and appropriate recommendations.

§ 4.1.5 During the Construction Phase, the Owner shall furnish information or services required of the Owner by the
Contract Documents with reasonable promptness. The Owner shall also furnish any other information or services under
the Owner’s control and relevant to the Construction Manager’s performance of the Work with reasonable promptness
after receiving the Construction Manager’s written request for such information or services.

§ 4.1.6 If the Owner identified a Sustainable Objective in Article 1, the Owner shall fulfill its responsibilities as required
in AIA Document E234™.-2019, Sustainable Projects Exhibit, Construction Manager as Constructor Edition, attached to
this Agreement.

§ 4.2 Owner's Designated Representative

The Owner shall identify a representative authorized to act on behalf of the Owner with respect to the Project. The
Owner's representative shali render decisions promptly and furnish information expeditiously, so as to avoid
unreasonable delay in the services or Work of the Construction Manager. Except as otherwise provided in Section 4.2.1 of
A201-2017, the Architect does not have such authority. The term “Owner" means the Owner or the Owner’s authorized
representative.

§ 4.2.1 Legal Requirements. The Owner shall furnish all legal, insurance and accounting services, including auditing
services, that may be reasonably necessary at any time for the Project to meet the Owner's needs and interests.

§ 4.3 Architect

The Owner shall retain an Architect to provide services, duties and responsibilities as described in AIA Document
B103™-2017, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Architect, Construction Manager as Constructor
Edition, including any additional services requested by the Construction Manager that are necessary for the
Preconstruction and Construction Phase services under this Agreement. The Owner shall provide the Construction
Manager with a copy of the scope of services in the executed agreement between the Owner and the Architect, and any
further modifications to the Architect’s scope of services in the agreement.

ARTICLE § COMPENSATION AND PAYMENTS FOR PRECONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES

§ 5.1 Compensaticn

§ 5.1.1 For the Construction Manager’s Preconstruction Phase services described in Sections 3.1 and 3.2, the Owner shall
compensate the Construction Manager as follows:

(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation and include a list of reimbursable cost items, as applicable.)

| $20,000 + $20,000 = $40,000
§ 5.1.2 The hourly billing rates for Preconstruction Phase services of the Construction Manager and the Construction

Manager's Consultants and Subcontractors, if any, are set forth below.
(If applicable, attach an exhibit of hourly billing rates or insert them below.)

Individual or Position Rate

§ 5.1.2.1 Hourly billing rates for Preconstruction Phase services include all costs to be paid or incurred by the
Construction Manager, as required by law or collective bargaining agreements, for taxes, insurance, contributions,
assessments and benefits and, for personnel not covered by collective bargaining agreements, customary benefits such as

AlA Bocument A133 - 2019. Copyright & 1991, 2003, 2009, and 2019. Al rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” "American Institute of Architects,”
"AlA,” the AlA Logo, and "AlA Contract Documents® are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:09:47 ET on 10
11/06/2025 under Order No.2114498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for tesale, is licensed for ong-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with

! the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copysight victations, e-mail docinfo@alacontracts.com.

User Notes: (1733517658)



sick leave, medical and health benefits, holidays, vacations and pensions, and shall remain unchanged unless the parties
execute a Modification.

§ 5.1.3 If the Preconstruction Phase services covered by this Agreement have not been completed within zero ( 0 ) months
of the date of this Agreement, through no fault of the Construction Manager, the Construction Manager’s compensation
for Preconstruction Phase services shall be equitably adjusted. Preconstruction phase Spring 2025 through November 1,
2025.

§ 5.2 Payments
§ 5.2.1 Unless otherwise agreed, payments for services shall be made monthly in proportion to services performed.

§ 5.2.2 Payments are due and payable upon presentation of the Construction Manager’s invoice. Amounts unpaid thirty (
30) days after the invoice date shall bear interest at the rate entered below, or in the absence thereof at the legal rate
prevailing from time to time at the principal place of business of the Construction Manager.

(Insert rate of monthly or annual interest agreed upon.)

| 5%

ARTICLE 6 COMPENSATION FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES

§ 6.1 Contract Sum

§ 6.1.1 The Owner shall pay the Construction Manager the Contract Sum in current funds for the Construction Manager’s
performance of the Contract after cxecution of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment. The Contract Sum is the
Cost of the Work as defined in Article 7 plus the Construction Manager’s Fee.

§ 6.1.2 The Construction Manager’s Fee:
(State a lump sum, percentage of Cost of the Work or other provision for determining the Construction Manager's Fee.)

Fixed sum Five Hundred Thirteen Thousand Dollars ($513,000)
Fixed sum GC & GR One Million, Six Thousand Dollars ($1,006,000

§ 6.1.3 The method of adjustment of the Construction Manager’s Fee for changes in the Work:
| 3.5% + GC insurance and bonds

§ 6.1.4 Limitations, if any, on a Subcontractor’s overhead and profit for increases in the cost of its portion of the Work:
| N/A

§ 6.1.5 Rental rates for Construction Manager-owned equipment shall not exceed ninety-five percent ( 95 %) of the
standard rental rate paid at the place of the Project.

§ 6.1.6 Liquidated damages, if any:
(Insert terms and conditions for liquidated damages, if any.)

| N/A

§ 6.1.7 Other:
(Insert provisions for bonus, cost savings or other incentives, if any, that might result in a change to the Contract Sum.)

§ 6.2 Guaranteed Maximum Price

The Construction Manager guarantees that the Contract Sum shall not exceed the Guaranteed Maximum Price set forth in
the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment, subject to additions and deductions by Change Order as provided in the
Contract Documents. Costs which would cause the Guaranteed Maximum Price to be exceeded shall be paid by the
Construction Manager without reimbursement by the Owner.

AlA Document A133 — 2019, Copyright ® 1991, 2003, 2009, and 2018. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects.” “American Ingtitute of Architects,”

Init. “AlA" the AlA Logo, and “AlA Conlract Documents” are trademarks of The Amaerican Institute of Aschitects. This document was produced at 10:09:47 ET on 1
11/06/2025 under Order N0.2114498152 which explres on 12/31/2025, Is not for resale, s licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with
/ the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright viotations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (1733517658)



§ 6.3 Changes in the Work

§ 6.3.1 The Owner may, without invalidating the Contract, order changes in the Work within the general scope of the
Contract consisting of additions, deletions or other revisions. The Owner shall issue such changes in writing. The
Construction Manager may be entitled to an equitable adjustment in the Contract Time as a result of changes in the Work.

§ 6.3.1.1 The Architect may order minor changes in the Work as provided in Article 7 of AIA Document A201-2017,
General Conditions of the Contract for Construction.

§ 6.3.2 Adjustments to the Guaranteed Maximum Price on account of changes in the Work subsequent to the execution of
the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment may be determined by any of the methods listed in Article 7 of AIA
Document A201-2017, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction,

§ 6.3.3 Adjustments to subcontracts awarded on the basis of a stipulated sum shall be determined in accordance with
Article 7 of A201-2017, as they refer to "cost” and "fee,” and not by Articles 6 and 7 of this Agreement, Adjustments to
subcontracts awarded with the Owner’s prior written consent on the basis of cost plus a fee shall be calculated in
accordance with the terms of those subcontracts.

§ 6.3.4 In calculating adjustments to the Guaranteed Maximum Price, the terms “cost" and "costs” as used in Article 7 of
AlA Document A201-2017 shall mean the Cost of the Work as defined in Article 7 of this Agreement and the term "fee"
shall mean the Construction Manager’s Fee as defined in Section 6.1.2 of this Agreement.

§ 6.3.5 If no specific provision is made in Section 6.1.3 for adjustment of the Construction Manager’s Fee in the case of
changes in the Work, or if the extent of such changes is such, in the aggregate, that application of the adjustment
provisions of Section 6.1.3 will cause substantial inequity to the Owner or Construction Manager, the Construction
Manager’s Fee shall be equitably adjusted on the same basis that was used to establish the Fee for the original Work, and
the Guaranteed Maximum Price shall be adjusted accordingly.

ARTICLE 7 COST OF THE WORK FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE

§ 7.1 Costs to Be Reimbursed

§ 7.1.1 The term Cost of the Work shall mean costs necessarily incurred by the Construction Manager in the proper
performance of the Work. The Cost of the Work shall include only the items set forth in Sections 7.1 through 7.7.

§ 7.1.2 Where, pursuant to the Contract Documents, any cost is subject to the Owner’s prior approval, the Construction
Manager shall obtain such approval in writing prior to incurring the cost.

§ 7.1.3 Costs shall be at rates not higher than the standard rates paid at the place of the Project, except with prior approval
of the Owner.

§ 7.2 Labor Costs
§ 7.2.1 Wages or salaries of construction workers directly employed by the Construction Manager to perform the
construction of the Work at the site or, with the Owner’s prior approval, at off-site workshops.

§ 7.2.2 Wages or salaries of the Construction Manager’s supervisory and administrative personnel when stationed at the
site, home office and performing Work, with the Owner’s prior approval.

§ 7.2.2.1 Wages or salaries of the Construction Manager’s supervisory and administrative personnel when performing
Work and stationed at a location other than the site, but only for that portion of time required for the Work, and limited to
the personnel and activities listed below:

(Identify the personnel, type of activity and, if applicable, any agreed upon percentage of time to be devoted to the Work.)

PX - $150/hr

PM - $130/r

Asst. PM - $100/hr
Super - $130/hr

Asst. Super - $160/hr
Carpenter - $75/hr
Laborer - $70/hr

AlA Document A133 - 2019. Copyright © 1991, 2003, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architacts,” "American Institute of Architscts,”
“AlA," the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:09:47 ET on 12
11/66/2025 under Order No.2114498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, Is not for resale, is licansed for one-time use only, and may only ba used in accerdance with

/ the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (1733517658)

tnit.



§ 7.2.3 Wages and salaries of the Construction Manager’s supervisory or administrative personnel engaged at factories,
workshops or while traveling, in expediting the production or transportation of materials or equipment required for the
Work, but only for that portion of their time required for the Work.

§ 7.2.4 Costs paid or incurred by the Construction Manager, as required by law or collective bargaining agreements, for
taxes, insurance, contributions, assessments and benefits and, for personnel not covered by collective bargaining
agreements, customary benefits such as sick leave, medical and health benefits, holidays, vacations and pensions,
provided such costs are based on wages and salaries included in the Cost of the Work under Sections 7.2.1 through 7.2.3.

§ 7.2.5 If agreed rates for labor costs, in lieu of actual costs, are provided in this Agreement, the rates shall remain
unchanged throughout the duration of this Agreement, unless the parties execute a Modification,

§ 7.3 Subcontract Costs

Paymenis made by the Construction Manager to Subcontractors in accordance with the requirements of the subcontracts
and this Agreement,

§ 7.4 Costs of Materials and Equipment Incorporated in the Completed Construction
§ 74.1 Costs, including transportation and storage at the site, of materials and equipment incorporated, or to be
incorporated, in the completed construction.

§ 7.4.2 Costs of materials described in the preceding Section 7.4.1 in excess of those actually installed to allow for
reasonable waste and spoilage. Unused excess materials, if any, shall become the Owner’s property at the completion of
the Work or, at the Owner’s option, shall be sold by the Construction Manager. Any amounts realized from such sales
shall be credited to the Owner as a deduction from the Cost of the Work.

§ 7.5 Costs of Other Materials and Equipment, Temporary Facilities and Related Items

§ 7.5.1 Costs of transportation, storage, installation, dismantling, maintenance, and removal of materials, supplies,
temporary facilities, machinery, equipment and hand tools not customarily owned by construction workers that are
provided by the Construction Manager at the site and fully consumed in the performance of the Work. Costs of materials,
supplies, temporary facilities, machinery, equipment, and tools, that are not fully consumed, shall be based on the cost or
value of the item at the time it is first used on the Project site less the value of the item when it is no longer used at the
Project site. Costs for items not fully consumed by the Construction Manager shail mean fair market value.

§ 7.5.2 Rental charges for temporary facilities, machinery, equipment, and hand tools not customarily owned by
construction workers that are provided by the Construction Manager at the site, and the costs of transportation,
installation, dismantling, minor repairs, and removal of such temporary facilities, machinery, equipment, and hand tools.
Rates and quantities of equipment owned by the Construction Manager, or a related party as defined in Section 7.8, shall
be subject to the Owner’s prior approval. The total rental cost of any such equipment may not exceed the purchase price of
any comparable item.

§ 7.5.3 Costs of removal of debris from the site of the Work and its proper and legal disposal.
§ 7.5.4 Costs of the Construction Manager’s site office, including general office equipment and supplies.

§ 7.5.5 Costs of materials and equipment suitably stored off the site at a mutually acceptable location, subject to the
Owner's prior approval.

§ 7.6 Miscellaneous Costs
§ 7.6.1 Premiums for that portion of insurance and bonds required by the Contract Documents that can be directly
attributed to this Contract. Insurance, Bonds and Builder's Risk fixed sum total of $390,000

§ 7.6.1.1 Costs for self-insurance, for either full or partial amounts of the coverages required by the Contract Documents,
with the Owner’s prior approval.

§ 7.6.1.2 Costs for insurance through a captive insurer owned or controlled by the Construction Manager, with the
Owmer's prior approval.

Init AIA Document A133 — 2019. Copyright © 1991, 2003, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
* “"AlA;" tha AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Archilects. This document was groduced at 10:09:47 ET on 13
14/08/2025 under Order No.2114498152 which expiras on 12/31/2025, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with
/ the A1A Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: {1733517658)



§ 7.6.2 Sales, use, or similar taxes, imposed by a governmental authority, that are related to the Work and for which the
Construction Manager is liable.

§ 7.6.3 Fees and assessments for the building permit, and for other permits, licenses, and inspections, for which the
Construction Manager is required by the Contract Documents to pay.

§ 7.6.4 Fees of laboratories for tests required by the Contract Documents; except those related to defective or
nonconforming Work for which reimbursement is excluded under Article 13 of AIA Document A201-2017 or by other
provisions of the Contract Documents, and which do not fall within the scope of Section 7.7.3.

§ 7.8.5 Royalties and license fees paid for the use of a particular design, process, or product, required by the Contract
Documents.

§ 7.6.5.1 The cost of defending suits or claims for infringement of patent rights arising from requirements of the Contract
Documents, payments made in accordance with legal judgments against the Construction Manager resulting from such
suits or claims, and payments of settlements made with the Owner’s consent, unless the Construction Manager had reason
to believe that the required design, process, or product was an infringement of a copyright or a patent, and the
Construction Manager failed to promptly furnish such information to the Architect as required by Article 3 of AIA
Document A201-2017. The costs of legal defenses, judgments, and settlements shall not be included in the Cost of the
Work used to calculate the Construction Manager’s Fee or subject to the Guaranteed Maximum Price.

§ 7.6.6 Costs for communications services, electronic equipment, and software, directly related to the Work and located at
the site, with the Owner’s prior approval.

§ 7.6.7 Costs of document reproductions and delivery charges.

§ 7.6.8 Deposits lost for causes other than the Construction Manager’s negligence or failure to fulfill a specific
responsibility in the Contract Documents.

§ 7.6.9 Legal, mediation and arbitration costs, including attorneys’ fees, other than those arising from disputes between the
Owner and Construction Manager, reasonably incurred by the Construction Manager after the execution of this Agreement in
the performance of the Work and with the Owner’s prior approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.

§ 7.6.10 Expenses incurred in accordance with the Construction Manager's standard written personnel policy for
relocation and temporary living allowances of the Construction Manager’s personnel required for the Work, with the
Owner's prior approval.

§ 7.6.11 That portion of the reasonable expenses of the Construction Manager’s supervisory or administrative personnel
incurred while traveling in discharge of duties connected with the Work.

§ 7.7 Other Costs and Emergencies
§ 7.7.1 Other costs incurred in the performance of the Work, with the Owner’s prior approval.

§ 7.7.2 Costs incurred in taking action to prevent threatened damage, injury, or loss, in case of an emergency affecting the
safety of persons and property, as provided in Article 10 of AIA Document A201-2017.

§ 7.7.3 Costs of repairing or correcting damaged or nonconforming Work executed by the Construction Manager,
Subcontractors, or suppliers, provided that such damaged or nonconforming Work was not caused by the negligence of, or
failure to fulfill a specific responsibility by, the Construction Manager, and only to the extent that the cost of repair or
correction is not recovered by the Construction Manager from insurance, sureties, Subcontractors, suppliers, or others.

§ 1.1.4 The costs described in Sections 7.1 through 7.7 shall be included in the Cost of the Work, notwithstanding any
provision of AIA Document A201-2017 or other Conditions of the Contract which may require the Construction Manager
to pay such costs, unless such costs are excluded by the provisions of Section 7.9.

AlA Document A133 — 2019. Copyright © 1991, 2003, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
“AIA" the AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents® are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:09:47 ET on 14
11/06/2025 under Order No.2114498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for resale, is licensed for ana-time use only, and may only be used in accerdance with

! the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (1733517658)

Init.



§ 7.8 Related Party Transactions

§ 7.8.1 For purposes of this Section 7.8, the term "related party” shall mean (1) a parent, subsidiary, affiliate, or other
entity having common ownership of, or sharing common management with, the Construction Manager; (2) any entity in
which any stockholder in, or management employee of, the Construction Manager holds an equity interest in excess of ten
percent in the aggregate; (3) any entity which has the right to control the business or affairs of the Construction Manager;
or (4) any person, or any member of the immediate family of any person, who has the right to control the business or
affairs of the Construction Manager.

§ 7.8.2If any of the costs to be reimbursed arise from a transaction between the Construction Manager and a related party,
the Construction Manager shall notify the Owner of the specific nature of the contemplated transaction, including the
identity of the related party and the anticipated cost to be incurred, before any such transaction is consummated or cost
incurred. If the Owner, after such notification, authorizes the proposed transaction in writing, then the cost incurred shall
be included as a cost to be reimbursed, and the Construction Manager shall procure the Work, equipment, goods, or
service, from the related party, as a Subcontractor, according to the terms of Article 9. If the Owner fails to authorize the
transaction in writing, the Construction Manager shall procure the Work, equipment, gocds, or service from some person
or entity other than a related party according to the terms of Article 9.

§ 7.9 Costs Not To Be Reimbursed
§ 7.9.1 The Cost of the Work shall not include the items listed below:
.1 Salaries and other compensation of the Construction Manager’s personnel stationed at the Construction
Manager’s principal office or offices other than the site office, except as specifically provided in Section
7.2, or as may be provided in Article 14;
.2  Bonuses, profit sharing, incentive compensation, and any other discretionary payments, paid to anyone
hired by the Construction Manager or paid to any Subcontractor or vendor, unless the Owner has provided
prior approval,

.3 Expenses of the Construction Manager’s principal office and offices other than the site office;

4 Overhead and general expenses, except as may be expressly included in Sections 7.1 to 7.7;

.5  The Construction Manager’s capital expenses, including interest on the Construction Manager’s capital
employed for the Work;

6  Except as provided in Section 7.7.3 of this Agreement, costs due to the negligence of, or failure to fulfill a

specific responsibility of the Contract by, the Construction Manager, Subcontractors, and suppliers, or
anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable;

.7 Any cost not specifically and expressly described in Sections 7.1to 7.7;

8  Costs, other than costs included in Change Orders approved by the Owner, that would cause the
Guaranteed Maximum Price to be exceeded; and

9  Costs for services incurred during the Preconstruction Phase.

ARTICLE 8 DISCOUNTS, REBATES, AND REFUNDS

§ 8.1 Cash discounts obtained on payments made by the Construction Manager shall accrue to the Owner if (1) before
making the payment, the Construction Manager included the amount to be paid, less such discount, in an Application for
Payment and received payment from the Owner, or (2) the Owner has deposited funds with the Construction Manager
with which to make payments; otherwise, cash discounts shall accrue to the Construction Manager. Trade discounts,
rebates, refunds, and amounts received from sales of surplus materials and equipment shall accrue to the Owner, and the
Construction Manager shall make provisions so that they can be obtained.

§ 8.2 Amounts that accrue to the Owner in accordance with the provisions of Section 8.1 shall be credited to the Owner as
a deduction from the Cost of the Work.

ARTICLE 9 SUBCONTRACTS AND OTHER AGREEMENTS

§ 9.1 Those portions of the Work that the Construction Manager does not customarily perform with the Construction
Manager’s own personnel shall be performed under subcontracts or other appropriate agreements with the Construction
Manager. The Owner may designate specific persons from whom, or entities from which, the Construction Manager shall
obtain bids. The Construction Manager shall obtain bids from Subcontractors, and from suppliers of materials or
equipment fabricated especially for the Work, who are qualified to perform that portion of the Work in accordance with
the requirements of the Contract Documents. The Construction Manager shall defiver such bids to the Architect and
Owner with an indication as to which bids the Construction Manager intends to accept. The Owner then has the right to
review the Construction Manager’s list of proposed subcontractors and suppliers in consultation with the Architect and,

Init AlA Document A133 - 2019. Copyright ® 1991, 2003, 2009, and 2018. All rights raserved. “The American Instilute of Architecls,” "American Institute of Architects,”
. “AlA," the AlA Logo, and "AlA Contracl Bocuments® are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:09:47 ET on 15
11/068/2025 under Order No.2114488152 which expires on 12/31/2025, Is not for resale, Is ticensed for one-tims use only, and may only be used in accordance with
/ the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report capyright violations, e-mail docinfo@alacontracts.com.

User Notes: (1733517658)



subject to Section 9.1.1, to object to any subcontractor or supplier. Any advice of the Architect, or approval or objection
by the Owner, shall not relieve the Construction Manager of its responsibility to perform the Work in accordance with the
Contract Documents. The Construction Manager shall not be required to contract with anyone to whom the Construction
Manager has reasonable objection.

§ 9.1.1 When a specific subcontractor or supplier (1) is recommended to the Owner by the Construction Manager; (2) is
qualified to perform that portion of the Work; and (3) has submitted a bid that conforms to the requirements of the
Contract Documents without reservations or exceptions, but the Owner requires that another bid be accepted, then the
Construction Manager may require that a Change Order be issued to adjust the Guaranteed Maximum Price by the
difference between the bid of the person or entity recommended to the Owner by the Construction Manager and the
amount of the subcontract or other agreement actually signed with the person or entity designated by the Owner.

§ 9.2 Subcontracts or other agreements shall conform to the applicable payment provisions of this Agreement, and shall
not be awarded on the basis of cost plus a fee without the Owner’s prior written approval. If a subcontract is awarded on
the basis of cost plus a fee, the Construction Manager shall provide in the subcontract for the Owner to receive the same
audit rights with regard to the Subcontractor as the Owner receives with regard to the Construction Manager in Article 10.

ARTICLE 10 ACCOUNTING RECORDS

The Construction Manager shall keep full and detailed records and accounts related to the Cost of the Work, and exercise
such controls, as may be necessary for proper financial management under this Contract and to substantiate all costs
incurred. The accounting and control systems shall be satisfactory to the Owner. The Owner and the Owner’s auditors
shall, during regular business hours and upon reasonable notice, be afforded access to, and shall be permitted to audit and
copy, the Construction Manager’s records and accounts, including complete documentation supporting accounting
entries, books, job cost reports, correspondence, instructions, drawings, receipts, subcontracts, Subcontractor’s proposals,
Subcontractor’s invoices, purchase orders, vouchers, memoranda, and other data relating to this Contract. The
Construction Manager shall preserve these records for a period of three years after final payment, or for such longer period
as may be required by law.

ARTICLE 11 PAYMENTS FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES

§ 11.1 Progress Payments

§ 11.1.1 Based upon Applications for Payment submitted to the Architect by the Construction Manager, and Certificates
for Payment issued by the Architect, the Owner shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Sum, to the
Construction Manager, as provided below and elsewhere in the Contract Documents.

§ 11.1.2 The period covered by each Application for Payment shall be one calendar month ending on the last day of the
month, or as follows:

§ 11.1.3 Provided that an Application for Payment is received by the Architect not later than the first day of a month, the
Owner shall make payment of the amount certified to the Construction Manager not later than the 25th day of the same
month. If an Application for Payment is received by the Architect after the application date fixed above, payment of the
amount certified shall be made by the Owner not later than twenty-five ( 25 ) days after the Architect receives the
Application for Payment,

(Federal, state or local laws may require payment within a certain period of time.)

§ 11.1.4 With each Application for Payment, the Construction Manager shall submit receipted invoices or invoices with check
vouchers attached, and any other evidence required by the Owner or Architect to demonstrate that payments already made by the
Construction Manager on account of the Cost of the Work equal or exceed progress payments already received by the
Construction Manager, less that portion of the progress payments attributable to the Construction Manager’s Fee.

§ 11.1.5 Each Application for Payment shall be based on the most recent schedule of values submitted by the Construction
Manager in accordance with the Contract Documents. The schedule of values shall allocate the entire Guaranteed
Maximum Price among: (1) the various portions of the Werk; (2) any contingency for costs that are included in the
Guaranteed Maximum Price but not otherwise allocated to another line item or included in a Change Order; and (3) the
Construction Manager’s Fee.

init AlA Document A133 - 2019, Copyright ® 1991, 2003, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The Amerlcan Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
" “AlA;” the AlA Logo, and "AlA Contract Documents™ are trademarks of The American Institute of Aschitects. This documsnt was produced at 10:09:47 ET on 16
11/08/2025 under Order No.2114498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for resale, is ticensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with
{ the AlA Contract Bocuments® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (1733517658)



§ 11.1.5.1 The schedule of values shall be prepared in such form and supported by such data to substantiate its accuracy as
the Architect may require. The schedule of values shall be used as a basis for reviewing the Construction Manager’s
Applications for Payment.

§ 11.1.5.2 The allocation of the Guaranteed Maximum Price under this Section 11.1.5 shall not constitute a separate
guaranteed maximum price for the Cost of the Work of each individual line item in the schedule of values.

§ 11.1.5.3 When the Construction Manager allocates costs from a contingency to another line item in the schedule of
values, the Construction Manager shall submit supporting documentation to the Architect.

§ 11.1.6 Applications for Payment shall show the percentage of completion of each portion of the Work as of the end of
the period covered by the Application for Payment. The percentage of completion shall be the lesser of (1) the percentage
of that portion of the Work which has actually been completed, or (2) the percentage obtained by dividing (a) the expense
that has actually been incurred by the Construction Manager on account of that portion of the Work and for which the
Construction Manager has made payment or intends to make payment prior to the next Application for Payment, by (b)
the share of the Guaranteed Maximum Price allocated to that portion of the Work in the schedule of values.

§ 11.1.7 In accordance with AIA Document A201-2017 and subject to other provisions of the Contract Documents, the
amount of each progress payment shall be computed as follows:

§ 11.1.7.1 The amount of each progress payment shall first include:

.4 That portion of the Guaranteed Maximum Price properly allocable to completed Work as determined by
multiplying the percentage of completion of each portion of the Work by the share of the Guaranteed
Maximum Price allocated to that portion of the Work in the most recent schedule of values;

2 That portion of the Guaranteed Maximum Price properly allocable to materials and equipment delivered
and suitably stored at the site for subsequent incorporation in the completed construction or, if approved in
writing in advance by the Owner, suitably stored off the site at a location agreed upon in writing;

.3 That portion of Construction Change Directives that the Architect determines, in the Architect's
professional judgment, to be reasonably justified; and

4 The Construction Manager’s Fee, computed upon the Cost of the Work described in the preceding Sections
11.1,7.1.1 and 11.1.7.1.2 at the rate stated in Section 6.1.2 or, if the Construction Manager’s Fee is stated as
a fixed sum in that Section, an amount that bears the same ratio to that fixed-sum fee as the Cost of the
Work included in Sections 11.1.7.1.1 and 11.1.7.1.2 bears to a reasonable estimate of the probable Cost of
the Work upon its completion.

§ 11.1.7.2 The amount of each progress payment shall then be reduced by:

4 The aggregate of any amounts previously paid by the Owner;

.2 The amount, if any, for Work that remains uncorrected and for which the Architect has previously withheld
a Certificate for Payment as provided in Article 9 of AIA Document A201-2017;

.3 Any amount for which the Construction Manager does not intend to pay a Subcontractor or material
supplier, unless the Work has been performed by others the Construction Manager intends to pay;

4  For Work performed or defects discovered since the last payment application, any amount for which the
Architect may withhold payment, or nullify a Certificate of Payment in whole or in part, as provided in
Article 9 of AIA Document A201-2017;

.5  The shortfall, if any, indicated by the Construction Manager in the documentation required by Section
11.1.4 10 substantiate prior Applications for Payment, or resulting from errors subsequently discovered by
the Owner’s auditors in such documentation; and

.6 Retainage withheld pursuant to Section 11.1.8.

§ 11.1.8 Retainage

§ 11.1.8.1 For each progress payment made prior to Substantial Completion of the Work, the Owner may withhold the
following amount, as retainage, from the payment otherwise due:

(Insert a percentage or amount to be withheld as retainage from each Application for Payment. The amount of retainage
may be limited by governing law.)

| 10%

Init AlA Document A133 - 2019. Copyright © 1991, 2003, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
g “AlA" the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architacts. This document was produced at 10:09:47 ET on 17
11/06/2025 under Order No.2114498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for resale, Is licensed for ona-time use only, and may only bs used in accordance with
/ the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Servica. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@alacontracts.com.

User Notes: (1733517658)



§ 11.1.8.1.1 The following items are not subject to retainage:
(Insert any items not subject to the withholding of retainage, such as general conditions, insurance, etc.)

| Fee, GC, Bond and Insurance

§ 11.1.8.2 Reduction or limitation of retainage, if any, shall be as follows:
(If the retainage established in Section 11.1.8.1 is to be modified prior to Substantial Completion of the entire Work, insert
Dprovisions for such modification.)

| At 50% complete, retainage will be reduced from 10% to 5% and will remain at 5% until substantial completion.

§ 11.1.8.3 Except as set forth in this Section 11.1.8.3, upon Substantial Completion of the Work, the Construction
Manager may submit an Application for Payment that includes the retainage withheld from prior Applications for
Payment pursuant to this Section 11.1.8. The Application for Payment submitted at Substantial Completion shall not
include retainage as follows:

(Insert any other conditions for release of retainage, such as upon completion of the Owner'’s audit and reconciliation,
upon Substantial Completion.)

| Retainage will be released holding only 1.5X the punch list value.

§ 11.1.9If final completion of the Work is materially delayed through no fault of the Construction Manager, the Owner
shall pay the Construction Manager any additional amounts in accordance with Article 9 of AIA Document A201-2017.

§ 11.1.10 Except with the Owner’s prior written approval, the Construction Manager shall not make advance payments to
suppliers for materials or equipment which have not been delivered and suitably stored at the site.

§ 11.1.11 The Owner and the Construction Manager shall agree upon a mutually acceptable procedure for review and
approval of payments to Subcontractors, and the percentage of retainage held on Subcontracts, and the Construction
Manager shall execute subcontracts in accordance with those agreements.

§ 11.1.12 In taking action on the Construction Manager’s Applications for Payment the Architect shall be entitled to rely
on the accuracy and completeness of the information fumnished by the Construction Manager, and such action shall not be
deemed to be a representation that (1) the Architect has made a detailed examination, audit, or arithmetic verification, of
the documentation submitted in accordance with Section 11.1.4 or other supporting data; (2) that the Architect has made
exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections; or (3) that the Architect has made examinations to ascertain how or for what
purposes the Construction Manager has used amounts previously paid on account of the Contract. Such examinations,
audits, and verifications, if required by the Owner, will be performed by the Owner’s auditors acting in the sole interest of
the Owner.

§ 11.2 Final Payment
§ 11.2.1 Final payment, constituting the entire unpaid balance of the Contract Sum, shall be made by the Owner to the
Construction Manager when
.1 the Construction Manager has fully performed the Contract, except for the Construction Manager's
responsibility to correct Work as provided in Article 12 of AIA Document A201-2017, and to satisfy other
requirements, if any, which extend beyond final payment;
.2 the Construction Manager has submitted a final accounting forthe Cost of the Work and a final Application
for Payment; and
.3 afinal Certificate for Payment has been issued by the Architect in accordance with Section 11.2.2.2.

§ 11.2.2 Within 30 days of the Owner’s receipt of the Construction Manager's final accounting for the Cost of the Work,
the Owner shall conduct an audit of the Cost of the Work or notify the Architect that it will not conduct an audit.

§ 11.2.2.1 If the Owner conducts an audit of the Cost of the Work, the Owner shall, within 10 days after completion of the
audit, submit a written report based upon the auditors’ findings to the Architect.

§ 11.2.2.2 Within seven days after receipt of the written report described in Section 11.2.2.1, or receipt of notice that the
Owner will not conduct an audit, and provided that the other conditions of Section 11.2,1 have been met, the Architect will

AlA Document A133 - 2019. Copyright ® 1891, 2003, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
“AlA" the AlA Logo, and "AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:09:47 ET on 18
11/06/2025 under Order No0.2114488152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for resale, Is licensed lor one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with

! the AJA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (1733517658)

Init.



either issue to the Owner a final Certificate for Payment with a copy to the Construction Manager, or notify the
Construction Manager and Owner in writing of the Architect’s reasons for withholding a certificate as provided in Article
9 of ATA Document A201-2017. The time periods stated in this Section 11.2.2 supersede those stated in Article 9 of AIA
Document A201-2017. The Architect is not responsible for verifying the accuracy of the Construction Manager’s final
accounting.

§ 11.2.2.3 If the Owner's auditors’ report concludes that the Cost of the Work, as substantiated by the Construction
Manager’s final accounting, is less than claimed by the Construction Manager, the Construction Manager shall be entitled
to request mediation of the disputed amount without seeking an initial decision pursuant to Article 15 of AIA Document
A201-2017. A request for mediation shall be made by the Construction Manager within 30 days after the Construction
Manager’s receipt of a copy of the Architect’s final Certificate for Payment, Failure to request mediation within this
30-day period shall result in the substantiated amount reported by the Owner’s auditors becoming binding on the
Construction Manager. Pending a final resolution of the disputed amount, the Owner shall pay the Construction Manager
the amount certified in the Architect’s final Certificate for Payment.

§ 11.2.3 The Owner’s final payment to the Construction Manager shall be made no later than 30 days after the issuance of
the Architect’s final Certificate for Payment, or as follows:

§ 11.2.41f, subsequent to final payment, and at the Owner’s request, the Construction Manager incurs costs, described in
Sections 7.1 through 7.7, and not excluded by Section 7.9, to correct defective or nonconforming Work, the Owner shall
reimburse the Construction Manager for such costs, and the Construction Manager's Fee applicable thereto, on the same
basis as if such costs had been incurred prior to final payment, but not in excess of the Guaranteed Maximum Price. If
adjustments to the Contract Sum are provided for in Section 6.1.7, the amount of those adjustments shall be recalculated,
taking into account any reimbursements made pursuant to this Section 11.2.4 in determining the net amount to be paid by
the Owner to the Construction Manager.

§ 1.3 Interest

Payments due and unpaid under the Contract shall bear interest from the date payment is due at the rate stated below, or in
the absence thereof, at the legal rate prevailing from time to time at the place where the Project is located.

(Insert rate of interest agreed upon, if any.)

| 5%

ARTICLE 12 DISPUTE RESOLUTION
§ 12.1 Initial Decislon Maker
§ 12.1.1 Any Claim between the Owner and Construction Manager shall be resolved in accordance with the provisions set
forth in this Article 12 and Article 15 of A201-2017. However, for Claims arising from or relating to the Construction
Manager’s Preconstruction Phase services, no decision by the Initial Decision Maker shall be required as a condition
precedent to mediation or binding dispute resolution, and Section 12.1.2 of this Agreement shall not apply.

will be determined
§ 12.1.2 The Initial Deciston Maker pursuant to Article 15 of AIA Document A201-2017 for Claims arising from or
relating to the Construction Manager’s Construction Phase services, unless the parties appoint below another individual,
not a party to the Agreement, to serve as the Initial Decision Maker.
(If the parties mutually agree, insert the name, address and other contact information of the Initial Decision Maker, if
other than the Architect.)

| TBD
§ 12.2 Binding Dispute Resolution
For any Claim subject to, but not resolved by mediation pursuant to Article 15 of AIA Document A201-2017, the method
of binding dispute resolution shall be as follows:
(Check the appropriate box.)

[ 1 Arbitration pursuant to Article 15 of AIA Document A201-2017

Init AlA Document A133 —- 2019, Copyright ® 1991, 2003, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
nit. “AlA,” the AIA Logo, and "AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10.08:47 ET on 19
11/06/2025 under Order No.2114488152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for resale, Is licensed for ong-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with
! the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (1733517658)



" Init.

[X] Litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction

[ 1 Cther: (Specify)

If the Owner and Construction Manager do not select a method of binding dispute resolution, or do not subsequently agree
in writing to a binding dispute resolution method other than litigation, Claims will be resolved by litigation in a court of
competent jurisdiction.

ARTICLE 13 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION

§ 13.1 Termination Prior to Execution of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment

§ 13.1.1if the Owner and the Construction Manager do not reach an agreement on the Guaranteed Maximum Price, the
Owner may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days’ written notice to the Construction Manager, and the
Construction Manager may terminate this Agreement, upon not less than seven days’ written notice to the Owner.

§ 13.1.2In the event of termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 13,1.1, the Construction Manager shall be
compensated for Preconstruction Phase services and Work performed prior to receipt of a notice of termination, in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement. In no event shall the Construction Manager’s compensation under this
Section exceed the compensation set forth in Section 5.1.

§ 13.1.3 Prior to the execution of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment, the Owner may terminate this Agreement
upon not less than seven days’ written notice to the Construction Manager for the Owner’s convenience and without
cause, and the Construction Manager may terminate this Agreement, upon not less than seven days’ written notice to the
Owner, for the reasons set forth in Article 14 of A201-2017.

§ 13.1.41n the event of termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 13.1.3, the Construction Manager shall be
equitably compensated for Preconstruction Phase services and Work performed prior to receipt of a notice of termination.
In no event shall the Construction Manager’s compensation under this Section exceed the compensation set forth in
Section 5.1.

§ 13.1.51f the Owner terminates the Contract pursuant to Section 13.1.3 after the commencement of the Construction
Phase but prior to the execution of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment, the Owner shall pay to the Construction
Manager an amount calculated as follows, which amount shall be in addition to any compensation paid to the
Construction Manager under Section 13.1.4:

.1 Take the Cost of the Work incurred by the Construction Manager to the date of termination;

.2  Add the Construction Manager’s Fee computed upon the Cost of the Work to the date of termination at the
rate stated in Section 6.1 or, if the Construction Manager’s Fee is stated as a fixed sum in that Section, an
amount that bears the same ratio to that fixed-sum Fee as the Cost of the Work at the time of termination
bears to a reasonable estimate of the probable Cost of the Work upon its completion; and

.3 Subtract the aggregate of previous payments made by the Owner for Construction Phase services.

§ 13.1.6 The Owner shall also pay the Construction Manager fair compensation, either by purchase or rental at the election
of the Qwner, for any equipment owned by the Construction Manager that the Owner elects to retain and that is not
otherwise included in the Cost of the Work under Section 13.1.5.1. To the extent that the Owner elects to take legal
assignment of subcontracts and purchase orders (including rental agreements), the Construction Manager shall, as a
condition of receiving the payments referred to in this Article 13, execute and deliver all such papers and take all such
steps, including the legal assignment of such subcontracts and other contractual rights of the Construction Manager, as the
Owner may require for the purpose of fully vesting in the Owner the rights and benefits of the Construction Manager
under such subcontracts or purchase orders. All Subcontracts, purchase orders and rental agreements entered into by the
Construction Manager will contain provisions allowing for assignment to the Owner as described above.

§ 13.1.6.1 If the Owner accepts assignment of subcontracts, purchase orders or rental agreements as described above, the
Owner will reimburse or indemnify the Construction Manager for all costs arising under the subcontract, purchase order
or rental agreement, if those costs would have been reimbursable as Cost of the Work if the contract had not been
terminated. If the Owner chooses not to accept assignment of any subcontract, purchase order or rental agreement that
would have constituted a Cost of the Work had this agreement not been terminated, the Construction Manager will

AlA Bocument A133 - 2019, Copyright © 1991, 2003, 2009, and 2019, All rights raserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architacts.”
“AlA," the A1A Logo, and “AA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Achitects. This document was produced at 10:09:47 ET on 20
11/06/2025 under Order No.2114488152 which expiras on 12/31/2025, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only ba used in accordance with

the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (1733517658)



terminate the subcontract, purchase order or rental agreement and the Owner will pay the Construction Manager the costs
necessarily incurred by the Construction Manager because of such termination.

§ 13.2 Termination or Suspension Following Execution of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment

§ 13.2.1 Termination

The Contract may be terminated by the Owner or the Construction Manager as provided in Article 14 of AIA Document
A201-2017.

§ 13.2.2 Termination by the Owner for Cause

§ 13.2.21 If the Owner terminates the Contract for cause as provided in Article 14 of AIA Document A201-2017, the
amount, if any, to be paid to the Construction Manager under Article 14 of AIA Document A201-2017 shall not cause the
Guaranteed Maximum Price to be exceeded, nor shall it exceed an amount calculated as follows:

1 Take the Cost of the Work incurred by the Construction Manager to the date of termination;

.2 Add the Construction Manager’s Fee, computed upon the Cost of the Work to the date of termination at the
rate stated in Section 6.1 or, if the Construction Manager’ Fee is stated as a fixed sum in that Section, an
amount that bears the same ratio to that fixed-sum Fee as the Cost of the Work at the time of termination
bears to a reasonable estimate of the probable Cost of the Work upon its completion;

.3 Subtract the aggregate of previous payments made by the Owner; and

4 Subtract the costs and damages incurred, or to be incurred, by the Owner under Article 14 of AIA
Document A201-2017.

§ 13.2.2.2 The Owner shall also pay the Construction Manager fair compensation, either by purchase or rental at the
election of the Owner, for any equipment owned by the Construction Manager that the Owner elects to retain and that is
not otherwise included in the Cost of the Work under Section 13.2.2.1.1. To the extent that the Owner elects to take legal
assignment of subcontracts and purchase orders (including rental agreements), the Construction Manager shall, as a
condition of receiving the payments referred to in this Article 13, execute and deliver all such papers and take all such
steps, including the legal assignment of such subcontracts and other contractual rights of the Construction Manager, as the
Owner may require for the purpose of fully vesting in the Owner the rights and benefits of the Construction Manager
under such subcontracts or purchase orders.

§ 13.2.3 Termination by the Owner for Convenlencs

[f the Owner terminates the Contract for convenience in accordance with Aricle 14 of AIA Document A201-2017, then
the Owner shall pay the Construction Manager a termination fee as follows:

(Insert the amount of or method for determining the fee, if any, payable to the Construction Manager following a
termination for the Owner s convenience.)

| Construction fee will be paid in addition to all direct costs.

§ 13.3 Suspension

The Work may be suspended by the Owner as provided in Article 14 of AIA Document A201-2017; in such case, the
Guaranteed Maximum Price and Contract Time shall be increased as provided in Article 14 of AIA Document
A201-2017, except that the term "profit” shall be understood to mean the Construction Manager’s Fee as described in
Sections 6.1 and 6.3.5 of this Agreement,

ARTICLE 14 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

§ 14.1 Terms in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as those in A201-2017. Where reference is made in this
Agreement to a provision of AIA Document A201-2017 or another Contract Document, the reference refers to that
provision as amended or supplemented by other provisions of the Contract Documents.

§ 14.2 Successors and Assigns

§ 14.2.1 The Owner and Construction Manager, respectively, bind themselves, their partners, successors, assigns and
legal representatives to covenants, agreements, and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. Except as provided
in Section 14.2.2 of this Agreement, and in Section 13.2.2 of A201-2017, neither party to the Contract shall assign the
Contract as a whole without written consent of the other. If either party attempts to make an assignment without such
consent, that party shall nevertheless remain legally responsible for all obligations under the Contract.

Init AlA Document A133 — 2019. Copyright © 1991, 2003, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects.”
g "AlA,” the AlA Logo, and *AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:09:47 ET on 21
11/08/2025 under Order No.2114488152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for resale, Is licansed for one-time use only, and may anly be used in accordance with
! the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@alacontracts.com.

User Notes: (1733517658)



§ 14.2.2 The Owner may, without consent of the Construction Manager, assign the Contract to a lender providing
construction financing for the Project, if the lender assumes the Owner’s rights and obligations under the Contract
Documents. The Construction Manager shall execute all consents reasonably required to facilitate the assignment.

§ 14.3 Insurance and Bonds

§ 14.3.1 Preconstruction Phase

The Construction Manager shall maintain the following insurance for the duration of the Preconstruction Services
performed under this Agreement. If any of the requirements set forth below exceed the types and limits the Construction
Manager normally maintains, the Owner shall reimburse the Construction Manager for any additional cost.

§ 14.3.1.1 Commercial General Liability with policy limits of not less than two million ($ 2,000,000 ) for each occurrence
and five million ($ 5,000,000 ) in the aggregate for bodily injury and property damage.

§ 14.3.1.2 Automobile Liability covering vehicles owned, and non-owned vehicles used, by the Construction Manager
with policy limits of not less than one million (3 1,000,000 ) per accident for bodily injury, death of any person, and
property damage arising out of the ownership, maintenance and use of those motor vehicles, along with any other
statutorily required automobile coverage.

§ 14.3.1.3 The Construction Manager may achieve the required limits and coverage for Commercial General Liability and
Automobile Liability through a combination of primary and excess or umbrella liability insurance, provided that such
primary and excess or umbrella liability insurance policies result in the same or greater coverage as the coverages required
under Sections 14.3.1.1 and 14.3.1.2, and in no event shall any excess or umbrella liability insurance provide narrower
coverage than the primary policy. The excess policy shall not require the exhaustion of the underlying limits only through
the actual payment by the underlying insurers.

§ 14.3.1.4 Workers’ Compensation at statutory limits and Employers Liability with policy limits not lessthan ($ )each
accident, ($ ) eachemployee,and ($ )policy limit. Workers’ Compensation meeting State of New Hampshire
statutory requirements.

| § 14.3.45

§ 14.3.1.6 Other Insurance
(List below any other insurance coverage to be provided by the Construction Manager and any applicable limits.)

Coverage Limits

§ 14.3.1.7 Additional Insured Obligations. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Construction Manager shall cause
the primary and excess or umbrella policies for Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability to include the
Owner as an additional insured for claims caused in whole or in part by the Construction Manager’s negligent acts or
omissions. The additional insured coverage shall be primary and non-contributory to any of the Owner’s insurance
policies and shall apply to both ongoing and completed operations.

§ 14.3.1.8 The Construction Manager shall provide certificates of insurance to the Owner that evidence compliance with
the requirements in this Section 14.3.1 Prior to commencing services on site.

§ 14.3.2 Construction Phase

After execution of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment, the Owner and the Construction Manager shall purchase
and maintain insurance as set forth in AIA Document A133™-2019, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and
Construction Manager as Constructor where the basis of payment is the Cost of the Work Plus a Fee with a Guaranteed
Maximum Price, Exhibit B, Insurance and Bonds, and elsewhere in the Contract Documents.

| § 14.3.2.1 The Construction Manager shall provide bonds.

§ 14.4 Notice in electronic format, pursuant to Article 1 of AIA Document A201-2017, may be given in accordance with
a building information modeling exhibit, if completed, or as otherwise set forth below:

AlA Document A133 - 2019. Copyright © 1891, 2003, 2009, and 2019. Al rights reserved. *The American Institute of Architacts,” “American Institute of Architects,”

Init. “AlA," the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents® are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:09:47 ET on 22
11/06/2025 under Order No.2114488152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is nol for resale, Is licensed for gne-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with
i the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (1733517658)



Init.

(If other than in accordance with a building information modeling exhibit, insert vequirements for delivering notice in
electronic format such as name, title, and email address of the recipient and whether and how the system will be required
to generate a read receipt for the transmission.)

§ 14.5 Other provisions:

ARTICLE 15 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT

§ 15.1 This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the Owner and the Construction Manager
and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, cither written or oral. This Agreement may be
amended only by written instrument signed by both Owner and Construction Manager.

§ 15.2 The following documents comprise the Agreement:

A AIA Document A133™-2019, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Construction Manager
as Constructor where the basis of payment is the Cost of the Work Plus a Fee with a Guaranteed Maximum
Price
AIA Document A133™-2019, Exhibit A, Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment, if executed

AlIA Document A201™-2017, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction

[3 S XR X

.6 Other Exhibits:
(Check all boxes that apply.)

[ ] AlIA Document E234™-2019, Sustainable Projects Exhibit, Construction Manager as
Constructor Edition, dated as indicated below:
(Insert the date of the £E234-2019 incorporated into this Agreement.)

[ 1 Supplementary and other Conditions of the Contract:

Document Title Date Pages

.7 Other documents, if any, listed below:
(List here any additional documents that are intended to form part of the Contract Documents. AlA
Document A201-2017 provides that the advertisement or invitation to bid, Instructions to Bidders, sample
Jorms, the Construction Manager's bid or proposal, portions of Addenda relating to bidding or proposal
requirements, and other information furnished by the Owner in anticipation of receiving bids or proposals,
are not part of the Contract Documents unless enumerated in this Agreement. Any such documents should
be listed here only if intended to be part of the Contract Documents.)

ECCI clarifications dated October 24, 2025

This Agreement is entered into as of the day and year first written above. A O

A /‘ ! |
[/ A\

o o __k 6‘# \éé AN "
N MANA /-'(S}g:mmrc’)

OWNER (Signature) CONSTRUCTI
|

AlA Document A133 - 2018. Copyright © 1991, 2003, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The An*; ican Institute nl,hrchitacls.' “American Institute of Architects,”

“AIA.” the AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Arshitects. This document was produced at 10.09:47 ET on

11/06/2025 under Order No.2114498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with

the AIA Centract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (1733517658)

—O,

23



Melissa Roy, Interim Town Manager John Deloia,VP
(Printed name and title) (Printed name and title)

Init AlA Bocument A133 — 2019. Capyright ® 1991, 2003, 2009, and 2018S. All rights reserved. *The American Institute of Architects,” "American Institute of Architects,”
o “AlA." the AlA Logo, and "AlA Contract Documents™ are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:09:47 ET on 24
11/06/2025 under Order No.21 14488152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for resale, is licensed for ona-time use only, and may enly be used in accordance with
! the AIA Contract Documsnis® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (1733517658)



Init,

AIA Document A133 -2019 Exhibit A

Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment

This Amendment dated the tenth day of November in the year Twenty Twenty-live, is
incorporated into the accompanying AIA Document A133™-2019, Standard Form of
Agreement Between Owner and Construction Manager as Constructor where the basis of
payment is the Cost of the Work Plus a Fee with a Guaranteed Maximum Price dated the
tenth day of November in the year Twenty Twenty-five (the "Agreement")

(In words, indicate day, month, and year.)

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS:
The author of this document has
added information needed for ils
completion. The author may also
have revised the text of the original
AlA standard form. An Additions and
Deletions Report that notes added
information as well as revisions to the
standard form text is available from

for the following PROJECT:
(Name and address or location)

Exeter Police Headquarters and Fire Substation

Exeter, NH the author and should be reviewed. A
vertical line in the left margin of this
THE OWNER: document indicates where the author
(Name, legal status, and address) has added necessary information
and where the author has added to or
Town of Exeter deleted from the original AlA lext.
é?(;;?";ﬁ_;rgggﬂ This document has important legal

consequences. Consultation with an
attorney is encouraged with respect
to its completion or modification.

THE CONSTRUCTION MANAGER:
(Name, legal status, and address)
AlA Document A201™-2017,

Eckman Construction Company, Inc. General Conditions of the Contract
84 Palomino Lane for Construction, is adopted in this
Bedford, NH 03110 document by reference. Do not use

J with other general conditions unless
TABLE OF ARTICLES this document is modified.

Ad GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE
A2 DATE OF COMMENCEMENT AND SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION
A3 INFORMATION UPON WHICH AMENDMENT IS BASED

A4 CONSTRUCTION MANAGER'S CONSULTANTS, CONTRACTORS, DESIGN
PROFESSIONALS, AND SUPPLIERS

ARTICLE A1 GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE

§ A1.1Guaranteed Maximum Price

Pursuant to Section 3.2.6 of the Agreement, the Owner and Construction Manager hereby
amend the Agreement to establish a Guaranteed Maximum Price. As agreed by the Owner
and Construction Manager, the Guaranteed Maximum Price is an amount that the Contract
Sum shall not exceed. The Contract Sum consists of the Construction Manager’s Fee plus
the Cost of the Work, as that term is defined in Article 6 of the Agreement.

§ A1.1.1 The Contract Sum is guaranteed by the Construction Manager not to exceed
Fifteen Million, Six Hundred Twenty-six Thousand Five Hundred Seven Dollars ($
15,626,507 ), subject to additions and deductions by Change Order as provided in the
Contract Documents.

AlA Document A133 - 2019 Exhibit A, Copyright © 1991, 2003, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institule of
Archilects,” “AlA," the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:09:55
ET on 11/06/2025 under Order No.2114498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for resale, is licensed for one-lime use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacentracls.com.

User Notes: (1311854671)



§ Al.1.2Itemized Statement of the Guaranteed Maximum Price. Provided below is an itemized statement of the
Guaranteed Maximum Price organized by trade categories, including allowances; the Construction Manager’s
contingency; alternates; the Construction Manager’s Fee; and other items that comprise the Guaranteed Maximum Price
as defined in Section 3.2.1 of the Agreement.

(Provide itemized statement below or reference an attachment.)

See Attachment 1 - Itemized Statement of the Guaranteed Maximum Price
§ A.1.1.3 The Construction Manager’s Fee is set forth in Section 6.1.2 of the Agreenient.

§ A1.1.4 The method of adjustment of the Construction Manager’s Fee for changes in the Work is set forth in Section
6.1.3 of the Agreement.

§ A1.1.5 Alternates
§ A1.1.5.1 Alternates, if any, included in the Guaranteed Maximum Price:

item Price
[ N/A

§ A.1.1.5.2 Subject to the conditions noted below, the following alternates may be accepted by the Owner following
execution of this Exhibit A. Upon acceptance, the Owner shall issue a Modification to the Agreement.
(Insert below each alternate and the conditions that must be met for the Owner 10 accept the alternate.)

ltem Price Conditions for Acceptance
N/A

§ A.1.1.6 Unit prices, if any:
(Identify the item and state the unit price and quantity limitations, if any, to which the unit price will be applicable.)

item Units and Limitations Price per Unit ($0.00)
N/A

ARTICLE A2 DATE OF COMMENCEMENT AND SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION
§ A2.1 The date of commencement of the Work shall be:
(Check one of the following boxes.)

I [X]  The date of execution of this Amendment.

[ 1 Established as follows:
(Insert a date or a means to determine the date of commencement of the Work.)

If a date of commencement of the Work is not selected, then the date of commencement shall be the date of execution of
this Amendment.

§ A2.2 Unless otherwise provided, the Contract Time is the period of time, including authorized adjustments, allotted in
the Contract Documents for Substantial Completion of the Work. The Contract Time shall be measured from the date of
commencement of the Work.

§ A.2.3Substantial Completion

§ A.2.3.1 Subject to adjustments of the Contract Time as provided in the Contract Decuments, the Construction Manager
shall achieve Substantial Completion of the entire Work:

(Check one of the following boxes and complete the necessary information.)

AlA Document A133 - 2019 Exhibit A. Copyright ® 1891, 2003, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” "American Institute of
Aschitects,” "AIA," the AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents® are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:09:56 2
ET on 11/06/2025 under Order No.2 114498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in

i accardance with the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copysight violations, e-mail docinfe@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (1311854871)

Init.



[ Not later than () calendar days from the date of commencement of the Work.
l [ X] By the following date: March 30, 2027

§ A.2.3.2 Subject to adjustments of the Contract Time as provided in the Contract Documents, if portions of the Work are
to be completed prior to Substantial Completion of the entire Work, the Construction Manager shall achieve Substantial
Completion of such portions by the following dates:

| Portion of Work Substantial Completion Date
N/A

§ A.2.3.3 If the Construction Manager fails to achieve Substantial Completion as provided in this Section A.2.3, liquidated
damages, if any, shall be assessed as set forth in Section 6.1.6 of the Agreement.

ARTICLE A3 INFORMATION UPON WHICH AMENDMENT IS BASED
§ A.3.1 The Guaranteed Maximum Price and Contract Time set forth in this Amendment are based on the Contract
Documents and the following:

§ A3.1.1 The following Supplementary and other Conditions of the Contract:

Document Title Date Pages

§ A3.1.2 The following Specifications:
(Either list the Specifications here, or refer to an exhibit attached to this Amendment.)

| See Attachment 3 - Contract Documents

Sectlion Title Date Pages

§ A3.1.3 The following Drawings:
(Either list the Drawings here, or refer to an exhibit attached to this Amendment.)

| See Attachment 3 — Contract Documents

Numbsr Title Date

§ A.3.14 The Sustainability Plan, if any:

(If the Owner identified a Sustainable Objective in the Owner's Criteria, identify the document or documents that
comprise the Sustainability Plan by title, date and number of pages, and include other identifying information. The
Sustainability Plan identifies and describes the Sustainable Objective; the targeted Sustainable Measures;
implementation strategies selected to achieve the Sustainable Measures; the Owner's and Construction Manager's roles
and responsibilities associated with achieving the Sustainable Measures; the specific details about design reviews, testing
or metrics to verify achievement of each Sustainable Measure; and the Sustainability Documentation required for the
Project, as those terms are defined in Exhibit C to the Agreement.)

Title Date Pages
l N/A

Other identifying information:

§ A3.1.5 Allowances, if any, included in the Guaranteed Maximum Price:
(Identify each allowance.)

Init AlA Document A133 — 2019 Exhibit A, Copyright ® 1991, 2003, 2009, and 2019. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American [nstilule of
. Architects,” “AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:09:55 3
ET on 11/08/2025 under Order No.21 14498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for resale, is licansed for one-lime use only, and may only be used in
/ accordance with the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To repart copyright violations, e.mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: {1311854671)



Init.

Item Price
Environmental conditions $200,000
Mockups $25,000

§ A3.1.6 Assumptions and clarifications, if any, upon which the Guaranteed Maximum Price is based:
(Identify each assumption and clarification.)

See Attachment 2 - Clarifications

§ A3.1.7 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following other documents and information:
(List any other documents or information here, or refer to an exhibit attached to this Amendment.)

ARTICLE A4 CONSTRUCTION MANAGER’S CONSULTANTS, CONTRACTORS, DESIGN PROFESSIONALS, AND
SUPPLIERS

§ A4.1The Construction Manager shall retain the consultants, contractors, design professionals, and suppliers, identified
below:

(List name, discipline, address, and other information.)

N/A

This Amendment to the Agreement entered into as of the day and year first urmgr abnvc

.

/

— . - Ad ! l‘(—C R —
OWNER (Signature) CONSTRUGTION MA AG R(Srgnatme)
Melissa Roy, Interim Town Manager - John Delq a, Vice I’rcélden_t_ -
(Printed name and title) (Printed r;’ame and H}';c’)

AIA Document A133 - 2019 Exhibit A. Copyright ® 1991, 2003, 2009, and 2019. Al rights reserved. “The American Inslitute of Archilects,” “American Institute of
Architects,” “AlA,” the AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10:09:55

ET on 11/06/2025 under Order No.2114498152 which expires on 12/31/2025, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (1311854671)

4



Police Station/Fire Substation Project Notification



TOWN OF EXETER

10 FRONT STREET  EXETER, NH = 03833-3792 « (603) 778-0591 FAX 772-4709
www.exeternh.qov

Date: November 7, 2025

To: Select Board Board

From: Melissa Roy, Interim Town Manager

Re: Exeter Police and Fire Substation Project

Although the Board is already aware of this project through the Capital Improvement
Program (CIP) process and the subsequent successful Town vote in March 2024, the
Town of Exeter is formally notifying the Select Board, in accordance with NH RSA
674:54, of its intent to construct a Police and Fire Substation at 6 Continental Drive,
identified as Tax Map Parcel #47-04-11.

The proposed use constitutes a governmental use on government property, and as
such, it is exempt from local land use regulations.

The project consists of a 19,700-square-foot, two-story, net-zero facility, including
secure parking areas for staff and the community. Since March 2024, Town staff have
been collaborating closely with the project's architect and construction manager on the
design and engineering of the building, and we look forward to commencing site work in
the near future.

If possible, we would appreciate a decision this evening regarding whether the Select
Board intends to request a formal public hearing on this matter. Enclosed for your
review are copies of the plans.

Thank you for your attention and consideration.

Melissa Roy



State/Federal Grants Update



Town of Exeter

Outstanding & Potential Projects with Federal/ State Grant Funding

11/10/2025

Outstanding Projects Source Awarded Received Outstanding Comment
10 Hampton Road - CDBG Renovations CDFA/ CDBG 841,240 681,670 159,570 Final disbursement request to be submitted in November
Energy Efficiency & Community Block Grant DOE 200,000 200,000 - All funds received
Enhancing Climate Resilience NHDES 18,000 - 18,000 Awarded
Historic Preservation Grant Federal 15,000 - 15,000 Awarded
Kingston Road TAP 1,541,106 1,508,107 32,999 TOE continues to receive reimbursement for this project
Lead Service Line Inventory - Continuation NHDES 60,000 - 60,000 Awarded
Pickpocket Dam Removal - Design GB2030 300,000 300,000 - All funds received
Planet Playground LWCF 297,500 - 297,500 LWCF disbursement in progress - anticipate receipt in November
Raynes Barn Restorations LCHIP 100,000 80,000 20,000 TOE continues to receive reimbursement for this project
Solar Array IRA credits 1,294,000 - 1,294,000 TBD - Credits are applied for after project completion
Water Street Stormwater Infrastructure Plan SRF 100,000 7,572 92,428 DES does not consider forgiveness on these loans to be at risk
Total OQutstanding Projects 1,989,497
Potential Projects Source Award Comment
Railroad Ave. Intersection Improvements TAP 1,067,951 Grant opportunity - waiting for Governor and Council approval
Train Station Improvements - Plan/Design Federal 800,000 Grant opportunity only - no award dertermination as of 11/10/25

Funding status unknown

1,867,951



Tax Abatements, Veteran’s Credits & Exemptions



TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE

10 FRONT STREET « EXETER, NH « 03833-3792 « (603) 778-0591 « FAX 772-4709
www.exeternh.gov

T EXETER SELECTBOARD

FROM: COREY STEVENS, FINANCE DIRECTOR
SUBIJECT: TAX WARRANTS

DATE: NOVEMBER 10, 2025

Included in the administrative paperwork to be signed by the Selectboard this evening are three
tax warrants for your consideration:

The first is the Tax Collector’s warrant for the second half property tax bills for 2025 in the amount
of $35,980,276.

| would ask for a motion from the Board to approve this warrant in the stated amount.

The second and third warrants are Recommittal Warrants. You will recall that on September 2™
of this year the Board appointed Interim Town Manager Roy as Tax Collector, replacing Russell
Dean. State statute dictates that when there is a change in Tax Collector, a tax recommittal is
required. The recommittal in essence transfers all uncollected tax balances from the former
Collector to the new one. As part of this process our auditors, Plodzik & Sanderson, recently
performed agreed upon procedures which reconciled the uncollected balances that were
“recommitted” to Ms. Roy. The procedures were performed without finding, and a final report
will be issued by Plodzik & Sanderson to the Board in the next couple weeks.

| would ask for a motion from the Board to approve the Recommittal Warrant for Property
Taxes having uncollected property taxes of $803,207.27 and unredeemed tax liens of

$809,711.85 as of September 2"9, 2025.

| would ask for a motion from the Board to approve the Recommittal Warrant for Land Use
Change Taxes having uncollected taxes of $5,000 as of September 2™, 2025.

Chreey



Permits & Approvals



Town Manager Report



Select Board Committee Reports



Correspondence



Pam McElroy <pmcelroy@exeternh.gov>

Urgent: DHHS Update: Mobile Food Pantries

1 message

NH Local Welfare Administrators Association <info-nhlwaa.org@shared1.ccsend.com> Thu, Nov 6, 2025 at 10:25 AM
Reply-To: info@nhlwaa.org
To: pmcelroy@exeternh.gov

New Hampshire Local Welfare
Administrators Association

Thank you for your continued commitment to professionally meet yo'ur legal
and humanitarian obligations while practicing municipal local welfare, including
during this critical delay with SNAP payments and planned reduced amounts.

On October 31, 2025, the Department of Health and Human Services issued
updated information regarding the mobile food pantries specifically for people
who receive SNAP. Please see the link below:

SNAP and WIC Federal Shutdown Information | New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

The department also issued a communication to statewide partner helping
providers, which included the following:

*START*
To our valued partners,

As you are aware, November food benefits through the Supplemental Nutrition
Assistance Program (SNAP) will not be available to SNAP recipients on
November 5.

Update as of November 1st, 2025:

The Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) has partnered with
the New Hampshire Food Bank (NHFB) to hold a series of mobile food
pantries specifically for people who receive SNAP, as well as additional food
boxes available at NHFB partner locations across the state.



As this situation has the potential to change rapidly, all SNAP-related food
pantry information will be posted on the DHHS website at www.dhhs.nh.gov/
federalshutdown.

If you provide direct client services to people who participate in SNAP, we
appreciate your assistance in sharing this information with them.

We are continuing to monitor this situation closely and we will keep you
updated as more information becomes available.

Thank you for your continued partnership as we navigate the days and weeks
ahead.

Sincerely,
Karen Hebert, Director Division of Economic Stability
*END*

As president of our NHLWAA, | am deeply troubled and disappointed with
existing collaborative dynamics in Washington D.C. However, | am

confident that the people living in the cities and towns throughout New
Hampshire will assist our neighbors in need to the best of our ability and that
the strong relationships municipal welfare departments have fostered with
other helping providers will maximize collaborations to minimize unavoidable
harm during this critical time.

| hope this information is helpful.

Respectfully,

Todd Marsh
NHLWAA, President
info@nhlwaa.org
https://nhlwaa.org/

NH Local Welfare Administrators Association | 17 Depot St Suite 3 | Concord, NH 03301 US
Unsubscribe | Update Profile | Constant Contact Data Notice

(}H Constant
Contact

Try email marketing for free today!



A Due to the federal government shutdown, November SNAP and WIC benefits may be
ALERT impacted. Learn more about where to find food assistance.

E OPEN MENU

SNAP and WIC Federal Shutdown Information

Federal shutdown impacts on the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) and the Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women,
Infants, and Children (WIC) program

The Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) has teamed up with the New Hampshire
Food Bank to offer a series of mobile food pantries and food box pick-ups in locations across the
state for people who receive SNAP.

These food pantries and pick-ups are for SNAP recipients only and will begin on November 5,
2025.

Individuals must verify that they participate in the SNAP program by showing their EBT card or a
notice from DHHS confirming their SNAP participation.

Find the nearest SNAP-only mobile food pantries and food box pickup locations.

Locations are subject to change. Please check back often for updates.

Infant formula and nutritious foods for participating pregnant women and young children are still
available through WIC.

If you are interested in making a donation to the New Hampshire Food Bank, visit the NHFB
website to learn how you can help.

Information as of October 29, 2025

WIC Update: In the absence of federal WIC funding, DHHS is stretching other existing federal funds to keep WIC benefits and services
available further into November. This new strategy will extend previously announced timelines for WIC food benefits and WIC services at local

agencies.

Information as of October 24, 2025

SNAP update: On October 24, the US Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Services informed states that November SNAP benefits
are suspended and will not be available. SNAP recipients will be able to access current SNAP benefits already on their EBT cards.



Information as of October 23, 2025

The federal government shutdown is expected to impact November benefits under the federal Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program
(SNAP) and the Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and Children (WIC).

DHHS is closely monitoring the evolving federal situation and any impacts to planned services. The Department is also working with
community partners across the state to limit disruptions for clients and to help connect people with food assistance resources.

See the October 23, 2025 DHHS press release.
Impacts to SNAP

The US Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Services has informed all states that there r
benefits through the federal SNAP Program.

Beginning November 1, SNAP recipients may not be able to access any unused benefits on their E
SNAP recipients may want to consider using benefits on their EBT cards before October 31.

* People receiving SNAP can check their EBT card balances by visiting www.ebtedge.com or« S0 EET Edge to check your balance

W

* Individuals who receive Cash Assistance on their EBT cards will continue to be able to access those benefits.

* DHHS is still processing new SNAP applications and encourage people to apply.

EBT Edge
The State plans to partner with the New Hampshire Food Bank to expand its mobile food pantry p

Committee and the Executive Council, these additional food pantries will be restricted to SNAP pa  New Hampshire Food Bank

weeks or until SNAP benefits have resumed.

New Hampshire Food Bank's Food
Map

DHHS encourages families with school aged children to apply for the National School Lunch Prog.

program provides free and reduced cost meals at school.

National School Lunch Program

Impacts to WIC

In the absence of federal WIC funding, DHHS is stretching other existing federal funds to keep WIC benefits and services available further into
November. This new strategy will extend previously announced timelines for WIC food benefits and WIC services at local agencies.

The Department is closely monitoring the availability of existing funds to determine the longevity of WIC food benefits and services during the
federal shutdown. DHHS will provide updates on any impacts to planned services as new information becomes available.

WIC participants can continue to receive information about benefits and food balances on the WIC Shopper app or by calling 1-855-279-0680.
Anyone with additional questions can call DHHS at 1-800-942-4321.

Help is Available

If you need help getting food, contact your local city/town welfare office or local food pantry. You can call 211, or visit the New Hampshire Food
Bank's Food Map for a full listing of their partner agencies, including food pantries, soup kitchens and more.

Department of Lontact NH Government Careers
Subscribe to Newsletters NH Travel & Tourism
HEAMLKIINi gEnv'cEs Find a DHHS Location NH Web Portal - NH.gov
Communication Access & ReadyNH.gov
TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964 Language Assistance Transparent NH
Non-Discrimination Policy
Contact Web Team




Review Board Calendar



Non-Public Session



